
 
 

CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
SPECIAL MEETING 

Wednesday, February 14, 2018 at 10:00AM 
Commissioners’ Hearing Room, Courthouse Annex 

94235 Moore Street, Gold Beach, Oregon 
www.co.curry.or.us 

 

 

Curry County does not discriminate against individuals with disabilities and all public meetings are held 
in accessible locations. Auxiliary aids will be provided upon request with 48 hours advance notification. 
Please call 541-247-3296 if you have questions regarding this notice. 

 
AGENDA 

Items may be taken out of sequence to accommodate staff availability and the public. 
For public comment, a completed speaker’s slip must be submitted. 

 
 

1. Call To Order Pledge of Allegiance 
 

2. Adoption/Approval of Agenda (5 minutes) 
  
3. Consent Calendar 

A. Elevator Contractor. – Eric Hanson, Facilities and Maintenance 
Coordinator (10 minutes)  

B. ADA Restroom Project at Boice Cope. – Jay Trost, Juvenile/Parks 
Director (5 minutes) 

 
4. Presentations 

Nesika Beach Ophir Water District Ground Lease. – John Huttl, County 
Counsel (30 minutes)  

 
5. Executive Session. – John Huttl, County Counsel (30 minutes) 

A. ORS 192.660(2)(a) To consider the employment of a public officer, 
employee, staff member or individual agent.  

B. ORS 192.660(2)(f) To consider information or records that are 
exempt by law from public inspection.;  

C. ORS 192.660(2)(h) To consult with counsel concerning the legal 
rights and duties of a public body with regard to current litigation or 
litigation likely to be filed. 

 
6. Recess – Reconvene at 2:30PM 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

http://www.co.curry.or.us/


 
7. Old Business. – Carolyn Johnson Community Development Director (60 

minutes)  
2:30pm Elk River Property Irrigation pipeline and treated water 
De novo Appeal  
Deliberation on de novo appeal of Elk River Property Development 
application AD-1705, for the analysis of a pipeline and ancillary facilities to 
use recycled wastewater for irrigation of a golf course 
 

8. Administrator Comments 
 
 
 
9. Commissioner Comments 

A. Commissioner Boice 
B. Commissioner Gold 
C. Commissioner Huxley 
 

10. Adjourn 
 
 
 
 



CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM ROUTING SLIP 

FORM 10-001.1 Rev. 1-5-2018  
PART I – SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: RETURN TO BOC_OFFICE@CO.CURRY.OR.US 
PROPOSED AGENDA ITEM TITLE: An Order Authorizing a Contract to Modernize the 
Elevator serving the Curry County Jail 
 
 

TIMELY FILED    Yes ☐ No  ☒      Acting Interim County Administrator Approved    
If  No, justification to include with next BOC Meeting  
 
AGENDA DATEa:   02/14/2018        DEPARTMENT: Building  TIME NEEDED:  10min 
(aSubmit by seven days prior to the next General Meeting ( eight days if a holiday falls within that seven day period)) 
 
MEMO ATTACHED       Yes  ☒  No ☐    If no memo, explain:  
 
 

CONTACT PERSON:  Eric Hanson PHONE/EXT:  3384        TODAY’S DATE: 02/09/2018 
 

BRIEF BACKGROUND OR NOTE: (If no memo attached) see memo  
   
FILES ATTACHED:     
(1) Contract Thyssen Krupp $73,137   
(2) Straight Up Elevator $54,400 
(3) Otis Elevator $91,926 
 
    
QUESTIONS: 
1.  Would this item be a departure from the Annual Budget if approved?    Yes ☐No ☐ 
     (If Yes, brief detail)        
2.  Does this agenda item impact any other County department?   Yes ☐ No ☐ 
     (If Yes, brief detail)       
3.  Does Agenda Item impact County personnel resources?    Yes  ☐ No  ☐ 
      (If Yes, brief detail)       
INSTRUCTIONS ONCE SIGNED:   
 ☐No Additional Activity Required 

 OR        
 ☐File with County Clerk     Name:          
 ☐Send Printed Copy to:           Address:          
 ☐Email a Digital Copy to:     City/State/Zip:        

☐Other                   
         Phone:                 
cNote: Most signed documents are filed/recorded with the Clerk per standard process.  
PART III - FINANCE DEPARTMENT REVIEW  
EVALUATION CRITERIA 1-4: 
1. Confirmed Submitting Department’s finance-related responses Yes  ☐No☐     N/A ☐    
Comment:       
2. Confirmed Submitting Department’s personnel-related materials  Yes  ☐ No  ☐    N/A☐ 
    Comment:      
3. If job description, Salary Committee reviewed:         Yes ☐ No  ☐  N/A☐ 
4. If hire order requires a Personnel Action Form (PAF)?             Pending  ☐ N/A ☐ No  ☐ HR ☐    
PART IV – COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REVIEW 
☐ APPROVED FOR ________  BOC MEETING   ☐ Not Approved for BOC Agenda because  
      
LEGAL ASSESSMENT: Does this agenda item have a legal impact?                   Yes  ☒ No  ☐ 
  (If Yes, brief detail) Contract requires Board approval 
ASSIGNED TO:     
PART V – BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS AGENDA APPROVAL  
COMMISSIONERS’ REQUEST TO ADD TO AGENDA:     
Commissioner Sue Gold     Yes ☐No  ☐ 
Commissioner Thomas Huxley   Yes  ☐ No  ☐ 
Commissioner Court Boice    Yes  ☐ No ☐      

mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

      MEMORANDUM 
 

FROM  John R. Huttl, Curry County Counsel 
 
TO   Board of Commissioners  
 
RE:   Jail Elevator Modernization 
 
DATE:   February 9, 2018   

____________________________ 
 
Introduction 
The jail elevator is failing and needs modernization. Staff recommends using Thyssenkrupp bid 
for $65,637 with additional payment of $7500 for work to receive priority handling and be 
performed in 5 days.  Total award  
 
The amount is over $10,000 so required Board approval. 
The amount is under $100,000 so we can use informal competitive quote procedure instead of 
sealed bid.  
 
Eric Hanson obtained three competitive quotes. 
 
1) Straight Up Elevator   $54,400 
2) Thyssenkrupp Elevator   $73,137 
3) Otis Elevator    $91,926 
 
Hanson recommends Thyssenkrupp because they are our existing vendor and have knowledge 
of the equipment and they offer priority handling and this is a critical part of jail functions. 
Additional reasons on file in Building Maintenance Department.  Contact Eric Hanson if 
questions.  
 
 
 
 /s/ 
John R. Huttl 
Curry County Counsel 

County Counsel 



 
 

CONTRACT BETWEEN CURRY COUNTY AND 
 

[NAME] 
 
 
 

This contract is made and entered into this    day of          , 2016 by 
and between Curry County, a General Law County, Political Subdivision of the State of 
Oregon (County) and Thyssenkrupp (Contractor). 
 
 
1. Work to Be Performed 
Contractor, shall, except as otherwise provided, at its own expense, furnish all materials, 
labor and equipment, necessary to complete the project regarding the services  
 

Jail Elevator Modernization as described on Exhibit A 
 
Services Outlined in Exhibit “A” that is attached hereto and incorporated by reference.  
 
Contractor shall perform work to specifications and according to generally accepted 
standards in Contractor’s trade or industry. 
 
2. Performance and Payment Bond 
Payment Performance Bonds not required for contracts below $100,000. ORS 279C.380.   
 
3. Completion Date 
This contract shall commence upon execution and terminate when work is complete.  
Work shall be completed within 5 days of contract execution.  
 
4. Compensation Not to Exceed 
Contractor agrees to perform the work called for under this contract for an amount not to 
exceed $73,137.00. 
 
5. Prevailing Wages and Procurement 
Contractor and County agree that the project is subject to prevailing wages because the 
amount of the contract is greater than $50,000.   Contractor shall comply with state and 
federal prevailing wage laws.  
 
6. Independent Contractor 
Contractor is engaged as an independent contractor, and will be deemed so for purposes 
of the following: 
 
A. Contractor will be solely responsible for payment of any federal or state taxes required 
as a result of this contract. 



 
B. This contract is not intended to entitle Contractor to any benefits generally granted to 
County’s employees, such as vacation, sick leave, health insurance, Social Security, etc. 
 
7. Incorporation of Statutory Provisions Required for Public Contracts 
The Contractor certifies that it will comply with all applicable public contract laws, 
including, but not limited to, ORS 279C.838 and 279C.840.  
 
8. Workers’ Compensation 
Contractor, its subcontractors, if any, working under this contract are subject workers 
under Oregon Workers’ Compensation law and shall comply with ORS 656.017, which 
requires it to provide workers’ compensation coverage for all of its subject workers. 
 
9. Certification of Reading and Understanding of Documents 
The Contractor certifies that it has read and fully understands all contract documents 
including this contract, the solicitation document and all terms and conditions. The 
Contractor understands and acknowledges that in signing this contract Contractor waives 
all right to plead any misunderstandings regarding the same. 
 

 
10. Indemnification 
Contractor shall indemnify, defend and save and hold harmless County from any and all 
suits, actions, legal or administrative proceedings, demands, claims, liabilities, fines, 
penalties losses, injuries, damages, expenses or costs, including interest and attorney fees, 
in any way connected with any injury to any person or damage to any property 
occasioned in any way by Contractor’s or Contractor’s subcontractor’s prosecution of 
work under this contract. 
 
 
11. Insurance 
 Contractor shall provide the following insurance in connection with the project: 
 
INSURANCE DESCRIPTION  MINIMUM REQUIRED COVERAGE 
 
A. Workers’ Compensation   Statutory 
 
B. General Liability    $2,000,000 
 
C. Automobile Liability   $1,000,000 
 
Evidence of such insurance shall be provided to County within ten days of the execution 
of this agreement and before work begins. The liability insurance shall name County and 
its officers, agents and employees as additional insured. 
 
12. Nonwaiver 



No waiver of any breach of this agreement shall be held to be a waiver of any other or 
subsequent breach. 
 
13. Severability 
Should any clause or section of this contract be declared by a court to be void or 
voidable, the remainder of the contract shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
14. Termination by County 
County may terminate for non-appropriation of future budget funds.  If County 
terminates pursuant to this section, County shall retain any other right or remedy which 
County has against Contractor. Termination shall not prejudice the rights of the County 
that accrued before termination.  If the County invokes this provision, it may notify 
Contractor by any commercially reasonable means. Contractor shall be entitled to 
payment for work done up to the date of termination. 
 
15. Attorney Fees and Costs 
In the event that either party to this contract shall take any action, judicial or otherwise, to 
enforce or interpret any of the terms of this contract, each party shall be wholly 
responsible for its own expenses which it may incur in taking such action, including costs 
and attorney fees, whether incurred in a suit or action or appeal from a judgment or 
decree therein or in connection with any non-judicial action. 
 
16. Applicable Laws 
This contract is executed in the State of Oregon and is subject to Oregon law and the 
jurisdiction of Curry County. 
 
17. Written Changes Required 
The rights and duties under this contract shall not be modified, delegated, transferred, or 
assigned, except upon written signed consent of both parties. 
 
THE CONTRACTOR, BY SIGNATURE OF ITS AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE, 
HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGES THAT HE/SHE HAS READ THIS CONTRACT, 
UNDERSTANDS IT, AND AGREES TO BE BOUND BY ITS TERMS AND 
CONDITIONS. 
 
 
 
CONTRACTOR 
 
___________________________________  ___________   
By (signature)      Date 
 
___________________________________  
Printed Name      
 
       



Street 
 
       
City    State  Zip Code 
 
 
 
CURRY COUNTY  
 
          
Signature 
 
 
            
Print Name     Title 
 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
             
Curry County Legal Counsel    Curry County Accountant 
 
 



1

John Huttl

From: Eric Hanson

Sent: Tuesday, January 30, 2018 1:23 PM

To: John Huttl

Cc: John Hitt

Subject: FW: Gold Beach jail elevator

Attachments: H-Power Brochure.pdf

This Quote starts at $75,000 for the same modernization. 

 

From: Olson, Matt [mailto:Matt.Olson@thyssenkrupp.com]  

Sent: Tuesday, January 23, 2018 9:27 PM 
To: Eric Hanson 

Subject: RE: Gold Beach jail elevator 

 

Eric, 

Thank you for the conversation this afternoon. I wanted to recap our conversation and update you on the jail elevator. 

Good news, my elevator mechanic left the elevator running. Bad news, the troubleshooting performed today identified 

an electrical board that is failing. The board is failing intermediately. The board that is failing intermediately is also 

obsolete. I would only use the elevator for ADA needs only. My elevator mechanic exercised the elevator many times 

and only saw the problem once. That being said, this issue will become more present in the near future. You have three 

different options for a repair. The numbers are for budgeting purposes only and not a quote.  

 

The first - The riskiest – The cheapest – The obsolete board potentially can be repaired. We would come remove the 

board and send it in to our factory to be repaired. This will be around $6,000 - $8,000. If the elevator board can be 

repaired we will come back and reinstall the board, then test the elevator’s safety functionality.  This will be around 

$7,000 - $9,000. If the board cannot be repaired then the elevator will not be able to run at all and we will have to 

discuss options 2 and 3. The elevator will be down for 1 to two weeks. 

 

Second – Most expensive – I would piece out a simple modernization. I would source out the parts from different 

providers that will be able to provide the parts needed faster than my factory. We would replace the controller. Per 

state of Oregon code, once the elevator controller is replaced the elevator has to be brought up to current code 

(elevator, electrical, plumbing, fire, & building code). Per the elevator code we will have to update the elevator fixtures 

(hall call and elevator cab buttons). I would highly recommend updating the power unit (pump, motor, & tank) and door 

operator too. If we expedite this process this will fall in the range of $75,000 - $95,000. I would budget the work by 

others at 20-25% of the final quoted price. I should be able to have all the parts needed for the modernization in 4-6 

weeks with an install time of 2-3 weeks, depending on when we can schedule an inspection with a state inspector.  

 

Third – In my opinion, the best option – I would source out a modernization from my factory. We would replace the 

controller, power unit, door operator, fixtures, and door safety edge. The lead time will be 8-12 weeks with an install 

time of 2-3 weeks, depending on when we can schedule an inspection with a state inspector. The price range will be 

between $65,000 - $80,000. If you wanted to add new elevator cabs, I would budget $15,000 - $20,000. I would budget 

the work by others at 20-25%. I have attached my H-power brochure to explain what this package includes and why it’s a 

better option.  

 

A good analogy to compare your elevator to would be your car. Your elevator was installed in 1985. What vehicle is still 

on the road that has been running 7 days a week for 8 hours a day without a major repair that’s 33 years old? I can’t 

think of any. Your elevator is past it’s life span. Please let me know what option you would like to quote and I will drop 

everything to quote it. Time is of the essences.  



2

 

 
Regards, 
Matt Olson 
Account Manager, Eugene 
ET-AMS/FLD 

  
M: +1 541 606 2861  matt.olson@thyssenkrupp.com 
thyssenkrupp Elevator Corporation, 555 Lincoln St. Suite B, Eugene, OR 97401, www.thyssenkruppelevator.com 
Facebook · Blog· Twitter · LinkedIn · Google+ · YouTube 
  
MAX-The game changer 
thyssenkrupp – bringing new vision to elevator maintenance with Microsoft HoloLens 
 

 

From: Eric Hanson [mailto:hansone@co.curry.or.us]  

Sent: Monday, January 22, 2018 10:19 AM 
To: Olson, Matt 

Cc: Louise Kallstrom; John Hitt; Joel Hensley 

Subject: Gold Beach jail elevator 

 

It seems as if the switch gear in the basement of the Curry County jail has failed.  It is being operated manually and is 

getting worse.  This is a major priority!  Please begin action on this immediately.  I will need a verification of failure and a 

quote ASAP. 

Again, please use 541-698-7336 and this e-mail address for future activities.  I left you a voice mail this morning as well. 

Thank you.  Eric Hanson, Curry County Facilities Director 



 
  

  
                    MODERNIZATION PROPOSAL 

Curry County - Jail - Mod 
  

  

 2018-2-466399 | ACIA-1DSMRHM  
  Page 1 

  
  

February 06, 2018  
  
  
Purchaser: 

  Curry County Courthouse  
  

  
Location: 

  CURRY COUNTY COURTHOUSE  
  

Address: 
  94235 Moore St Ste 411  

  
    

430 N Ellensburg Ave  
430 N Ellensburg Ave  

  
City/State/Zip: 

   Gold Beach, OR 97444-9708  
  

    
Gold Beach, OR  97444   

  
          

  
On behalf of thyssenkrupp Elevator, I am pleased to provide this multi-page proposal (the "Proposal") to modernize the 
elevator equipment described herein (the "Equipment") at the above referenced location.  This proposal is valid for 45 
days.  
  
Our modernization package is engineered specifically for your elevator system and will include the elevator mechanical 
and electrical components being replaced, refurbished or retained. 
  
Benefits of Modernization include:  
• Increased Durability and Reliability 
• Improved Fire and Life Safety Features 
• Decreased waiting times 
• Reduced Energy Consumption 
• Reduced Operational Cost 
• Reduced Troubleshooting Time 
  
If you have any questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to contact me. We appreciate your consideration. 
  
Sincerely, 
  
  
Matthew Olson  
Account Manager  
matt.olson@thyssenkrupp.com  
+1 541 6062861  
  



 
  

  
                    MODERNIZATION PROPOSAL 

Curry County - Jail - Mod 
  

  

 2018-2-466399 | ACIA-1DSMRHM  
  Page 2 

  
  

SCOPE OF WORK    

 
   

Group 1 HYDRAULIC 
Jail 

$65,637.00 

Pump Unit 
Power Unit (Adjacent) New - Power Unit (Adjacent) 
Shut Off Valve New - Shut Off Valve Kit 
Oil New - Oil 
Control System 
Controller (tank mounted) New - Controller (tank mounted) 
Car Door Equipment 
Front Car Door Operator / Kit New - Front Car Door Operator / Kit 
Door Detectors New - Infrared door detector 
Front Mechanical Restrictor Package New - Front Car Door and Hatch Side Restrictors (vanes) 
Cab/Platform/Car Fixtures 
Main Car Station New - Main Car Station Includes: Custom finish, Applied panel, Braille 

Plates, Digital Position Indicators, Standard Key Switch Package, 
Locked Service Cabinet, ADA Phone System, Emergency Light, Swing 
Return (TKE Cab only), Vandal Resistant Floor Buttons 

Car Position Indicator New - Car Position Indicator 
Car Traveling Lantern New - Car Riding Lantern (Standard) 
Hands Free Phone New - Hands Free Phone 
Emergency Lighting New - Emergency Lighting 
Hall and Lobby Fixtures 

Hall Stations (excluding Egress) New - Hall Stations (excluding Egress) 
Egress Hall Stations (Lobby) New - Egress Hall Stations (Lobby) 
Jamb Braille New - Jamb Braille 
Hall Position Indicators New - Hall Position Indicators 
Hoistway Access Station New - Hoistway Access Switch 
Hoistway Equipment 

Leveling Unit / Landing System New - Leveling Unit / Landing System 
Hoistway Wiring 

Traveling Cable / Car Wiring New - Traveling Cable / Car Wiring 
Hoistway Wiring New - Hoistway Wiring Package 
Raceway / Duct / Piping New - Hoistway Duct Kit 
Pit 
Pit Ladder New - Pit Ladder 
Pit Switch New - Pit Switch 
Jack Packing New - Jack Packing 
Overspeed (Rupture) Valve New - Overspeed (Rupture) Valve Kits 
Miscellaneous 

Toe Guard New - Toe Guard 

Value Engineering Opportunities & Alternates 



 
  

  
                    MODERNIZATION PROPOSAL 

Curry County - Jail - Mod 
  

  

 2018-2-466399 | ACIA-1DSMRHM  
  Page 3 

  
  

(Initial next to the option below to indicate acceptance) 

 
\\initial1\\ 
           

  
    
    

  

  
    

  
VALUE ENGINEERING OPPORTUNITIES & ALTERNATES 
  
  
1. Ninja Mod. Thyssenkrupp can perform this mod in 5 days, working overtime. 
This would add $7,500 to the project. 

Initial to Accept __________ 

2. thyssenkrupp can make this project an all inclusice project. We would hire out 
the work by others and be the project manager. Pricing depending on bids from 
contractors 

Initial to Accept __________ 

    
  

INSTALLATION SEQUENCE AND SCHEDULE 
  
The following is a list of some of the key tasks that comprise a typical modernization, along with their sequence and 
approximate durations or lead times for each such task: 
  
  

Preparation of submittals upon receipt of subcontract and plans: 
(Additional Time Required for Cab, Signal, Entrance If Applicable) 
  

1 Week 
  

  
Approval of submittals by Purchaser 
  1 Week 

  
  

Fabrication time from receipt of all approvals, fully executed contract, and 

payment of pre-production and engineering invoice: 
  

 5-7 Weeks 
  
  

  
Modernization of elevator system (Per Unit) : 
(After completion of all required preparatory work by others) 
  

1-3 Weeks  
  

  
  
The durations or lead times listed above are strictly approximations that can vary due to factors both within and outside of 
thyssenkrupp Elevator’s control, are subject to change without notice to Purchaser and shall not be binding on 
thyssenkrupp Elevator. 
  
All work specified herein will be performed from 6:00 AM to 2:30 PM, except scheduled union holidays (“regular working 
hours of regular working days”). If, after the execution of this Proposal, overtime is mutually agreed upon, an additional 
charge at thyssenkrupp Elevator's usual rates for such work shall be added to the price of this Proposal. 
  
One or more of the units described in this Proposal will be out of service and unavailable to move passengers and/or 
property during entire duration of the performance of the work described in this Proposal until re-certified by the applicable 
authority(ies) having jurisdiction and in good standing with payment schedules. Temporary use of the equipment is not 
included in this Proposal. 
  
All work described in this Proposal will be performed in accordance with the version of all applicable state or local codes 
that deal exclusively with the installation and/or modernization of elevators that are in effect at the time that this Proposal 
is fully executed. In the event that either (A) those codes change or (B) rulings are made by the applicable authority 
having jurisdiction that extend the application of those codes following the complete execution of this Proposal, 
thyssenkrupp Elevator will provide Purchaser with a separate and additional proposal to comply with such changes at an 
additional cost. It is solely the Purchaser’s responsibility to ensure that the work described in this Proposal meets all 
applicable Federal, state and/or local codes that do not deal exclusively with the installation and/or modernization of 



 
  

  
                    MODERNIZATION PROPOSAL 

Curry County - Jail - Mod 
  

  

 2018-2-466399 | ACIA-1DSMRHM  
  Page 4 

  
  

elevators and to secure any necessary permission and/or priority from all applicable governmental authorities to complete 
that work. 
  
No permits or inspections by others are included in this work, unless otherwise indicated herein. The price of this Proposal 
only includes one (1) inspection by the applicable authority having jurisdiction. At the conclusion of its work described 
herein, thyssenkrupp Elevator will perform all tests required by the applicable authority having jurisdiction to ensure that 
the equipment that is the subject matter of this Proposal conforms to applicable codes and will provide Purchaser with 
copies of reports generated in conjunction with completed tests.  Should the equipment fail any test due to reasons that 
are the responsibility of the Purchaser as set forth in this Proposal or are not specifically included in this Proposal, or 
should the applicable authority having jurisdiction refuse to issue written approval to Purchaser to use and operate the 
equipment due to items that are the responsibility of the Purchaser as set forth in this Proposal or are not specifically 
included in this Proposal  the Purchaser shall bear sole  financial responsibility for (A) addressing those items, (B) the cost 
of the performance of any re-tests or additional inspections and (C) the labor incurred by thyssenkrupp Elevator to re-test 
the equipment or to attend those additional inspections at thyssenkrupp Elevator's current billing rate as posted at its local 
office.  thyssenkrupp Elevator shall not be liable for any damage to the building structure or the elevator resulting from the 
performance of any tests it shall perform at any time under this Proposal. 
  
Should the Purchaser or the local authority having jurisdiction require thyssenkrupp Elevator's presence at the inspection 
of equipment installed by others in conjunction with the work described in this Proposal, Purchaser agrees to compensate 
thyssenkrupp Elevator for its time at thyssenkrupp Elevator's current billing rate as posted at its local office. 
  
Upon notice from thyssenkrupp Elevator that the work described herein has been completed, Purchaser will arrange to 
complete an inspection of the work with thyssenkrupp Elevator and will provide Purchaser's final acceptance thereof in 
writing by Purchaser's duly authorized representative at that time if the work is acceptable. The date and time for such an 
inspection shall be mutually agreed upon. In no event shall that inspection occur more than ten (10) business days after 
the date of thyssenkrupp Elevator's written notice to Purchaser that the work herein has been completed unless both 
parties agree otherwise in writing. Immediately following its inspection of the work, Purchaser's duly authorized 
representative shall execute thyssenkrupp Elevator's "Final Acceptance" form(s) prior to turnover and use of the 
equipment described in this Proposal. Purchaser shall not unreasonably delay or withhold such final inspection or its 
written acceptance of the work. 
  
At the conclusion of its work, thyssenkrupp Elevator will remove all equipment and unused or removed materials from the 
project site and leave its work area in a condition that, in thyssenkrupp Elevator's sole opinion, is neat and clean. 
  
WORK NOT INCLUDED 
  
There are certain items that are not included in this Proposal, many of which must be completed by Purchaser prior to and 
as a condition precedent to thyssenkrupp Elevator's performance of its work as described in this Proposal.  In order to 
ensure a successful completion of this project, it shall be solely Purchaser’s responsibility to coordinate its own completion 
of those items with thyssenkrupp Elevator. The following is a list of those items that are not included in this Proposal: 
  
1. Equipment Storage: the provision of a dry and secure area at the project site for storage of the elevator equipment at 
the time of delivery and the provision of adequate ingress and egress to this area. Any relocation of the equipment as 
directed by the Purchaser after its initial delivery will be at Purchaser's sole expense. 
  
2. The hiring of a disposal company which MUST be discussed prior to any material being ordered or work being 
scheduled. thyssenkrupp will provide environmental services ONLY if this is specifically included under the "Scope of 
Work" section above. thyssenkrupp assumes no responsibility and/or liability in any way whatsoever for spoils or other 
contamination that may be present as a result of the cylinder breach and/or other conditions present on the work site.  
  
3. Electrical: 

a. suitable connections from the power main to each controller and signal equipment feeders as required, including 
necessary circuit breakers and fused mainline disconnect switches per N.E.C. Suitable power supply capable of 
operating the new elevator equipment under all conditions; 
b. the wiring to the controller for car lighting per N.E.C. Articles 620-22 and 620-51; 



 
  

  
                    MODERNIZATION PROPOSAL 

Curry County - Jail - Mod 
  

  

 2018-2-466399 | ACIA-1DSMRHM  
  Page 5 

  
  

c. a means to automatically disconnect the main line and the emergency power supply to the elevator prior to the 
application of water in the elevator machine room that shall not be self-resetting; 
d. wiring and conduit from life safety panel or any other monitor station to the elevator machine room or a suitable 
connection point in hoistway; 
e. a bonded ground wire, properly sized, from the elevator controller(s) to the primary building ground; and all remote 
wiring to the outside alarm bell as requested by all applicable code provisions 
f. a dry set of contacts which close 20 seconds prior to the transfer from normal power to emergency power or from 
emergency power to normal power whether in test mode or normal operating conditions in the event that an 
emergency power supply will be provided for the elevator; 
g. automatic time delay transfer switch and auxiliary contacts with wiring to the designated elevator controller and 
h. electrical cross connections between elevator machine rooms for emergency power purposes 
i. the following emergency power provisions are not included: interface in controller, pre-testing and testing, 
emergency power keyswitches; 
j. emergency power operation is included as part of the design of the elevator control system and based on each car 
in the group only, to properly sequence, one at a time to the programmed landing, and park.  The design requires 
that the generator, transfer switch, and related circuitry are sufficient to run this function or any other function for any 
building other system that is associated with this project.  In the event that the generator, transfer switch, and related 
circuitry are not sufficient, thyssenkrupp Elevator will provide Purchaser with a written change order for Purchaser’s 
execution. 
  

4. Machine Room: a legal machine room, adequate for the elevator equipment, including floors, trap doors, gratings, 
foundations, lighting and a machine room temperature maintained between 50 and 90 degrees Fahrenheit, with a relative 
humidity less than 95% non-condensing; 
  
5. Heat and Smoke Sensing Devices: heat and smoke sensing devices at elevator lobbies on each floor, machine room, 
and hoistways with normally open dry contacts terminating at a properly marked terminal in the elevator controller; 
  
6. Dedicated Telephone Lines: a dedicated telephone line to elevator each controller recognizing that the elevator 
telephone is required by code to be monitored 24 hours a day, 7 days a week; one additional telephone line per group of 
elevators for diagnostic capability wired to designated controller; 
  
7. Removal of Obstructions: the cutting and patching of walls, floors, etc. and removal of such obstructions as may be 
necessary for proper modernization of the elevator(s); 
  
8. Fire Rating: the furnishing, installing and maintaining of the required fire rating of elevator hoistway walls, including the 
penetration of firewall by elevator fixture boxes; 
  
9. Flooring: all work relating to the flooring including, but not limited to, the provision of materials and its installation to 
comply with all applicable codes; 
  
10. Painting: all painting, except as otherwise specifically included herein; 
  
11. Waterproofing: ensuring that the elevator hoistways and pits are dewatered, cleaned and properly waterproofed; 
  
12. If entrances are replaced: adequate bracing of entrance frames to prevent distortion during wall construction and all 
sill supports, steel angles, sill recesses, and the grouting of doorsills; 
  
13. Hydraulic jack replacement: 

a. the excavation of the elevator cylinder well hole in the event drilling is necessary through soil that is not free from 
rock, sand, water, building construction members and obstructions. Should obstructions be encountered, 
thyssenkrupp Elevator will proceed only after written authorization has been received from the Purchaser. The 
contract price shall be increased by the amount of additional labor at thyssenkrupp Elevator's standard labor rates as 
per the local office along with any additional expenses and materials required; 
b. adequate ingress and egress, including ramping, for rail-mounted or truck-mounted drill rig; 



 
  

  
                    MODERNIZATION PROPOSAL 

Curry County - Jail - Mod 
  

  

 2018-2-466399 | ACIA-1DSMRHM  
  Page 6 

  
  

c. Purchaser is responsible for pumping truck contractor to remove and dispose of spoils from the site. In the event 
that unforseen and unfavorable below ground conditions are encountered, including but not limited to concrete 
around the cylinder, construction debris, adverse water and/or soil conditions, erosion, cavitations, oil contamination, 
or circumstances necessitating increased hole depth, etc., which require the employment of specialized contractors, 
thyssenkrupp shall immediately advise the Purchaser and costs willl be extra to the contract; 
d. in ground protection systems other than thyssenkrupp Elevator's standard HDPE or PVC protection system with 
bottomless corrugated steel casing; 
e. any required trenching and backfilling for underground piping or casings, and conduit as well as any compaction, 
grouting, and waterproofing of block-out; 
f. engineering, provision and installation of methane barriers or coordination/access; 
g. access to 2" pressurized water supply within 100'-0" of the jack hole location; 
h. a safe, accessible storage area for placement of D.O.T. 55 gallon containers for the purpose of spoils 
containment; obtaining of local environmental or disposal permits 
i. any spoils or water testing; 

  
In the event another subcontractor requires pit access during the modernization process, upon a request from Purchaser, 
thyssenkrupp Elevator will park the elevator at an upper landing and lock and tag out the equipment at no additional cost 
in exchange for Purchaser's agreement to remain solely responsible for (A) providing its subcontractor with any and all 
means and methods to access the pit, (B) properly safeguarding and barricading all landings and hoistway openings and 
(C) providing all supervision of and control over that subcontractor, the landings, hoistway openings and pit.  Upon notice 
to thyssenkrupp Elevator from Purchaser that its subcontractor has completed its task and no longer requires pit access, 
thyssenkrupp Elevator will remove its lock and tag from the elevator.  
In the event that thyssenkrupp Elevator, in its sole opinion, believes that asbestos is present in either the car or hoistway 

doors the drilling of any doors shall be expressly excluded from thyssenkrupp Elevator’s scope of work and shall be 

performed by others at Owner’s/Contractor’s direction and solely at Owner’s/Contractor’s expense. 

  
This Proposal does not include any maintenance, service, repair or replacement of the modernized equipment or any 
other work not expressly described herein. thyssenkrupp Elevator will submit a separate proposal to Purchaser covering 
the maintenance and repair of this equipment to be supplied to Purchaser at an additional cost. 
   
WARRANTY 
   
thyssenkrupp Elevator warrants the equipment it installs under this Proposal against defects in material and workmanship 
for a period of one (1) year from the date of Purchaser's execution of thyssenkrupp Elevator's "Final Acceptance" form(s) 
mentioned above on the express condition that all payments made under both this Proposal and any mutually agreed-to 
change orders have been made in full, or two (2) years from the date material ships from the manufacturer, whichever 
occurs first. This warranty is in lieu of any other warranty or liability for defects. thyssenkrupp Elevator makes no warranty 
of merchantability and no warranties which extend beyond the description in this Proposal, nor are there any other 
warranties, expressed or implied, by operation of law or otherwise. Like any piece of fine machinery, this equipment 
should be periodically inspected, lubricated, and adjusted by competent personnel. This warranty is not intended to 
supplant normal maintenance or service and shall not be construed to mean that thyssenkrupp Elevator will provide free 
service for periodic examination, lubrication, or adjustment, nor will thyssenkrupp Elevator correct, without a charge, 
breakage, maladjustments, or other trouble arising from normal wear and tear or abuse, misuse, improper or inadequate 
maintenance, or any other causes other than defective material or workmanship. In order to make a warranty claim, 
Purchaser must give thyssenkrupp Elevator prompt written notice at the address listed on the cover page of this Proposal 
and, provided all payments due under the terms of this Proposal and any mutually agreed to written change orders have 
been made in full, thyssenkrupp Elevator shall, at its own expense, correct any proven defect by repair or replacement. 
thyssenkrupp Elevator will not, under any circumstances, reimburse Purchaser for cost of work done by others, nor shall 
thyssenkrupp Elevator be responsible for the performance of any equipment that has been the subject of revisions or 
alterations by others. If there is more than one (1) unit which is the subject of work described in this Proposal, this section 
shall apply separately to each applicable unit. 
  
PAYMENT TERMS 
  



 
  

  
                    MODERNIZATION PROPOSAL 

Curry County - Jail - Mod 
  

  

 2018-2-466399 | ACIA-1DSMRHM  
  Page 7 

  
  

Purchaser agrees to pay the sum of Sixty Five Thousand Six Hundred Thirty Seven Dollars ($65,637.00) for the work 
described in this Proposal.  This price is expressly contingent on the completion of thyssenkrupp Elevator’s work as 
described in this Proposal by December 31, 2017.  In the event that such work is not completed by December 31, 
2017 due in part to reasons outside of thyssenkrupp Elevator’s control, Purchaser agrees that thyssenkrupp Elevator shall 
automatically be entitled to a change order addressing  any increase in thyssenkrupp’s cost of labor and materials. 
  
Price includes shipping and delivery and material use tax or factor tax imposed on thyssenkrupp Elevator as of the date 
that thyssenkrupp Elevator first offers this Proposal for Purchaser's acceptance but does not include sales or gross 
receipts tax that may be billed in addition to the contract price. Purchaser agrees to pay any additional taxes, fees or other 
charges exacted from Purchaser or thyssenkrupp Elevator on account of the work described in this Proposal as a result of 
any law enacted after the date that thyssenkrupp Elevator first offered this Proposal for Purchaser's acceptance. 
  
In the event Purchaser defaults on any payments due under this Proposal or breaches any of its obligations under this 
Proposal or any change orders, thyssenkrupp Elevator expressly reserves the right to declare the unpaid balance of the 
price of this Proposal (including any change orders) immediately due and payable along with the right to discontinue its 
work until such time as it has received written assurances from Purchaser to thyssenkrupp Elevator’s satisfaction that the 
breach(es) will be immediately cured (and in the event of a delinquent payment that future payments will be made as they 
come due).  
  
A service charge of 1½% per month, or the highest legal rate, whichever is less, shall apply to delinquent accounts. 
  
50% of the price set forth in this Proposal as modified by options selected from the section entitled “Value Engineering 
Opportunities & Alternates” (if applicable) will be due and payable as an initial progress payment within 30 days from 
thyssenkrupp Elevator's receipt of a  fully executed copy of this Proposal. This initial progress payment will be applied to 
costs and fees associated with project management, permits, submittals, and raw material procurement, and its receipt 
will trigger the ordering of material to complete the scope of work description. 

  
50% of the price set forth in this Proposal as modified by options selected from the section entitled “Value Engineering 
Opportunities & Alternates” (if applicable) shall be due and payable when the material described above has been 
furnished. Material is considered furnished when it has been received at the jobsite or thyssenkrupp Elevator staging 
facility. thyssenkrupp Elevator's receipt of payment is required prior to mobilization of its labor associated with the work 
description. 

  
It is agreed that there will be no withholding of Retainage from any billing and by the customer from any payment. 
 
  

Proposal Price: 
  

  
$65,637.00  

  
  

Engineering / Pre Prod / Shop 
Drawings / Submittals: 

  

(50%) 
  $32,818.50  

  

  
Material Furnished: 

  (50%) 
  $32,818.50  

  
  
The remainder of the Proposal amount, including change orders that are created in a manner consistent with the process 
outlined in this proposal, is due at the time of completion and approval by the applicable authority having jurisdiction (if 
any), but prior to turnover of the equipment by thyssenkrupp Elevator to the Purchaser for use. If this Proposal includes 
more than one (1) unit, final payment shall be made separately as each unit is completed and approved by the applicable 
authority having jurisdiction (if any). 
  
TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
  
thyssenkrupp Elevator's performance of this Proposal is contingent upon Purchaser furnishing thyssenkrupp Elevator with 
any necessary permission or priority required under the terms and conditions of any and all government regulations 
affecting the acceptance of this Proposal or the manufacture, delivery or installation of any equipment described in this 
Proposal. It is agreed that thyssenkrupp Elevator's personnel shall be given a safe place in which to work and 
thyssenkrupp Elevator reserves the right to discontinue its work in the location above whenever, in its sole opinion, 
thyssenkrupp Elevator believes that any aspect of the location is in any way unsafe. 
  



 
  

  
                    MODERNIZATION PROPOSAL 

Curry County - Jail - Mod 
  

  

 2018-2-466399 | ACIA-1DSMRHM  
  Page 8 

  
  

Purchaser agrees that in the event asbestos material is knowingly or unknowingly removed or disturbed in any manner at 
the job site by parties other than employees of thyssenkrupp Elevator or its subcontractors, the work place will be 
monitored, and prior to and during thyssenkrupp Elevator's presence on the job, Purchaser will certify that asbestos in the 
environment does not exceed .01 fibers per cc as tested by NIOSH 7400. In the event thyssenkrupp Elevator's 
employees, or those of its subcontractors, are exposed to an asbestos hazard, PCB's or other hazardous substances 
resulting from work of individuals other than thyssenkrupp Elevator or its subcontractors, Purchaser agrees to indemnify, 
defend, and hold thyssenkrupp Elevator harmless from any and all claims, demands, lawsuits, and proceedings brought 
against thyssenkrupp Elevator or its employees or subcontractors resulting from such exposure. Purchaser recognizes 
that its obligation to thyssenkrupp Elevator under this clause includes payment of all attorneys' fees, court costs, 
judgments, settlements, interest and any other expenses of litigation arising out of such claims or lawsuits. Removal and 
disposal of asbestos containing material is solely Purchaser's responsibility. 
  
thyssenkrupp Elevator shall not be liable for any loss, damage or delay caused by acts of government, labor troubles, 
strikes, lockouts, fire, explosion, theft, floods, riot, civil commotion, war, malicious mischief, acts of God or any cause 
beyond its control. 
  
In the event a third party is retained to enforce, construe or defend any of the terms and conditions of this Work Order or 
to collect any monies due hereunder, either with or without litigation, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover all 
costs and reasonable attorney's fees. Purchaser agrees that this Work Order shall be construed and enforced in 
accordance with the laws of the state where the vertical transportation equipment that is the subject of this Work Order is 
located and consents to jurisdiction of the courts, both state and Federal, of that as to all matters and disputes arising out 
of this Work Order. Purchaser further agrees to waive trial by jury for all such matters and disputes. 
  
The rights of thyssenkrupp Elevator under this Proposal shall be cumulative and the failure on the part of the 
thyssenkrupp Elevator to exercise any rights given hereunder shall not operate to forfeit or waive any of said rights and 
any extension, indulgence or change by thyssenkrupp Elevator in the method, mode or manner of payment or any of its 
other rights shall not be construed as a waiver of any of its rights under this Proposal. In the event any portion of this 
Proposal is deemed invalid or unenforceable by a court of law, such finding shall not affect the validity or enforceability of 
any other portion of this Proposal. 
  
In no event shall thyssenkrupp Elevator be responsible for liquidated, consequential, indirect, incidental, exemplary, and 
special damages. 
  
This Proposal shall be considered as having been drafted jointly by Purchaser and thyssenkrupp Elevator and shall not be 
construed or interpreted against either Purchaser or thyssenkrupp Elevator by reason of either Purchaser or thyssenkrupp 
Elevator's role in drafting same. 
  
Certificates of Workmen's Compensation, Bodily Injury and Property Damage liability Insurance coverage will be furnished 
to Purchaser upon request. thyssenkrupp Elevator complies with provisions of Executive Orders 11246, 11375, 11758, 
Section 503 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1993, Vietnam Era Veteran’s Readjustment Act of 1974, 38 U.S.C. 4212 and 41 
CFR Chapter 60. thyssenkrupp Elevator supports Equal Employment Opportunity and Affirmative Actions Compliance 
programs. 



 
  

  
                    MODERNIZATION PROPOSAL 

Curry County - Jail - Mod 
  

  

 2018-2-466399 | ACIA-1DSMRHM  
  Page 9 

  
  

Acceptance 
  
Purchaser's acceptance of this Proposal and its approval by an authorized manager of thyssenkrupp Elevator will 
constitute exclusively and entirely the agreement between the parties for the goods and services herein described and full 
payment of the sum of Sixty Five Thousand Six Hundred Thirty Seven Dollars ($65,637.00). 

  
All other prior representations or regarding this work, whether written or verbal, will be deemed to be merged herein and 
no other changes in or additions to this Proposal will be recognized unless made in writing and properly executed by both 
parties as a change order. Should Purchaser's acceptance be in the form of a purchase order or other similar document, 
the provisions of this Proposal will exclusively govern the relationship of the parties with respect to this transaction. No 
agent or employee shall have the authority to waive or modify any of the terms of this Proposal without the prior written 
approval of an authorized thyssenkrupp Elevator manager. 

  

thyssenkrupp Elevator Corporation: 
     (PURCHASER): 

  
            

By: 
  

    
By: 

  \S1 
  

  

  
(Signature of thyssenkrupp Elevator Representative) 

  
    

(Signature of Authorized Individual) 
  

  

  
 Matthew Olson  

Account Manager 
matt.olson@thyssenkrupp.com  

+1 541 6062861  
  

  

    
  

 Eric Hanson  
  

  

      
(Print or Type Name) 

  
  

      
  

  
  

      
(Print or Type Title) 

  
  

  
02-06-2018 

  
    

  
\\date1\\ 

  

  

  
 (Date of Submission) 

  
    

(Date of Acceptance) 
  

  

  
thyssenkrupp Elevator Corporation Approval 

  
  

  
        

       \S2 
_________________________                          ______________________________________ 

(Date of Approval)                                         (Signature of Branch Representative) 
  

                                                                          Tawnya Randall  
                                                                          Service Sales Manager  

  

  

  



 
  

      

  

 

SCHEDULING AND PRODUCTION 
REQUEST FOR PAYMENT 
  

  
Please Remit To: 
  

  
thyssenkrupp Elevator Corporation 
Attn: Accounts Receivable Dept. 
1265 E Fort Union Blvd Ste 350  
Cottonwood Heights, UT 84047-5624 
  

  
Attn: 

  Eric Hanson  
  

  
  
  

  
  

 ,   
  

  
 
  

Date 
  Terms 

  Reference ID 
  Customer Reference # / PO 

  
  

February 06, 2018  
  Immediate 

  ACIA-1DSMRHM  
  

  

  
 
  

Total Contract Price: 
  

  
$65,637.00  
  

  
Engineering / Pre Prod / Shop Drawings 
/ Submittals: 
  

(50% ) 
  $32,818.50  

  

  
Amount Due upon Acceptance: 
  

  
$32,818.50  
  

  

For inquiries regarding your contract or services provided by thyssenkrupp Elevator, please contact your local account 
manager at +1 541 6062861. To make a payment by phone, please call 801-449-8505 with the reference information 
provided below. 

  
Thank you for choosing thyssenkrupp Elevator. We appreciate your business. 

  
Please detach the below section and provide along with payment. 
  
        

Remit To: 
  

  
Customer Name: 

    Curry County Courthouse  
  thyssenkrupp Elevator 

Attn: Accounts Receivable Dept. 
1265 E Fort Union Blvd Ste 350, 
Cottonwood Heights UT 84047-
5624 

  

  
Location Name: 

    CURRY COUNTY COURTHOUSE  
  

  
Customer Number: 

    69755  
  

  

  
Reference ID: 

    ACIA-1DSMRHM  
  

    

  
Remittance Amount: 

    $32,818.50  
  

    

  
  



ThyssenKrupp Elevator Americas

HYDRAULIC MODERNIZATION

M O D s o l u t i o n s



More than 30 performance-optimizing features provide a total solution that consumes less energy and uses superior 

materials. With our H-Power modernization, there is no need to replace your entire hydraulic elevator system. 

PERFORMANCE. EFFICIENCY. RELIABILITY.

1 2

3 4

5 6Typically, the door operator causes the most trouble 

calls. Ours has an on-board diagnostic service tool 

resulting in consistent operation and fewer shutdowns 

and service callbacks. A linear door operator is also 

available on certain models.

DOOR OPERATOR

Our digital-controlled system has diagnostic 

capabilities for easier troubleshooting. 

NON-PROPRIETARY USER-INTERFACE TOOLS 

Unrestricted access for on-board adjusting and 

troubleshooting keeps trouble calls short.

BATTERY LOWERING UNIT This device prevents 

entrapments and provides supplemental power  

to the controller in case of an outage. It also 

eliminates the need for a costly power generator.

SOLID STATE STARTER Energy-efficient motor 

starter minimizes power surges and provides 

smooth, quiet and reliable operation.

ELEVATOR POSITIONING ENCODER Teflon-

coated, perforated tape that runs the length of the 

hoistway, digitally communicates the elevator’s 

location. This provides a safe and level landing for 

passengers when boarding and exiting.

TAC CONTROLLER1 2

3 4

5 6

Our stainless steel fixture line includes car operating 

panels, hall fixtures and car riding lanterns that improve 

elevator appearance and functionality. Fixtures are also 

easy to install, do not damage the walls and are in full 

compliance with U.S. and Canadian fire service codes.

FUSION FIXTURES

1 2

3 4

5 6

This key component reduces noise and vibration during 

operation—allowing for a quiet and smooth ride. The 

compact design uses less materials to construct and 

takes up less space. Furthermore, precise operation 

of the unit increases leveling accuracy and improves 

passenger safety.

POWER UNIT (OPTIONAL)1 2

3 4

5 6

Our cable and hoistway wiring system utilizes 

advanced CAN-BUS technology, which communicates 

with multiple devices through one wire. This provides 

safer, more efficient operations and maintenance. It 

also speeds installation and troubleshooting, as well as 

uses less wiring materials and other resources.

WIRING PACKAGE

1 2

3 4

5 6

Ask your ThyssenKrupp Elevator representative about 

our Advantage Packages that make the H-Power 

modernization process as quick and convenient as 

possible for you and your tenants.

Front and Rear Openings

Up to 8 Stops 

Power Supply: 200-208V, 220-240V, 

460-480V, 575-600V, 50/60 HZ AC, 

60 HP Max

Speeds: Up to 200 fpm

Capacity: 1200 to 5000 lbs. Cars in 

group can have different capacities

Travel: Up to 60'-0" 



All illustrations and specifications are based on information in effect at time of publication approval. ThyssenKrupp Elevator reserves the right to change 

specifications or design and to discontinue items without prior notice or obligation.   Copyright © 2015 ThyssenKrupp Elevator Corporation. CA License #651371

ThyssenKrupp Elevator Americas  •  2600 Network Blvd., Ste. 450, Frisco, TX 75034  •  Phone (877) 230-0303  •  thyssenkruppelevator.com 

 version 04.15

TAC CONTROLLER 

– Digital controls

– Simplex or group operations

– On-board diagnostics

– Solid state starter

– Battery lowering

– Tenant security

– Local code compliance

– Limit switches (if required by local code)

– Leveling accuracy: +/- ½ inch (13 mm)

POWER UNIT (optional)

– Submersible design

– Exclusive TKE i-2® control valve

– Motor from 5 to 60 HP

– Oil flow silencer

DOOR OPERATOR 

– Closed-loop encoder feedback

– On-board diagnostics

– MicroLight electronic door detector

TAPE SELECTOR

– Elevator position digitally communicated

 to TAC controller

FIXTURES 

– Car operating panel

– Digital position indicator

– ADA-compliant hands-free phone

– Emergency light

– Braille

– Code-compliant signage

– Surface-mounted hall fixtures with

 fire service

– Surface-mounted main floor digital

 position indicator (optional)

– Car riding lantern

– Hoistway access fixtures

WIRING PACKAGE 

– Traveling cable

– Hoistway wiring

SAFETY 

– Car top railing where applicable

– Car top exit switches

H-POWER PERFORMANCE PACKAGE FEATURES:



 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 PO Box 427   | Klamath Falls, OR 97601  | CCB# 199734 | ESB# 9253 
We are committed to sound service and fair prices with a sincere approach. 
 
 
MODERNIZATION PROPOSAL  

 

January 29, 2018 

 

Curry County 

Attn: Eric 

450 N Ellensburg Ave 

Gold Beach, OR 97444 

 
 

RE: Elevator Modernization – Curry County Jail 

Straight Up Elevator Co. proposes to provide labor and materials to modernize, One (1) Elevator – located at: 

Curry County Jail 

29808 Colvin St.  

Gold Beach, OR 97444 

 
Modernization: 

Straight Up Elevator Co. will upgrade the elevator specified above, with A17.1 ASME 2013 upgrades to improve 

the safety and reliability of the elevator. 

 

1. Install new SmartRise Controller – non-proprietary microprocessor controlled ASME A17.1 2013 compliant 

including fire service Phase 1 and Phase 2 

2. Install new GAL MOVFR door operator 

3. Install new door detector edge 

4. Install new Innovation fixtures 

5. Install new code compliant surge valve and shutoff valve 

6. Install new jack packing 

7. Includes state required permit and inspection 

 

Option to add new pump unit - $5,000 Add 

Option to add Battery Lowering - $1,500 Add 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Jack Replacement Exclusions: (If Applicable) 

Special Conditions: Jack Hole and Well Casing Clause 

 

Suction truck and disposal to clean jack hole is not included in this price. 

The quoted price is based on the existing jack hole being plumb and cased or jacketed to prevent hole 

collapse once the existing jack is removed. The existing jack hole must be clear of rock, water, concrete, 

debris or any other underground condition which hinders us from freely pulling the existing jack or 

installing the new jack or which alters the method required to complete the project.  

Purchaser agrees to provide a safe, accessible storage area for placement of D.O.T. 55 gallon containers 

for the purpose of spoils containment. Any spoils or water testing by others or delays due to such testing 

are not included in this proposal. 

The hiring of a disposal company/suction truck is the responsibility of Purchaser, and MUST be discussed 

prior to any material being ordered or work being scheduled. Straight Up Elevator Co. will NOT provide 

any environmental services and assumes NO responsibility and/or liability in any way whatsoever for 

spoils or other contamination that may be present as a result of the cylinder breach and/or other conditions 

present on the work site. 

For the purpose of providing this estimate, we assume no unusual conditions as outlined above. If 

necessitated by unusual conditions, a proposal for additional labor and materials shall be submitted to 

Purchaser for approval prior to performance of additional work. Straight Up Elevator Co. shall not be 

responsible for delays due to such causes. Written authorization will be required for any labor or materials 

required beyond this original proposal amount. 

 

Modernization Exclusions: 

Work required by others if applicable to your equipment: 

1. Heat and smoke sensors at each floor, elevator equipment room, elevator pit and overhead- with wire 

brought to elevator controller. 

2. Shunt trip disconnect in elevator machine room if required. 

3. Elevator equipment room air conditioner to maintain temperature between 65 and 95 degrees. 

4. All required building electrical and lighting requirements. 

5. Any cutting including: cutouts to accommodate hall signal fixtures; patching and painting of walls, floors or 

partitions; finish painting of entrance doors and frames. 

6. Operating elevator for other trades is not included in this bid and will be billed at Straight Up Elevator Co.’s 

standard billing rate. 

7. Crane time is not included in this proposal price. 

 

 

Preparatory Work Not Included in Elevator Contract (May or May Not Apply): 

 A properly framed and enclosed legal hoistway including venting as required by the governing code or 

authority.  
 Suitable ventilation and cooling equipment, if required to maintain the machine room temperature between 

32˚ and 104˚F or 40˚C. The relative humidity should not exceed 90% non-condensing. 



 Dry pit reinforced to sustain vertical forces on car and counterweight rails and impact loads from the car and 

counterweight buffers. 

 Where access to a pit over 3 feet 0 inches in depth is by means of the lowest hoistway entrance, vertical iron 

ladder extending 42 inches minimum above sill of access door. 

 Any cutting, including cutouts to accommodate hall signal fixtures, patching and painting of walls, floors or 

partitions together with finish painting of entrance doors and frames. 

 At no expense to us, others are to provide a dedicated (non PBX) touch-tone business telephone line 

terminated in the machine room.  

 Provide a fused disconnect switch or shunt breaker for each elevator per the National Electrical Code with 

feeder or branch wiring to controller. Size to suit elevator contractor. 

 Provide a 120 volt, AC, 15amp, single phase power supply with fused SPST disconnect switch for each 

elevator, with feeder wiring to each controller for car lights. 

 Provide a separate 120 volt, AC, 15amp, single phase power supply with fused SPST disconnect switch for 

each elevator, with feeder wiring to each controller for our lights. 

 Suitable light and convenience outlets in machine room with light switches located within 18 inches of lock 

jamb side of machine room door. 

 Convenience outlet and light fixture in pit with switch located adjacent to the access door. 

 Provide heat, smoke and products of combustion sensing device with dry N/C contact located as required 

with wiring from the sensing device to each elevator controller. 

 Should operation of the elevators be required on standby power, others are to provide a standby power unit 

and means for starting it with delivery to the elevator power to operate one or more elevators at a time at full 

rated speed. Provide a transfer switch for each feeder for switching from normal power to standby power 

and a contact on each transfer switch closed on normal power supply with two wired from this contact to 

one elevator controller. 

 Guarding and protecting the hoistway during construction. The protection of the hoistway shall include solid 

panels surrounding each hoistway opening at each floor, a minimum of 48 inches in height. Hoistway 

guards to be erected, maintained and removed by others. All electrical power for light, tools, hoists, etc. 

during erection as well as electric current for starting, testing and adjusting the elevator. 

 Provide a safe and dry on-site storage area for elevator material. 

 Flooring by other. 

Purchaser agrees to provide a safe, accessible storage area for placement of D.O.T. 55 gallon containers for the 

purpose of spoils containment. Any spoils or water testing by others or delays due to such testing are not included in 

this proposal. 

Bonding: Should a performance, payment, or other bond be required for this project, an additional amount of 3% 

of the base price shall be added to the overall proposal price for each bond required. 

For the purpose of providing this estimate, we assume no unusual conditions as outlined above. If necessitated by 

unusual conditions, a proposal for additional labor and materials shall be submitted to Purchaser for approval prior 

to performance of additional work. Straight Up Elevator Co. shall not be responsible for delays due to such causes. 

Written authorization will be required for any labor or materials required beyond this original proposal amount. 

Lead time for materials approximately 12-14 weeks. Installation time approximately 5 weeks. 

Straight Up Elevator Co. guarantees the materials and workmanship of the elevator equipment to be first-

class and will furnish any defective parts, labor included, for Twelve (12) months following final acceptance. 

Damage caused by improper use, or vandalism is not warranted.  

It is understood that all work will be done during the regular working hours of the trade, in a professional manner, 

and we are to have the uninterrupted use of the elevator while doing this work. Workmen’s Compensation and 



Public Liability Insurance will be enforced by us. It is expressly understood and agreed that all verbal agreements 

are void and that the acceptance of the proposal shall constitute the contract for material and work specified above. 

Any changes to this contract must be made in writing signed by both parties. 

Payment Terms are as Follows:  50% of Proposed Price Upon Approval and Acceptance of Proposal 

     25% of Proposed Price Upon Material or Equipment Delivery 

25% of Proposed Price Upon Passing Inspection, (The elevator will be 

turned over to Purchaser for use after final payment is made.) 

This proposal is submitted for acceptance within 30 days from date executed by Straight Up Elevator Co. Please 

return a signed copy of the proposal; we will then contact you for scheduling. 

 

Thank you for this opportunity to earn your business. 

Sincerely, 

Heather Schriver 

Heather Schriver, CFO 

Straight Up Elevator Co. 

PO Box 427 

Klamath Falls, OR 97601 

541-891-9190 

heather@straightupelevator.com 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Authorization for elevator modernization located at:   
 

Curry County Jail 

29808 Colvin St.  

Gold Beach, OR 97444 

 

TOTAL PRICE TO MODERNIZE ONE ELEVATOR:  $47,900.00 

Option to add new pump unit - $5,000 Add  ________ 

Option to add Battery Lowering - $1,500 Add  ________ 

 

 

Signed and Accepted ______________20____          Approved and Accepted by,  

Purchaser:_____________________________          Straight Up Elevator Co. 

By:__________________________________           Approved and Accepted______________20___ 

         Signature of Authorized Official                        By:___________________________________  

Title:_________________________________             

 

 

 

Straight Up Elevator Co. is licensed, bonded and insured. 

mailto:heather@straightupelevator.com


©Otis Elevator Company, 2011 All Rights Reserved LiNX Form 421 (04/01/12) Proposal#: QHH180205133759 
Page 1 of 11

O
tis Service and R

epair O
rder 

DATE: 02/05/2018

TO:
Curry County
PO Box 746
Gold Beach, OR  97444

EQUIPMENT LOCATION:
Curry County Jail 
94235 Moore Street
Gold Beach, OR  97444

FROM:
Otis Elevator Company
7216 Sw Durham Road, Suite 900
Portland, OR  97224

Patrick Hollinger, Territory Manager
Phone: (775) 250-6821
Fax:     (860) 353-3608

PROPOSAL NUMBER: QHH180205133759

MACHINE NUMBER(S) : C70930 (Jail Elevator)

We will provide labor and material to furnish and install on the above referenced machine(s) the following:

As new, rapidly changing technology is increasingly being used in the manufacture of elevators, component life cycle is 
becoming a greater issue for elevators. Our records indicate that you currently have components in your system that are 
no longer in production. At Otis, we have made it our priority to engineer solutions for component obsolescence. This 
proposal addresses your elevator components of concern.

OTIS HYDROACCEL HYDRAULIC CONTROL SYSTEM MODERNIZATION & 
SINGLE BOTTOM CYLINDER REPLACEMENT

We propose to furnish labor and material to provide a hydraulic microprocessor-based control system.  It is designed to 
meet the needs of modernizing hydraulic elevators.  The system is integrated by communications over serial links and 
discrete wiring. The software dispatches elevators based upon real-time response to actual demands on the elevator(s). 

DUTY

The present capacity and speed will be retained.

TRAVEL

The present travel will be retained.

STOPS AND OPENINGS

The present stops and openings will be retained.

POWER SUPPLY 

The present power supply of will be retained and confirmed. The new equipment will be arranged for this power supply.



©Otis Elevator Company, 2011 All Rights Reserved LiNX Form 421 (04/01/12) Proposal#: QHH180205133759
Page 2 of 11

O
tis Service and R

epair O
rder  

SOLID STATE STARTER 

A new solid-state starter will be provided. It will be of the same power requirement and starting configuration as 
presently exists.  

POWER UNIT 

The existing power unit will be replaced with a new submersible power unit. The new power unit consists of a positive 
displacement pump, motor, integral 4-coil control valve, oil tank and muffler. The pump and motor are submerged and 
are mounted to the tank with rubber isolators to reduce vibration and noise. A muffler is provided to dissipate pulsations 
and noise from the flow of hydraulic fluid. The valve consists of up, up leveling, down and down leveling controls along 
with manual lowering and a pressure relief valve. Seismic rupture valve will be put in the pit of the elevator.

AUTOMATIC SELF-LEVELING 

The elevator shall be provided with automatic self-leveling that shall bring the elevator car level with the floor landings, 
no more than +/- 1/2" regardless of load or direction of travel.  The automatic self-leveling shall correct for overtravel or 
undertravel.

CONTROLLER

A microprocessor-based control system shall be provided to perform all the functions of safe elevator motion and 
elevator door control.  This shall include all the hardware required to connect, transfer and interrupt power, and protect 
the motor against overloading.  The system shall also perform group operational control.

Each controller cabinet containing memory equipment shall be properly shielded from line pollution.  The 
microcomputer system shall be designed to accept reprogramming with minimum system downtime.

OPERATION

Operation shall be automatic by means of the car and landing buttons.  Stops registered by momentary actuation of the 
car or landing buttons shall be made in the order in which the landings are reached in each direction of travel after the 
buttons have been actuated.  All stops shall be subject to the respective car or landing button being actuated sufficiently 
in advance of the arrival of the car at that landing to enable the stop to be made.  The direction of travel for an idle car 
shall be established by the first car or landing button actuated.

“UP” landing calls shall be answered while the car is traveling in the up direction and “DOWN” landing calls shall be 
answered while the car is traveling down.  The car shall reverse after the uppermost or lowermost car or landing call has 
been answered, then proceed to answer car calls and landing calls registered in the opposite direction of travel.

If the car without registered calls arrives at a floor where both up and down hall calls are registered, it shall initially 
respond to the hall call in the direction that the car was traveling.  If no car call or hall call is registered for further travel 
in that direction, the car shall close its doors and immediately reopen them in response to the hall call in the opposite 
directions.  Direction lanterns, if furnished, shall indicate the change of direction when the doors reopen.

An independent service switch shall be provided in the car operating panel which, when actuated, shall cancel previously 
registered car calls, disconnect the elevator from the hall buttons and allow operation from the car buttons only.

A car arriving at a floor to park shall not open its doors.  Cars shall open their doors only when stopping in response to a 
car or hall call.

If for any reason the doors are prevented from closing and the car is unable to respond to a hall call, it shall lose its zone 
assignment and the hall call shall be transferred to the other car.

A car, without registered car calls, arriving at a floor where both up and down hall calls are registered shall initially 
respond to the hall call in the direction that the car was traveling.  If no car or hall call is registered for further travel in 
that direction, the car shall close its doors and immediately reopen them in response to the hall call in the opposite 
direction.  Direction lanterns, if furnished, shall indicate the change of direction when the doors reopen.



©Otis Elevator Company, 2011 All Rights Reserved LiNX Form 421 (04/01/12) Proposal#: QHH180205133759
Page 3 of 11

O
tis Service and R

epair O
rder  

When the Independent Service switch in the car operating panel is actuated, that elevator shall be disconnected from the 
hall buttons and shall operate independently from the car buttons only.

INDEPENDENT SERVICE

When the Independent Service switch in the car operating panel is actuated, it shall cancel previously registered car calls, 
disconnect the elevator from the hall buttons, and allow operation from the car buttons only.  Door operation shall occur 
only after actuation of the “DOOR CLOSE” button.

SPECIAL EMERGENCY SERVICE

Special Emergency Service operation shall be provided in compliance with the latest revision of the ASME/ANSI A17.1 
Code.

Special Emergency Service Phase I to return the elevator (s) non-stop to a designated floor shall be initiated by an 
elevator smoke detector system or a keyswitch provided in a lobby fixture.

If required, the smoke detector system is to be furnished by others.  The elevator contractor shall provide input 
connections on the elevator controller to receive signals from the smoke detector system.

A keyswitch in the car shall be provided for in-car control of each elevator when on Phase II of Special Emergency 
Service.

If an elevator is on independent service when the elevators are recalled on Phase I operation, a buzzer shall sound in the 
car and a jewel shall be illuminated, subject to applicable codes.

INSPECTION OPERATION
 
For inspection purposes, an enabling keyswitch shall be provided in the car operating panel to permit operation of the 
elevator from on top of the car and to make car and hall buttons inoperative.

On top of the car an operating fixture shall be provided containing continuous pressure “UP” and “DOWN” buttons, an 
emergency stop button, and an inspection-initiating switch.  This switch makes the fixture operable and, at the same 
time, makes the door operator and car and hall buttons inoperable.

APPLIED CAR OPERATING PANEL 

An applied car operating panel shall be furnished.  The panel shall contain a bank of illuminated buttons marked to 
correspond with the landings served, an emergency call button, emergency stop button or switch, door open and door 
close buttons, and a light switch.  The emergency call button shall be connected to a bell that serves as an emergency 
signal.  A fan switch, if optional fan is provided, shall also be located in the car operating panel. All car operating panel 
lamps shall be the low-voltage long life lamps.

HOISTWAY ACCESS SWITCH 

An enabling keyswitch shall be provided in the car operating panel to render all car and hall buttons inoperative and to 
permit operation of the elevator by means of an access keyswitch adjacent to the hoistway entrance at the access landing.  
The movement of the car away from access landing, other than the lower terminal, by means of the access keyswitch at 
the landing shall be limited in travel and direction to that as specified for the upper landing in the latest revisions of the 
ASME/ANSI A17.1 Code.

ADA ELEVATOR EMERGENCY PHONE

Provision shall be made in the elevator cab for the installation of an ADA approved telephone. We propose to furnish 
and install a new ADA elevator emergency phone.  The ADA elevator emergency phone is a telephone, which enables 
communication between persons in the elevator and a 24-hour answering service.

The phone will be mounted in a telephone box or surface mounted in the elevator cab.  It will automatically dial a 
preprogrammed number and will inform the answering service of the elevator location via prerecorded digital voice 
communication.  After disclosing the elevator location, the phone will allow two-way voice communication.  The phone 



©Otis Elevator Company, 2011 All Rights Reserved LiNX Form 421 (04/01/12) Proposal#: QHH180205133759
Page 4 of 11

O
tis Service and R

epair O
rder  

contains two light-emitting diodes -- one that indicates the call is in progress and another that indicates the call has been 
acknowledged.  After receiving acknowledgment of the call from the answering service, a deaf/mute person can signal 
the answering service by reactivating the call button.  The phone can be easily programmed and allows incoming calls to 
be received.  The telephone will be furnished and installed in accordance with the ASME A17.1 Safety Code for 
Elevators and Escalators, and is registered with the FCC.

CAR POSITION INDICATOR  

A new car position indicator shall be installed in the new car station.  The position of the car in the hoistway shall be 
shown by illumination of the indication corresponding to the landing at which the car is stopped or passing. All lamps 
shall be low-voltage, longer life lamps.

AUDIBLE SIGNAL

An audible signal shall sound in the car to tell passengers that the car is either stopping or passing a landing served by 
the elevator.

"IN-CAR" DIRECTION LANTERN

New direction lantern(s) shall be mounted in or near the car entrance jamb(s), visible from the corridor, which when the 
car stops and the doors are opening, shall indicate the direction in which the car will travel.  A chime shall also be 
furnished on the car, which will sound once for the “UP” direction and twice for the “DOWN” direction as the doors are 
opening.

EMERGENCY CAR LIGHTING

An emergency power unit employing a 12-volt sealed rechargeable battery and a totally static circuit shall be provided.  
The power unit shall illuminate the elevator car and provide current to the alarm bell in the event of normal power 
failure.  The equipment shall comply with the requirements of the latest revision of the ASME/ANSI A17.1 Code.

HALL BUTTONS

New hall buttons shall be installed at each terminal landing.

When a call is registered by momentary pressure on a landing button, that button shall become illuminated and remain 
illuminated until the call is answered.  Hall button lamps shall be low-voltage, long life lamps.

HOISTWAY OPERATING DEVICES 

Normal terminal stopping devices shall be provided to slow down and stop the car automatically at the terminal landings 
and to automatically cut off the power and apply the brake, should the car travel beyond the terminal landings.

CAR GUIDES AND CAR FRAME

The existing car guides shall be retained. They shall be thoroughly inspected. Any worn parts will be replaced by the 
original manufacture parts or equal. The existing car frame shall be retained.

PLATFORM AND FLOORING

The current platform will be retained. The present flooring will be retained.

EMERGENCY RETURN UNIT

We propose to furnish and install an Emergency Return Unit (ERU) providing auxiliary power to your hydraulic
elevator. In the event of a primary power failure or a single phase condition, the ERU is designed to automatically return 
the elevator to its lowest landing at normal speed and allow all passengers to exit safely.

Four to six seconds after a power failure has been sensed, an electronic timer in the ERU is designed to turn on an



©Otis Elevator Company, 2011 All Rights Reserved LiNX Form 421 (04/01/12) Proposal#: QHH180205133759
Page 5 of 11

O
tis Service and R

epair O
rder  

inverter (converting DC battery power into elevator operating voltages). Six seconds later, the device is designed to send 
a signal to the microprocessor to disengage the hall and car floor buttons, close the door(s), and open the valve to return 
the car to the lowest landing at normal speed. 

When the car reaches the lowest landing, the ERU is designed to open the door(s) for a preset time. The device is also 
designed to allow the DOOR OPEN button to continue to operate normally to allow passengers to exit safely. After all 
passengers have exited, the car remains parked with the door(s) closed. To preserve battery life, the ERU is designed to 
turn off after four minutes.

If all elevator controls are in normal position, the elevator will be able to resume normal operation when building power 
is restored. Once main power has returned, it takes from six to 24 hours for the batteries to become fully charged, 
depending on the amount of power consumed in performing an ERU operation.

Work by Others for ERU Install
Others are to provide an auxiliary contact on the main line and shunt trip disconnect switches and run two #18 wires
from this each auxiliary contact to the elevator controller such that when the main line disconnect or shunt trip switch is 
in the ON position, the auxiliary contact is closed and opens mechanically when the main line or shunt trip disconnect 
switches is are placed in the OFF position.

AT400 CLOSED LOOP DOOR OPERATOR  

A new closed loop door operator shall be installed.
Doors on the car and at the hoistway entrances shall be power operated by means of a closed loop door operator mounted 
on top of the car. The door operator is a fully closed loop system designed to give consistent door performance with 
changes in temperature, wind or minor debris in the door track. The system continually monitors door speed and position 
and adjusts it accordingly to match the pre-determined profile.

Door operation shall be automatic at each landing with door opening being initiated as the car arrives at the landing and 
closing taking place after expiration of an adjustable time interval. An electric car door contact shall prevent the elevator 
from operating unless the car door is in the closed position.

Door close shall be arranged to start after a minimum time, consistent with Handicap Requirements. Doors shall be 
arranged to remain open for an adjustable time period sufficient to meet ADA requirements. The time interval for which 
the elevator doors remain open when a car stops at a landing shall be independently adjustable for response to car calls 
and response to hall calls.

INTERLOCKS 

New elevator door interlocks will be installed.

OPTIGUARD DOOR PROTECTION DEVICE

A solid state, infrared passenger protection device shall be installed on the car door. This device provides 56 infrared 
light beams that create an invisible safety net across the elevator entrance.  In addition, Optiguard adds a triangular 
coverage area to protect passengers approaching or exiting the landing door zone or entryway. The Optiguard system 
aims 12 additional infrared beams out into the entryway at a nominal 30 degree angle away from the direction of door 
travel.  If these beams strike an object in the middle of the entryway, some of the light is reflected into special photo-
diode receivers which scan into the entryway at a nominal 30 degree angle.  If the receivers detect enough light, a 
reversal signal is generated to open the doors.  The maximum projection of these 12 additional beams at any  time is one-
third of the door opening width.

If any beam is interrupted, Optiguard's door-reversal signal will cause the elevator doors to reopen instantly without 
touching the passenger.  After a car stop is made, the door shall remain open for a predetermined interval before closing.  
If, while the door is closing, the matrix of invisible light beams is interrupted by a passenger entering or leaving the car, 
the door shall stop and reopen, after which the door shall again start to close.

Graceful degradation operation is also included.  If one or two isolated beams (up to a maximum of 36 beams) are 
interrupted, Optiguard's door-reversal signal will cause the doors to reopen instantly.  If the beams remain blocked for 
more than 80 seconds, the beams are considered permanently blocked.  Optiguard then ignores these blockages and the 
detector will continue to operate as it would without any blockages.



©Otis Elevator Company, 2011 All Rights Reserved LiNX Form 421 (04/01/12) Proposal#: QHH180205133759
Page 6 of 11

O
tis Service and R

epair O
rder  

If three or more adjacent beams are interrupted, Optiguard’s door-reversal signal will cause the doors to reopen instantly.  
If they remain blocked for more than 80 seconds, they are considered permanently blocked.  The doors will then either 
remain open indefinitely, go into nudging mode or remain open for a specified period of time, depending on local codes 
and the door operating system.  The doors will remain in this mode until the blockage is corrected.

CAR ENCLOSURE AND CAR DOOR HANGER

The present car enclosure shall be retained. The present car door hanger will be retained and inspected for proper 
alignment. Any adjustment required will be accomplished.

HOISTWAY ENTRANCES AND HOISTWAY DOOR HANGER

The present hoistway entrances will be retained. The present hoistway door hanger will be retained and inspected for 
proper alignment. Any adjustment required will be accomplished.

PIT SWITCH

An emergency stop switch shall be located in the pit accessible from the pit access door. 

SPRING BUFFERS

New spring buffers will be installed with the new hydraulic cylinder.

WIRING

All new wiring and electrical interconnections shall comply with governing codes.  Insulated wiring shall have flame-
retardant and moisture-proof outer covering and shall be run in conduit, flexible tubing or electrical wireways.  Traveling 
cables shall be flexible and suitably suspended to relieve strain on individual conductors.

ENGINEERING DESIGN

All new material furnished will be specifically designed to operate with original elevator equipment being retained, thus 
assuring maximum performance and eliminating any divided responsibility.

SUPERSEDED MATERIAL

All material, removed or unused, not required in the modification will become the property of the Otis Elevator 
Company and we reserve the right to remove and retain it.

PERMITS AND INSPECTIONS

The elevator contractor shall furnish all licenses and permits and shall arrange for and make all required inspections and 
tests.

CODE

The elevator equipment shall be furnished and installed in accordance with the latest additions of the ASME/ANSI 
A17.1 Safety Code for Elevators and Escalators, An American National Standard, including the latest Supplement, and 
the Americans with Disabilities Act. The elevator equipment shall comply with all applicable state and  local codes.

WORK BY OTHERS

The following items must be performed by others and you agree to:

Provide suitable ventilation and cooling equipment, if required, to maintain the machine room ambient temperature 
between 32oF and 113oF.  The relative humidity should not exceed 95 percent non-condensing.

Provide electrical power for light, tools, hoists, etc. during installation as well as electrical current for starting, testing 
and adjusting the elevator.



©Otis Elevator Company, 2011 All Rights Reserved LiNX Form 421 (04/01/12) Proposal#: QHH180205133759
Page 7 of 11

O
tis Service and R

epair O
rder  

Provide a smoke detector system, located as required with wiring from the sensing devices to each elevator controller.

Do any required cutting, including cutouts to accommodate hall signal fixtures, patching and painting of walls, floors or 
partitions.

At no expense to us, others are to provide a dedicated (non-PBX) touch-tone business telephone line terminated in the 
machine room.

Provide a fused disconnect switch or circuit breaker for each elevator per the applicable National Electrical Code with 
feeder or branch wiring to controller. Size to suit elevator contractor.

Provide a 120 volt AC, 20 amp, single-phase power supply with fused SPST disconnect switch for each elevator with 
feeder wiring to each controller for car lights.

Provide a separate 120 volt AC, 15 amp, single-phase power supply with fused SPST disconnect switch with duplex 
outlets in the machine room and lobby or other applicable location, for power to each elevator video display panel and 
controller when display system is provided.

Provide a 120 volt AC, 15 amp, single-phase power supply with fused SPST disconnect switch with duplex outlets in the 
machine room or other locations as required for information display terminal and controller of information display when 
provided.  Also provide one (1) pair of shielded/twisted conductors between the terminal and the machine room.

Provide standby power unit and means for starting it that will deliver sufficient power to the elevator disconnect switches 
to operate one or more elevators at a time at full-rated speed.  Provide a transfer switch for each feeder for switching 
from normal power to standby power and a contact on each transfer switch closed on normal power supply with two 
wires from this contact to one elevator controller.  

Provide a safe and dry on-site storage area for elevator material.

Any modification or installation of lights and/or electrical outlets in the machine room and/or pit to be performed by 
others.

LIMITATIONS

Under no circumstances shall the Otis Elevator Company be liable for indirect, consequential, or special damages 
resulting from the installation or use of this product.



©Otis Elevator Company, 2011 All Rights Reserved LiNX Form 421 (04/01/12) Proposal#: QHH180205133759
Page 8 of 11

O
tis Service and R

epair O
rder  

HYDRAULIC CYLINDER REPLACEMENT

Remove the existing underground hydraulic single bottom cylinder, piston and cylinder head and replace with a new 
double bottom design cylinder with sealed PVC encasement, new piston and new cylinder head.

Benefits:
• Eliminate liability associated with potential injury/death caused by catastrophic cylinder failure resulting 

from undetected pinhole leaks in the cylinder
• Eliminate liability associated with potential environmental damage caused by oil leaking from pinhole(s) in 

the buried cylinder
• Eliminate risk related to the continued use of the deteriorating hydraulic cylinder
• Eliminate possibility of corrosion/electrolysis of the existing buried cylinder from naturally-occurring 

minerals in the ground and groundwater
• Warranty of up to twenty (20) years on product and workmanship defect.

General Scope Description and Provisions:

The new cylinder being proposed for installation is a sealed, double-bottom, PVC-protected design, which offers 
protection from corrosion, as well as permitting monitoring and evacuation of liquids to ensure the cylinder does not 
come in contact with water.  This design will also help contain oil in the unlikely event of a cylinder leak.  The sealed 
PVC protection can help protect your property against possible environmental contamination and associated clean-up 
costs and penalties.

In certain cases, the installation of the sealed PVC design cylinder may require significant additional work.  Such 
situations include:

1. When an existing well casing must be removed in order to achieve the proper clearance for the installation 
of the sealed PVC cylinder.

2. When such an installation would require modifications to the building or hoist way (i.e., the required drill 
rig does not fit in the building through an existing entrance or implies the need to move the existing rails).

The scope of work will include the following:

• Obtain all necessary permits
• Secure the elevator cab at a safe working height
• Remove the existing plunger
• Remove the existing cylinder
• Re-drill the existing cylinder hole (if necessary, see clarifications) and prepare it for installation of a new 

PVC-encased cylinder
• Any spoils will be removed from the job site (if necessary, see clarifications)
• Install A17.1-compliant PVC cylinder, type 1, grade 1 CPVC-1120, specifically designed for underground 

use
• Install a new double bottom cylinder with sealed PVC encasement and safety valve
• Plumb the cylinder to the vertical
• Install a new cylinder head
• Install new plunger
• Install new packing
• Install new pit channels and buffer springs
• Install new over speed seismic rupture valve
• Perform a full load safety test
• Assist the State of Oregon Elevator Inspector in his inspection
• Return the elevator to service
• NOTE:  Well casing installation is not anticipated to be needed, so it is not included in this proposal.

New Cylinder and Sealed PVC Protection Warranty:

The cylinder and sealed PVC protection used for this project is warranted against product and installation defect for the 
duration of an uninterrupted Otis full-coverage maintenance agreement, up to twenty (20) years. Otis Elevator would be 
required to maintain this elevator for the twenty (20) year warranty to be effective.



©Otis Elevator Company, 2011 All Rights Reserved LiNX Form 421 (04/01/12) Proposal#: QHH180205133759
Page 9 of 11

O
tis Service and R

epair O
rder  

Clarifications:

1. Cylinder Well Hole Drilling: The quote priced is based upon the existing jack hole being plumb and cased or 
jacketed to prevent hole collapse once the existing jack is removed. The existing jack hole must be clear of rock, water, 
concrete, debris or any other underground condition which hinders us from freely pulling the existing jack or installing 
the new jack or which alters the method required to complete the project. If we encounter such conditions and drilling 
becomes required, the project will stop and an additional proposal will be given with an amount for continuation. 

2. “Rock Clause” -- Cylinder Well Hole Drilling:  There will be an additional cost of $395.00 per hour (driller) 
plus Mechanic standby costs, as applicable, at Otis’s discounted rate of $300 per man hour, to drill the new hole if site 
conditions (such as rock, water or other unanticipated conditions) prevent completion of the hole drilling within sixteen 
(16) drilling hours.

3. Spoils Removal:  The spoils generated during the completion of this project (primarily during the drilling phase) 
must be removed from the site.  The spoils may or may not be contaminated, the contamination being attributed to the 
existing ground soil condition, oil introduced from a leak in the underground cylinder, or both. The removal of 
contaminated soil and drilling spoils must be performed by certified, authorized agents whose methods and processes are 
compliant with existing hazardous waste transportation and disposal laws.
The drilling subcontractor assumes responsibility for the proper removal of all spoils associated with the replacement of 
the piston/cylinder.  The legally-required manifest describing removed spoils will be provided upon completion of this 
work.  Otis will provide assistance coordinating the scheduling of the spoils removal, as necessary. 
Otis Elevator will also have a vacuum truck remove excess soil once the existing cylinder is removed. The vacuum truck 
company will be responsible for the spoils removal.

NOTES:

Proposal is valid for sixty (90) days.

All work is to be completed during the regular working hours of the elevator trade.

Where conditions require it, we will provide protection for floors, walls and the elevator entrances for the normal 
activities associated with this work.  Building protection associated with special or unusual drilling or excavation 
procedures is the responsibility of the building owner.

This proposal is based on the building owner agreeing to provide the following:

• Electric power for light, tools, hoists, welding, drilling rig, etc. required for the duration of this project.
• Full access to the work area for professionals completing this work during the agreed-upon work hours for 

the duration of the project.
• On-site storage (clear and in close proximity to the work area) for materials associated with the completion 

of the project, including cylinder, piston, oil, tools, etc. during the project.
• Permits required for the use of welding and gas-burning and cutting in the elevator hoist way.
• Deactivation and reactivation of all fire, smoke and/or combustion sensors in the work area that may be 

activated by the effects of the procedures required to complete this work.



©Otis Elevator Company, 2011 All Rights Reserved LiNX Form 421 (04/01/12) Proposal#: QHH180205133759
Page 10 of 11

O
tis Service and R

epair O
rder  

PRICE: $ 91,926.00
Ninety-one thousand nine hundred twenty-six dollars

This price is based on a fifty percent (50 %) downpayment in the amount of $ 45,963.00.  
This proposal, including the provisions printed on the last page(s), and the specifications and other provisions attached 
hereto shall, when accepted by you below and approved by our authorized representative, constitute the entire contract 
between us, and all prior representations or agreements not incorporated herein are superseded.

Submitted by: Patrick Hollinger
Title: Territory Manager
E-mail: patrick.hollinger@otis.com

Accepted in Duplicate

CUSTOMER
Approved by Authorized Representative

Otis Elevator Company
Approved by Authorized Representative

Date: Date:

Signed: Signed:

Print Name:  Print Name: Steven Sorensen

Title  Title General Manager

E-mail:  

Name of Company  

□  Principal, Owner or Authorized Representative of Principal or Owner

□ Agent:  ______________________________________  
(Name of Principal or Owner)



©Otis Elevator Company, 2011 All Rights Reserved LiNX Form 421 (04/01/12) Proposal#: QHH180205133759
Page 11 of 11

O
tis Service and R

epair O
rder  

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. This quotation is subject to change or withdrawal by us prior to acceptance by you.

2. The work shall be performed for the agreed price plus any applicable sales, excise or similar taxes as required by law. In addition to the agreed price, you shall pay to us 
any future applicable tax imposed on us, our suppliers or you in connection with the performance of the work described.

3. Payments shall be made as follows: A down payment of fifty percent (50 %) of the price shall be paid by you upon your signing of this document. Full payment shall be 
made on completion if the work is completed within a thirty day period. If the work is not completed within a thirty day period, monthly progress payments shall be made 
based on the value of any equipment ready or delivered, if any, and labor performed through the end of the month less a five percent (5%) retainage and the aggregate of 
previous payments. The retainage shall be paid when the work is completed. We reserve the right to discontinue our work at any time until payments shall have been made 
as agreed and we have assurance satisfactory to us that subsequent payments will be made when due. Payments not received within thirty (30) days of the date of invoice 
shall be subject to interest accrued at the rate of eighteen percent (18%) per annum or at the maximum rate allowed by applicable law, whichever is less. We shall also be 
entitled to reimbursement from you of the expenses, including attorney’s fees, incurred in collecting any overdue payments.

4. Our performance is conditioned upon your securing any required governmental approvals for the installation of any equipment provided hereunder and your providing our 
workmen with a safe place in which to work. Additionally, you agree to notify us if you are aware or become aware prior to the completion of the work of the existence of 
asbestos or other hazardous material in any elevator hoistway, machine room, hallway or other place in the building where Otis personnel are or may be required to perform 
their work. In the event it should become necessary to abate, encapsulate or remove asbestos or other hazardous materials from the building, you agree to be responsible for 
such abatement, encapsulation or removal, and in such event Otis shall be entitled to delay its work until it is determined to our satisfaction that no hazard exists and 
compensation for delays encountered if such delay is more than sixty (60) days. In any event, we reserve the right to discontinue our work in the building whenever in our 
opinion this provision is being violated.

5. Unless otherwise agreed in writing, it is understood that the work shall be performed during our regular working hours of our regular working days. If overtime work is 
mutually agreed upon and performed, an additional charge therefore, at our usual rates for such work, shall be added to the contract price. The performance of our work 
hereunder is conditioned on your performing the preparatory work and supplying the necessary data specified on the front of this proposal or in the attached specification, if 
any. Should we be required to make an unscheduled return to your site to begin or complete the work due to your request, acts or omissions, then such return visits shall be 
subject to additional charges at our then current labor rates.

6. Title to any material to be furnished hereunder shall pass to you when final payment for such material is received. In addition, we shall retain a security interest in all 
material furnished hereunder and not paid for in full. You agree that a copy of this Agreement may be used as a financing statement for the purpose of placing upon public 
record our interest in any material furnished hereunder, and you agree to execute a UCC -1 form or any other document reasonably requested by us for that purpose.

7. Except insofar as your equipment may be covered by an Otis maintenance or service contract, it is agreed that we will make no examination of your equipment other than 
that necessary to do the work described in this contract and assume no responsibility for any part of your equipment except that upon which work has been done under this 
contract.

8. Neither party shall be liable to the other for any loss, damage or delay due to any cause beyond either parties reasonable control, including but not limited to acts of 
government, strikes, lockouts, other labor disputes, fire, explosion, theft, weather damage, flood, earthquake, riot, civil commotion, war, mischief or act of God.

9. We warrant that all services furnished will be performed in a workmanlike manner. We also warrant that any equipment provided hereunder shall be free from defects in 
workmanship and material. Our sole responsibility under this warranty shall be at our option to correct any defective services and to either repair or replace any component 
of the equipment found to be defective in workmanship or material provided that written notice of such defects shall have been given to us by you within ninety (90) days 
after completion of the work or such longer period as may be indicated on the front of this form. All defective parts that are removed and replaced by us shall become our 
property. We do not agree under this warranty to bear the cost of repairs or replacements due to vandalism, abuse, misuse, neglect, normal wear and tear, modifications not 
performed by us, improper or insufficient maintenance by others, or any causes beyond our control. We shall conduct, at our own expense, the entire defense of any claim, 
suit or action alleging that, without further combination, the use by you of any equipment provided hereunder directly infringes any patent, but only on the conditions that (a) 
we receive prompt written notice of such claim, suit or action and full opportunity and authority to assume the sole defense thereof, including settlement and appeals, and all 
information available to you for such defense; (b) said equipment is made according to a specification or design furnished by us; and (c) the claim, suit or action is brought 
against you. Provided all of the foregoing conditions have been met, we shall, at our own expense, either settle said claim, suit or action or shall pay all damages excluding 
consequential damages and costs awarded by the court therein and, if the use or resale of such equipment is finally enjoined, we shall, at our option, (i) procure for you the 
right to use the equipment, (ii) replace the equipment with equivalent noninfringing equipment, (iii) modify the equipment so it becomes noninfringing but equivalent, or (iv) 
remove the equipment and refund the purchase price (if any) less a reasonable allowance for use, damage and obsolescence.

THE EXPRESS WARRANTIES SET FORTH IN THIS ARTICLE 9 ARE THE EXCLUSIVE WARRANTIES GIVEN; WE MAKE NO OTHER WARRANTIES 
EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, AND SPECIFICALLY MAKE NO WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR OF FITNESS FOR ANY PARTICULAR PURPOSE; AND 
THE EXPRESS WARRANTIES SET FORTH IN THIS ARTICLE ARE IN LIEU OF ANY SUCH WARRANTIES AND ANY OTHER OBLIGATION OR LIABILITY 
ON OUR PART.

10. Under no circumstances shall either party be liable for special, indirect, liquidated, or consequential damages in contract, tort, including negligence, warranty or 
otherwise, notwithstanding any indemnity provision to the contrary. Notwithstanding any provision in any contract document to the contrary, our acceptance is conditioned 
on being allowed additional time for the performance of the Work due to delays beyond our reasonable control. Your remedies set forth herein are exclusive and our liability 
with respect to any contract, or anything done in connection therewith such as performance or breach thereof, or from the manufacture, sale, delivery, installation, repair or 
use of any equipment furnished under this contract, whether in contract, in tort (including negligence), in warranty or otherwise, shall not exceed the price for the equipment 
or services rendered.

11. To the fullest extent permitted by law, you agree to hold us harmless, and defend us and indemnify us against any claim or suit for personal injury or property damage 
arising out of this contract unless such damage or injury arises from our sole negligence.

12. It is agreed that after completion of our work, you shall be responsible for ensuring that the operation of any equipment being furnished hereunder is periodically 
inspected. The interval between such inspections shall not be longer than what may be required by the applicable governing safety code. Notwithstanding any other 
provisions hereof, if any part delivered hereunder incorporates software, the transaction is not a sale of such software; rather, you are hereby granted merely a license to use 
such software solely for operating the equipment for which such part was ordered. By accepting delivery of such part, you agree not to copy or let others copy such software 
for any purpose whatsoever, to keep such software in confidence as a trade secret, and not to transfer possession of such part to others except as a part of a transfer of 
ownership of the equipment in which such part is installed, provided that you inform us in writing about such ownership transfer and the transferee agrees in writing to abide 
by the above license terms.

13. In furtherance of OSHA's directive contained in 29 C.F.R § 1910.147(f)(2)(i), which requires that a service provider (an "outside employer") and its customer (an "on-
site employer") must inform each other of their respective lock out/tag out ("LOTO") procedures whenever outside servicing personnel are to be engaged in control of 
hazardous energy activities on the customer's site, Otis incorporates by reference its mechanical LOTO procedures and its electrical LOTO procedures.  These procedures 
can be obtained at www.otis.com by (1) clicking on "The Americas" tab on the left side of the website; (2) choosing "US/English" to take you to the "USA" web page; (3) 
clicking on the "Otis Safety" link on the left side of the page; and (4) downloading the "Lockout Tagout Policy Otis 6.0" and "Mechanical Energy Policy Otis 7.0," both of 
which are in .pdf format on the right side of the website page.  Customer agrees that it will disseminate these procedures throughout its organization to the appropriate 
personnel who may interact with Otis personnel while Otis personnel are working on site at Customer's facility. 

14. This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding between the parties regarding the subject matter hereof and may not be modified by any terms on your order form or 
any other document, and supersedes any prior written or oral communication relating to the same subject. Any amendment or modifications to this Agreement shall not be 
binding upon either party unless agreed to in writing by an authorized representative of each party.

http://www.otis.com


CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM ROUTING SLIP 

FORM 10-001.1 Rev. 1-5-2018  
PART I – SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: RETURN TO BOC_OFFICE@CO.CURRY.OR.US 
PROPOSED AGENDA ITEM TITLE: ADA restroom project at Boice Cope 
 
 

TIMELY FILED    Yes ☐ No  ☐      2/6/18        
If  No, justification to include with next BOC Meeting  
 
AGENDA DATEa:  2/14/2018         DEPARTMENT: PArks       TIME NEEDED:   5    min 
(aSubmit by seven days prior to the next General Meeting ( eight days if a holiday falls within that seven day period)) 
 
MEMO ATTACHED       Yes  x  No ☐    If no memo, explain:  
 
 

CONTACT PERSON:  Jay Trost    PHONE/EXT:  3235     TODAY’S DATE: 2/6/18 
 

BRIEF BACKGROUND OR NOTE: (If no memo attached)  
   
FILES ATTACHED:     
(1) Lance Kessler Construction bid for project     
(2)       
(3)       
 
    
QUESTIONS: 
1.  Would this item be a departure from the Annual Budget if approved?    Yes ☐No x 
     (If Yes, brief detail)        
2.  Does this agenda item impact any other County department?   Yes ☐ No x 
     (If Yes, brief detail)       
3.  Does Agenda Item impact County personnel resources?    Yes  ☐ No  x 
      (If Yes, brief detail)       
INSTRUCTIONS ONCE SIGNED:   
 ☐No Additional Activity Required 

 OR        
 ☐File with County Clerk     Name:          
 ☐Send Printed Copy to:           Address:          
 ☐Email a Digital Copy to:     City/State/Zip:        

☐Other                   
         Phone:                 
cNote: Most signed documents are filed/recorded with the Clerk per standard process.  
PART III - FINANCE DEPARTMENT REVIEW  
EVALUATION CRITERIA 1-4: 
1. Confirmed Submitting Department’s finance-related responses Yes  ☐No☐     N/A ☐    
Comment:       
2. Confirmed Submitting Department’s personnel-related materials  Yes  ☐ No  ☐    N/A☐ 
    Comment:      
3. If job description, Salary Committee reviewed:         Yes ☐ No  ☐  N/A☐ 
4. If hire order requires a Personnel Action Form (PAF)?             Pending  ☐ N/A ☐ No  ☐ HR ☐    
PART IV – COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REVIEW 
☐ APPROVED FOR ________  BOC MEETING   ☐ Not Approved for BOC Agenda because  
      
LEGAL ASSESSMENT: Does this agenda item have a legal impact?                   Yes  ☐ No  ☐ 
  (If Yes, brief detail)  
ASSIGNED TO:     
PART V – BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS AGENDA APPROVAL  
COMMISSIONERS’ REQUEST TO ADD TO AGENDA:     
Commissioner Sue Gold     Yes ☐No  ☐ 
Commissioner Thomas Huxley   Yes  ☐ No  ☐ 
Commissioner Court Boice    Yes  ☐ No ☐      

mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us


Main Office: (541) 247-3302  Toll Free: (877) 739-4254  Facsimile: (541) 247-5000 
 

            
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Date:  02/06/2018 
 
 
Re:  Cover Letter for AGRS (ADA restroom project)   
 
 
 During the spring of 2017 the Curry County Parks was awarded a grant opportunity to 
update the restroom facilities at Boice Cope to meet ADA standards.  This grant is for 
150,000.00.  This includes the county match of 25 % or $37,500 that has been budgeted.   
 
 We have been actively searching bids with several contractors in the county and only one 
has responded.  The reasons for the lack of bids range from not being willing to travel to Boice 
Cope and not having the time due to projects already being scheduled out 18 months in 
advance.   
 
 Kessler Construction has been working diligently on this bid, and came in at the budgeted 
amount. Attached is an architectural outline provided by Oregon State Parks of the building that 
we are proposing to build.   
 
 Please consider approving this bid so construction can begin before the shoulder season 
comes.   
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted,   
 
 
Jay Trost 
 
 
 
 

Curry County Juvenile Department 
 
 
94235 Moore Street, Suite 231 
Gold Beach, Oregon  97444 
 
Jonathan J. Trost, Director 































Bid
Date

2/1/2018

Estimate #

1193

Name / Address

Boice cop park

Lance Kessler
Construction Inc.
PO Box 938
Brookings, OR 97415
ccb. 177733

P.O. No.

Bathroom remodel

Phone #

541-469-9616

Fax #

541-469-9616

E-mail

lancelaurenk@msn.com

Total

Item Description Total

100
This proposal Is to demo down boice cope park bathroom to the foundations and
rebuild.
We are proposing to fill out and obtain building permit, demo building down to
foundation, provide all building materials for framing and siding. build structure on
existing foundation and same layout, as per contractors drawings add a 6' X 33'
covered entry overhang with exposed cedar stained beams, black brackets, 3' high
rock Wayne coat at entry and 4 column bases, all other siding to be board and baton
16" on center. Roofing will be standing seam 12" on center metal. interior will have all
new wiring, light led fixtures, 2 bathroom heaters. New in wall plumbing new fixtures,
reuse filtration system, and pressure tanks. Interior finished will have tile floors going
up to a 3' Wayne coat on walls, walls to be plastic bathroom wall board, ceilings to be
T1-11 painted. open studs in utility room, plywood walls in storage room. all walls and
ceilings will be insulated. includes bathroom stalls, signs, levers. exterior patios add
broom finish concrete patio from building to sidewalk 33' wide.

Materials to be used
Siding
-Allura fiber cement siding panels with 1 X 3 forest wood batons
-hydro gap vapor barrier and window wraps
-116 vulkem caulking
-all exposed nails to be stainless steel all unexposed nails to be hot dipped galv.
Framing
-2 X 6 #2 fir exterior walls
-2 X 4 #2 fir interior walls
-1/2 CDX 5 ply wall and roof shear
-2 X 12 #2 fir rafters
-4 X 8 #2 fir door and window headers
-6 X 10 select cedar entry beams

150,000.00

Page 1



Bid
Date

2/1/2018

Estimate #

1193

Name / Address

Boice cop park

Lance Kessler
Construction Inc.
PO Box 938
Brookings, OR 97415
ccb. 177733

P.O. No.

Bathroom remodel

Phone #

541-469-9616

Fax #

541-469-9616

E-mail

lancelaurenk@msn.com

Total

Item Description Total

-6 X 6 select cedar entry posts
Roofing
-ASC skyline 12" standing seam 26 ga metal roofing with eve, gable, and vented
ridge metal
-tiger paw underlayment
Stone work
eldorado stone groutless, with 4 column caps, and wainscot top
Exterior doors
fiberglass, with jam savers, no threshold, rubber sweep bottom, single bore, 6 panel
with stainless steel locking levers
Windows
-Plygem white vinyl pro series, .30 UV, argon filled 8- 4'W X 1'6"H PIC, 4 4'W X
1'6"H Awning
insulation
R-21 exterior walls, R-11 interior walls, R-38 ceilings fiberglass batons
Plumbing
1 - Kohler K-991-ET wall mount urinal
4 - Kohler K-2006-0 rectangular wall mount sinks
4 - symmons S-20-2-G single lever faucets chrome
5 - Kohler K-4325-L-O wall mount toilets
Electrical
2 - ceiling mount heaters
LED florescent ceiling mount lights
LED wall mount flood lights
Gutters
5" OG painted aluminum
Paint
Sherwin Williams super paint or equal
Tile

Page 2



Bid
Date

2/1/2018

Estimate #

1193

Name / Address

Boice cop park

Lance Kessler
Construction Inc.
PO Box 938
Brookings, OR 97415
ccb. 177733

P.O. No.

Bathroom remodel

Phone #

541-469-9616

Fax #

541-469-9616

E-mail

lancelaurenk@msn.com

Total

Item Description Total

12 X 12 wall and floor tiles, priced at 3.50 per square foot, with backer board on
walls, thinset, grout, sealer
Hardware
-Parts picked at all partitions and parts .com, powder coated steel 2 ADA stalls, 3
normal 36" stalls, one urinal area
4 - 18"W X 24"H mirrors with channel frame
4 - stainless steel soap dispensers
2 - royal sovereign hand dryers
5 - renown commercial twin tissue holders
moen designer series grab bars
2 - his and hers bathroom signs

Contractor shall be able to park travel trailers, and tool trailers on camp sites during
construction, porta potty provided, park may need shut down during demo and
rebuild until power can be turned back on. Contractor will turn in permit and after
approval these specs will be revised if county building dept. required to meet codes.
Payments will be 5 payment 25% percent down. 25% percent after framing, siding,
roofing. 25% percent after all inspections from plumbing and electrical. 15% percent
after tile. 10% after final inspection and completion.

Page 3

$150,000.00



CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM ROUTING SLIP 

FORM 10-001.1 Rev. 1-5-2018  
PART I – SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: RETURN TO BOC_OFFICE@CO.CURRY.OR.US 
PROPOSED AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Lease property to Nesika Beach Ophir Water District 
 
 

TIMELY FILED    Yes ☐ No  ☒      Acting Interim County Administrator authorization   
If  No, justification to include with next BOC Meeting  
 
AGENDA DATEa: JHuttl  DEPARTMENT:    BOC  TIME NEEDED:    30 min 
(aSubmit by seven days prior to the next General Meeting ( eight days if a holiday falls within that seven day period)) 
 
MEMO ATTACHED       Yes  ☐  No ☒    If no memo, explain: Executive Session Not Public 
 
 

CONTACT PERSON:  J Huttl    PHONE/EXT:  3218        TODAY’S DATE: 02/09/2017 
 

BRIEF BACKGROUND OR NOTE: (If no memo attached) Presentation by Carl King, Board 
Member of Nesika Beach Ophir Water District regarding county lease to district of property adjacent to 
district property where its water intake well is located.  Goal is to protect district’s water source.  
   
FILES ATTACHED:     
(1) Sample Lease      
(2)       
(3)       
 
    
QUESTIONS: 
1.  Would this item be a departure from the Annual Budget if approved?    Yes ☐No ☐ 
     (If Yes, brief detail)        
2.  Does this agenda item impact any other County department?   Yes ☐ No ☐ 
     (If Yes, brief detail)       
3.  Does Agenda Item impact County personnel resources?    Yes  ☐ No  ☐ 
      (If Yes, brief detail)       
INSTRUCTIONS ONCE SIGNED:   
 ☐No Additional Activity Required 

 OR        
 ☐File with County Clerk     Name:          
 ☐Send Printed Copy to:           Address:          
 ☐Email a Digital Copy to:     City/State/Zip:        

☐Other                   
         Phone:                 
cNote: Most signed documents are filed/recorded with the Clerk per standard process.  
PART III - FINANCE DEPARTMENT REVIEW  
EVALUATION CRITERIA 1-4: 
1. Confirmed Submitting Department’s finance-related responses Yes  ☐No☐     N/A ☐    
Comment:       
2. Confirmed Submitting Department’s personnel-related materials  Yes  ☐ No  ☐    N/A☐ 
    Comment:      
3. If job description, Salary Committee reviewed:         Yes ☐ No  ☐  N/A☐ 
4. If hire order requires a Personnel Action Form (PAF)?             Pending  ☐ N/A ☐ No  ☐ HR ☐    
PART IV – COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REVIEW 
☐ APPROVED FOR ________  BOC MEETING   ☐ Not Approved for BOC Agenda because  
      
LEGAL ASSESSMENT: Does this agenda item have a legal impact?                   Yes  ☐ No  ☒ 
  (If Yes, brief detail) Discussion only  
ASSIGNED TO:     
PART V – BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS AGENDA APPROVAL  
COMMISSIONERS’ REQUEST TO ADD TO AGENDA:     
Commissioner Sue Gold     Yes ☐No  ☐ 
Commissioner Thomas Huxley   Yes  ☐ No  ☐ 

mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us


Commissioner Court Boice    Yes  ☐ No ☐      



















CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM ROUTING SLIP 

FORM 10-001.1 Rev. 1-5-2018  
PART I – SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: RETURN TO BOC_OFFICE@CO.CURRY.OR.US 
PROPOSED AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Executive Session ORS 192.660(2)(a),(f)&(h) 
 
 

TIMELY FILED    Yes ☐ No  ☒      Acting Interim County Administrator authorization   
If  No, justification to include with next BOC Meeting  
 
AGENDA DATEa: JHuttl  DEPARTMENT:    BOC  TIME NEEDED:    20 min 
(aSubmit by seven days prior to the next General Meeting ( eight days if a holiday falls within that seven day period)) 
 
MEMO ATTACHED       Yes  ☐  No ☒    If no memo, explain: Executive Session Not Public 
 
 

CONTACT PERSON:  J Huttl    PHONE/EXT:  3218        TODAY’S DATE: 02/09/2017 
 

BRIEF BACKGROUND OR NOTE: (If no memo attached) Continued Discussion from 
February 7, 2018, without labor negotiation discussion.  
   
FILES ATTACHED:     
(1)           
(2)       
(3)       
 
    
QUESTIONS: 
1.  Would this item be a departure from the Annual Budget if approved?    Yes ☐No ☐ 
     (If Yes, brief detail)        
2.  Does this agenda item impact any other County department?   Yes ☐ No ☐ 
     (If Yes, brief detail)       
3.  Does Agenda Item impact County personnel resources?    Yes  ☐ No  ☐ 
      (If Yes, brief detail)       
INSTRUCTIONS ONCE SIGNED:   
 ☐No Additional Activity Required 

 OR        
 ☐File with County Clerk     Name:          
 ☐Send Printed Copy to:           Address:          
 ☐Email a Digital Copy to:     City/State/Zip:        

☐Other                   
         Phone:                 
cNote: Most signed documents are filed/recorded with the Clerk per standard process.  
PART III - FINANCE DEPARTMENT REVIEW  
EVALUATION CRITERIA 1-4: 
1. Confirmed Submitting Department’s finance-related responses Yes  ☐No☐     N/A ☐    
Comment:       
2. Confirmed Submitting Department’s personnel-related materials  Yes  ☐ No  ☐    N/A☐ 
    Comment:      
3. If job description, Salary Committee reviewed:         Yes ☐ No  ☐  N/A☐ 
4. If hire order requires a Personnel Action Form (PAF)?             Pending  ☐ N/A ☐ No  ☐ HR ☐    
PART IV – COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REVIEW 
☐ APPROVED FOR ________  BOC MEETING   ☐ Not Approved for BOC Agenda because  
      
LEGAL ASSESSMENT: Does this agenda item have a legal impact?                   Yes  ☐ No  ☐ 
  (If Yes, brief detail)  
ASSIGNED TO:     
PART V – BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS AGENDA APPROVAL  
COMMISSIONERS’ REQUEST TO ADD TO AGENDA:     
Commissioner Sue Gold     Yes ☐No  ☐ 
Commissioner Thomas Huxley   Yes  ☐ No  ☐ 
Commissioner Court Boice    Yes  ☐ No ☐      

mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us


Board of Commissioners Final Staff Report 

Meeting Date:   February 14, 2018 

Prepared by:  Carolyn Johnson, Community Development Director 

Agenda Item.  Continuation of Board action on de novo appeal from a Planning 
Commission decision on Elk River Property Development’s application for the analysis 
of alternatives routes for a pipeline and ancillary facilities to deliver recycled wastewater 
located for irrigation of a golf course on or over Assessor map 32-15-29C, lot numbers: 
103, 104, 105, 106, 107, 108, 118, 120 and 121 and extend to the property commonly 
known as the Knapp Ranch. (Sections 19, 29 & 30 of Township 32 S., Range 15 W., 
W.M. Tax lot 4400, and Section 29c of Township 32 S., Range 15 W., W.M. Tax lot 500)

Summary.  On January 17, 2018, the Board held an initial de novo hearing on the 
subject application and concluded with direction that the public hearing be closed but 
the record remain open until 5 PM on January 31, 2018.   A rebuttal period to comments 
received by January 31 was also established by the Board, that period concluded at 5 
PM on February 7. All testimony received has been posted on the County website and 
presented in this report.  The Board should review the testimony referenced in this 
report; it supplements the information provided to the January 17, 2018 Board packet.   

Because the public hearing has been closed, the Board cannot hear from any party.  It 
may ask questions of staff.   

The Board should also review final written arguments in support of the application 
provided by the applicant. Because the applicant had until February 14, 2018 to submit 
its final written closing argument, that document was not available by staff’s publication 
deadline.  Therefore staff is unable to make a recommendation based on the entire 
record, because it is not complete at this time. 

Testimony and discussion. Written testimony received from January 17 to 
January 31 and related rebuttals received by February 7 are referenced below.   

1. Planning Commission staff reports from September 21, October 19, and
November 7, 2017. These reports were previously referenced but the physical copies
were not included in the 01.27 BOC packet.  They information is now included at
attachment 1. No additional discussion on these reports is needed or provided.

Board of Commissioners February 14, 2018 AD-1701 staff report      1 of 5 



2. Supplemental information, including:
An October 13, 2017 e-mail and letter from ODOT requiring ODOT authorization of
ODOT permitting for reclaimed water lines; an October 18, 2017 letter from Bill Kloos;
an October 19, 2017 letter and attachments from Sean Malone This information was
referenced but not included in the 01.27 BOC packet.   This information was previously
referenced but the physical copies were not included in the 01.27 BOC packet.  They
information is now included at attachment 2.  No additional analysis is needed or
provided.

3. January 15, 2018 Wildland properties – expressed support for the Pacific Gales
golf course and authorization of alternatives. See attachment 3. No analysis is needed
or provided.

4. January 18, 2018 letter from ORCA to the Board.  See attachment 4. The letter
asserts the application must be denied and requests the Board affirm the Planning
Commission denial decision. ORCA referenced previously submitted testimony to the
County and additional new information.

Point one of the ORCA testimony notes:   
“The applicant has not demonstrated why a variety of routes were not considered.” 
ORCA notes that fully utilizing highway 101 was not considered, and that route would 
be the most efficient and cluster development for the pipeline in an area that is already 
largely developed. Instead of heading directly to highway 101 from 12st. the pipeline 
works its way along Idaho Str. Working within the state right of way is reasonable, as it 
would avoid more sensitive districts or zone. In addition, the applicant has not explained 
why a route along Arizona St was not considered. Indeed such a route would appear to 
require the shortest distance. Moreover, the applicant has not demonstrated that the 
particular routes chosen is the least impactful route.” 

The applicant has responded to this comment (attachment 5) with the following:  “We 
decided to avoid Highway 101 as much as possible, as this is the main street in the City 
and hence the most traffic. Mr. Malone also questions why we did not route the pipe up 
Arizona Street. The answer is very simple. The bridge crossing a portion of Garrison 
Lake is failing and it is in a zone district that would require a division of state lands 
permits. This testimony is submitted as evidence that Elk River Development llc has 
addressed alternatives submitted, and have for the reasons listed above chosen not to 
use them.   

Point two of the ORCA testimony notes:    
 “The final order approving the golf course alleged that a portion of the subject property 
is encumbered by the groundwater area potentially affected by the Port Orford Landfill 
site and that no development is proposed for that area. The current application calls into 
questions whether that area will be developed with facilities for reclaimed water, 
including the proposed reservoir…. ” The letter goes on to state that “the applicant has 
not demonstrated why alternative means, including a transfer of water from Knapp 

 2 of 5 Board of Commissioners February 14, 2018 AD 1701 staff report



Ranch and use of groundwater are no longer feasible alternatives to irrigating the now 
expired golf course.   

Point three of the ORCA testimony notes:     
The final order approving the golf course also alleges that it would irrigate consistent 
with a transfer of some of the Knapp Ranch’s water rights.  See Ex. A1 at 20 (“The 
Applicants … have indicated that, in reaching a tentative agreement with the Knapp 
Ranch to transfer a portion of the ranch’s water rights, ….”); id. at 21 (“A letter from the 
Water Resources Department, included along with the application submittal indicated 
that a portion of the Knapp Ranch’s irrigation rights could be transferred to the golf 
course development area.”); id. at 21 (“The Applicants have explained that, if the water 
rights transfer becomes unworkable, the Applicants will rely instead on new permits for 
groundwater or for storage of winter surface flows, to create a source of stored water for 
summer use.  The applicants submitted well logs from recently drilled wells in the 
immediate vicinity, demonstrating that there is adequate supply and availability of 
groundwater, should the Applicant resort to that source.”).  Obviously, none of the 
theories for water upon which the applicant was approved are relevant anymore.  The 
prior application – now expired – must be reviewed again in order to account for the 
ever-changing proposal.  

This testimony from ORCA also asserts that the Pacific Golf Course approval has 
expired. The applicant submitted evidence into the January 17, 2018 BOC record that 
the the land use approval for the golf course has been vested with the start of 
construction and that Elk River Development LLC intends to continue and complete 
construction.  The applicant has submitted a copy of a January 19, 2018 application for 
an extension of the existing land use approval for the golf course as a rebuttal ORCA’s 
comments regarding the golf course. (attachment 6)   

Point four of the ORCA testimony notes:  
Finally, by its plain language, the above provision also requires that a DEQ approval be 
in place before the local government approval occurs.  For example, ORS 215.246 
requires the local government decision “relating to the land application of reclaimed 
water … under a license, permit, or approval by the Department of Environmental 
Quality.”  ORS 215.246.  The applicant does not have a license, permit or approval by 
the DEQ at this time. Nor can they receive one, as the golf course permit from Curry 
County is expired. The application must first obtain approval by the DEQ, because that 
is the process contemplated by statute.  

Oregon Statute requires the land application of reclaimed water to have a license, 
permit, or other approval from DEQ.  DEQ has indicated the processing of the Recycled 
Water Use Permit for the project cannot be completed without the County’s review and 
authorization of the Alternatives analysis.  Ranei Nomura, DEQ Water Quality 
Permitting and Compliance Manager, provided in his November 21, 2017 e-mail an 
excerpt from DEQ, DLCD, ODA and OHS requirements related to the order of sequence 
for issuance of permits from DEQ. The applicant is complying with this sequence and is 
at step 2 in the process noted below, requesting a land use review by the County:  

 3 of 5 Board of Commissioners February 14, 2018 AD 1701 staff report



Conclusion.  Board deliberations should conclude with direction to staff to 
prepare an Order with findings for Board action no later than February 28, 2108. 

Attachments:  
Written submittals received by 5 PM January 31, 2018 
1. Planning Commission staff reports from September 21, October 19, and
November 7, 2017.
2. Supplemental information, including: October 13, 2017 e-mail and letter from
ODOT; October 18, 2017 letter from Bill Kloos; October 19, 2017 letter and attachments
from Sean Malone.
3. January 15, 2018 Wildland properties
4. January 18, 2018 letter from ORCA to the Board.

Rebuttal material submittals received after January 31 & before 5 PM February 7 
5. Received by e-mail February 7, 2018, January 19, 2018 letter from Bill Kloos
(applicant)
6. February 7, 2018 letter from Jim Haley (applicant)

 4 of 5 Board of Commissioners February 14, 2018 AD 1701 staff report



Board of Commissioners February 14, 2018 AD-1701 staff report     

ATTACHMENT 1 
Planning Commission staff reports from  

September 21, October 19, and November 7, 2017. 

 5 of 5 



Chair John Brazil  Commissioner Kevin McHugh  
Vice Chair Bob Morrow   Commissioner Ted Freeman 
Commissioner Karen Kennedy Commissioner Diana St. Marie 

 Commissioner Shannon Pagano 

Planning Commission Meeting Agenda  
Thursday, September 21, 2017 at 5:30 PM 

County Annex, 94235 Moore Street/Blue Room, Gold Beach, Oregon 

1. Call to Order / Roll Call

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Acceptance of the Agenda

4. Public Comment for items not on the Agenda

5. Agenda:

A. Application AD-1705: A request to develop a pipeline over multiple properties to deliver
recycled wastewater, and a reservoir, in order to irrigate the Pacific Gales golf course. The
pipeline could be located on land owned by multiple owners on property located on Assessor
map 32-15-29C, lot numbers 103, 104, 105, 106, 107, 108, 118, 120 and 21;
Applicant: Elk River Property Development LLC.

6. Commissioner Comments

7. Director Comments

8. Adjournment: no later than 8:30 PM



Application AD-17-05 Page 1 of 11 

Planning Commission Staff Report 
Prepared by Jacob Callister, Contract Senior Planner 
Lane Council of Governments 

Planning Commission Hearing Date:  September 21, 2017 

Agenda Item:  Application AD-1705: A request to develop a pipeline over multiple 
properties to deliver recycled wastewater, and a reservoir, in order to irrigate the Pacific Gales 
golf course. The pipeline could be located on land owned by multiple owners on property 
located on Assessor map 32-15-29C, lot numbers 103, 104, 105, 106, 107, 108, 118, 120 and 
21;  Applicant: Elk River Property Development LLC.  

Summary: The proposed pipeline would be developed inside public rights of way, and also 
on private property. There are two alternative routes under consideration. The reservoir will be 
developed on private property. The subject parcel is identified assessor map Sections 19, 29 & 
30 of Township 32 S., Range 15 W., M. Tax lot 4400, and Section 29c of Township 32 S., 
Range 15., W., W. M. Tax lot 500, and additional property and public right of way, noted on 
figure maps1 below and larger maps found in Attachment 2.  

   Preferred Route      Alternative Route 

1 prepared by Stuntzner Engineering 



Application AD-17-05 Page 2 of 11 

Requested Action: 

1) Review application, staff report, proposed findings, resolution, and associated
materials.

2) Review written, and hear oral testimony regarding the proposal.

3) Consider if applicant has shown, with substantial evidence, that its project fits
within the statutory category of the project, and that it has followed the process and
considered alternatives.

4) Evaluate alternatives and determine how to proceed. The Commission may:
a. Continue the hearing to another date certain.
b. Close the hearing but leave the record open to a date certain. Deliberate
at a future meeting (date certain).
c. Close the hearing and record, deliberate and APPROVE the development
by passing Resolution 2017-AD-1705 addressing findings and conditions for the
development.
d. Close the hearing and record, deliberate and APPROVE the development
based on additional findings and conditions to be added to Resolution 2017-AD-
1705.

Staff Recommendation: 

1) Based on the evidence in the record when this staff report was developed, a
determination that the applicant has shown, with substantial evidence, that the project
fits within the statutory category of the project, and that it has followed the process and
is prepared to adequately consider public comment on the proposal(s).

2) Recognizing that the hearing will likely provide additional evidence, close the
hearing on September 21, but leave the record open for seven days (or another specific
period of time) for the submittal of additional evidence.

3) Any approval of the proposal include conditions as specified in Exhibit 1 of the
proposed Planning Commission Resolution 2017-AD-1705



 

Application AD-17-05 Page 3 of 11 
 

Summary: As noted in the written statement provided by the applicant and further 
expanded in Attachment 3: 
 
“Elk River Property Development Property LLC is proposing to use recycled wastewater 
for irrigating a golf course on the property commonly known as Knapp Ranch, which is 
zoned Exclusive Farm Use (EFU). The use of recycled wastewater includes the 
development of a pipeline that originates at the City of Port Orford municipal wastewater 
treatment plant, the creation of a reservoir adjacent to the ultimate place of use (on 
Knapp Ranch), and development of ancillary facilities. As required by state statute the 
applicant requests the County to conduct a public process when uses of this nature are 
proposed.  
 
Although the application of recycled water for irrigation is allowed outright in EFU zones, 
pursuant to ORS 215.283(1) (v), the statutory framework for this use includes a 
requirement for public comment and an analysis of alternatives.  

The alternative analysis that the applicant is now proposing comes directly from ORS 
215.246. There are no local regulations in Curry County code that implements this 
statute, therefore the statute is applied directly. This application will be reviewed by the 
Curry County Planning Commission pursuant to CCZO 2.060(2) (d), which provides that 
the Planning Commission has authority over “other land use actions” not specifically 
listed in adjacent code provisions.  

In summary, ORS 215.246 requires the applicant to explain what it proposes, to 
consider public comment in response to the proposal, and to conduct an analysis of 
alternatives. . . . . 

Although a portion of the proposed system development will be located inside the city 
limits of Port Orford (consisting of a pump and pipeline that originates at the city’s 
sewage treatment plant), this application is primarily focused on the portions of the 
irrigation system that will be developed in the county. The applicant has obtained 
separate development approval for portions of the project that will be located in areas 
inside the city of Port Orford’s jurisdiction.” 

Citation of Applicable Criteria:  
 

Curry County Zoning Ordinance:  Section 2.060(2) (d). Article II. Procedures for Making 
Land Use Decisions. Application.  

 
ORS 215.283(1): Uses allowed in any area zoned for exclusive farm use.  
  
ORS 215.246: Approval of land application of certain substances; subsequent use of 
tract of land; consideration of alternatives. 
 
 
 
 



 

Application AD-17-05 Page 4 of 11 
 

Evaluation of Criteria:  The evaluation of the applicable criteria is provided in the 
chart below and in the applicant’s written statement (Attachment 3).  
 

Code Section Discussion and Reccomended Findings 
CCZO  
Section 2.060(2)(d) 

FINDING: Application will be reviewed by Curry 
County Planning Commission which has authority 
under this application per subheading (d) “other land 
use actions”.  

ORS 215.283(1)(v)  
Types of uses allowed outright 
as listed in ORS 215.283(1)  
include “the land application of 
reclaimed water.” 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The use proposed in this instance can be described 
as the land application of reclaimed water and can be 
used for irrigation in connection with an allowed use 
in an EFU.  
 
Statute requires the land application of reclaimed 
water to have a license, permit, or other approval 
from DEQ.  
 
FINDING: DEQ review is being conducted 
concurrently with this County review. DEQ cannot 
issue its recycled wastewater use permit until the 
alternatives analysis has been completed. At the 
completion of the County’s review, development of 
the project requires the applicant to obtain all 
necessary permits, including those issued by DEQ. 
The following conditions of approval apply prior to 
pipeline construction: 
     Condition of Approval 1: Receive approval from 
the Oregon State Department of Environmental 
Quality. 
     Condition of Approval 2: Receive any and all 
local permits from the County with respect to installing 
facilites in County right-of-way. 
 



 

Application AD-17-05 Page 5 of 11 
 

Code Section Discussion and Reccomended Findings 
ORS 215.246(1) & (3)  
When a state agency or a local 
government makes a land use 
decision relating to the land 
application of reclaimed water, 
agricutural or industiral process 
water or biosoils under a 
license, permit or approval by 
the DEQ, the applicant shall 
explain in writing how 
alternatives identified in public 
comments on the land use 
decision were considered, and 
if the alternatives are not used, 
explain in writing the reasons 
for not using the alternatives. 
The applicant must consider 
only those alternatives that are 
identified with sufficient specifity 
to afford the applicant an 
adequate opportunity to 
consider the alternatives.  
A land use decision relating to 
the land application of 
reclaimed water, agricutural or 
industrial process water or 
biosoils may not be reversed or 
remanded under this 
subsection unless the applicant 
failed to consider identified 
alternatives or to explain in 
writing the reasons for not using 
the alternatives.  

This statute requires an applicant to explain to the 
DEQ how public comments were addressed in the 
development of alternatives to the land application of 
reclaimed water were identified in public comments at 
the local land use hearing, and explain reasons for 
not using any identified (and adequately detailed) 
alternatives.  
 
It is noted that a land use decision relating to the land 
application of reclaimed water (etc.), may not be 
reversed or remanded unless the applicant failed to 
consider identified alternatives or to explain in writing 
the reasons for not using the alternatives.   
 
FINDING: After the public hearing, if the Planning 
Commission finds that the applicant has adequately  
considered public comment related to identifed 
alterantives, then the applicant has satisfied this 
statutory requirement. No public comments have 
been received at the writing of this report. If public 
comments are received as a result of the notice and 
hearing, which introduce new evidence related to 
identified alternatives, these must be adequaltey 
considered and evaluated by the applicant. 
 
FINDING: ORS 215.246 (1)(b) requires that the 
applicant indicate that there are no additional statutes 
that apply. The applicant has indicated this. Recycled 
wastewater is not subject to other provisions of any 
listed statutes.  
 
 
 

ORS 215.246(4)(a) 
The uses allowed under this 
section include: The treatment 
of reclaimed water, agricultural 
or industrial process water or 
biosolids that occurs as a result 
of the land application; 

In addition to the water treatment conducted at Port 
Orford sewage treatment plant, natural processes will 
lead to continued improvements in water quality such 
as exposure to UV light while the water is impounded 
in the pond at the golf course, and exposure to 
natural soil microbes that will digest nutrients and 
other substances found in trace amounts in the 
treated water.  
 
FINDING: This will amount to passive “treatment” of 
the reclaimed water that occurs as a result of land 
application.  



 

Application AD-17-05 Page 6 of 11 
 

Code Section Discussion and Reccomended Findings 
ORS 215.246(4)(b) 
The establishment and use of 
facilities, including buildings, 
equipment, aerated and 
nonaerated water 
impoundments, pumps and 
other irrigation equipment, that 
are accessory to and 
reasonably necessary for the 
land application to occur on the 
subject tract;  

Applicant  is proposing improvements that will include 
a portion of the pipe that delivers treated water, a 
pond that will store water, pumps and irrigation 
equpiment, and  a small pumphouse that will shelter 
the irrigation equipment.  
 
FINDING: Improvements will be reasonably 
necesarry for the use of recycled wastewater on the 
tract where the irrigation will occur. 
 
 
  

ORS 215.246(4)(c) 
The Establishment and use of 
facilities, including buildings 
and equipment, that are not on 
the tract on which the land 
application occurs for the 
transport of reclaimed water, 
agricutural or indsutrial process 
water or biosoils to the tract on 
which the land application 
occurs if the facilities are 
located within: (A) a public right 
of way; or (B) Other land if the 
landowner provides written 
consent and the owner of the 
facility complies with ORS 
215.275(4); and (d) the 
transport by vehicle of 
reclaimed water on which the 
water will be applied. 

Applicant is proposing ancillary facilites necesarry for 
the use of recycled wasterwater that will be 
developed on lands outside of the tract where 
irrigation will occur, primarly in right of way. In limited 
instances where pipeline is to cross land that is not 
within right of way, applicant understands “written 
consent” must be obtained from land owner.  
 
FINDING: For both preferred and alternate route, 
applicant has obtained easements with land owners 
where pipeline passes through private property (see 
Attachment 6). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ORS 215.246(5) 
Uses not allowed under this 
section include: (a) The 
establishment and use of 
facilities, including buildings or 
equipment, for the treatment of 
reclaimed water, agricultural or 
industrial process water or 
biosoils other than those 
treatment facilites related to the 
treatment that occurs as a 
result of the land application; or 
(b) the establishment and use 

All water quality treatments will occur at existing Port 
Orford sewage treament plant. Some degree of water 
quality improvement that is expected to occur 
incidentally to storing recycled water in the pond, and 
then applied to the golf course, where it will be 
exposed to soil microbes and other natural 
processes. Water currently being discharged from 
sewage treatment plant is already treated to such a 
high level that it is permitted to be discharged directly 
into the ocean. The applicant strongly believes that it 
is more enviornmentally sustainable to use City’s 
effluent for irrgation, where any trace containments 
will be broken down by exposure to air and UV light 



 

Application AD-17-05 Page 7 of 11 
 

Code Section Discussion and Reccomended Findings 
of utility facility service lines 
allowed under ORS 
215.213(1)(x) or 215.283(1)(u).  
 
 
 
 
 

during the pond storage period, and by soil microbes 
after it is applied as irrgation, as opposed to 
discharging it directly into the marine environment.  
 
The pipeline delivering the recycled wastewater is not 
a “utility service line” within the meaning of this statute 
because it is one of the necesarry “facilites for the 
transport of reclaimed water” as specifcally allowed 
under ORS 283.246(4)(c).  
 
 
 
FINDING: Applicant is not proposing any utility facility 
service line. Current proposal involves delivery, 
storage and use of recycled wastewater, as 
specifically allowed under ORS 215.283(1)(v) and 
ORS 215.246(4)(c). 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
Attachment 1 – Planning Commission resolution 2017-AD-1705, including project 

conditions.  
Attachment 2 -  Proposed preferred and alternative pipeline routes.  
Attachment 3 – Applicant’s written statement and detailed decription of alternative 

routes and plans.  
Attachment 4 -  County Counsel Memo 
Attachment 5 – Public notice 
Attachment 6 – Project application 
Attachment 7 – Easement agreements 
  



 

Application AD-17-05 Page 8 of 11 
 

ATTACHMENT 1  
Planning Commission Resolution AD-1705 Conditionally Approving the Proposal  
  



 

Application AD-17-05 Page 9 of 11 
 

 
 

Resolution 2017-AD-1705 
A Resolution of the Curry County Planning Commission approving the Elk River 
Property Development LLC Application AD-1705 to develop a pipeline to deliver 
recycled wastewater in order to irrigate the Pacific Gales golf course. File #: AD-
1705, Map/TL: Sections 19, 29 & 30 of Township 32 S., Range 15 W., M. Tax lot 
4400, and Section 29c of Township 32 S., Range 15. W., W. M. Tax lot 500, and 
additional property and public right of way.  
 
WHEREAS, the Curry County Planning Commission held a duly noticed public hearing 
on application AD-1705 filed by Elk River Property Development LLC for approval to 
develop a pipeline to deliver recycled wastewater in order to irrigate the Pacific Gales 
golf course.  
 
WHEREAS, the Commission held the public hearing on September 21, 2017 at which 
time staff presented their report and the applicant’s findings.  The Commission also 
received additional testimony at the hearing from interested parties.   
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Curry County Planning Commission 
hereby approves the land use request of the proposed development of pipeline in 
order to irrigate Pacific Gales golf course based on the findings specified in the 
September 21, 2017 staff report, subject to the conditions attached to this resolution as 
Exhibit 1.  
  
UPON THE MOTION of Planning Commissioner                    , seconded by Planning 
Commissioner                              , the foregoing Resolution is hereby approved and 
adopted the 21st day of September, 2017 by the following roll call, to wit:  
 

AYES NAYS ABSTAIN ABSENT 
    

 
 

_______________________________________ 
John Brazil 

Planning Commission Chairperson 
ATTEST 
 
_______________________________________ 
Carolyn Johnson 
Community Development Director 



 

Application AD-17-05 Page 10 of 11 
 

 
EXHIBIT 1 

APPROVAL OF ELK RIVER PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT LLC TO DEVELOP 
PIPELINE TO DELIVER RECYCLED WASTEWATER AND A RESERVOIR IN ORDER 

TO IRRIGATE THE PACIFIC GALES GOLF COURSE. FILE #: AD-1705, MAP/TL: 
SECTIONS 19, 29, &30 OF TOWNSHIP 32 S., RANGE 15 W., W. M. TAX LOT 4400 

AND SECTION 29C OF TOWNSHIP 32 S., RANGE 15 W., W. M. TAX LOT 500, AND 
ADDITIONAL PROPERTY AND PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY.  

 
AUTHORIZATION: This land use request AD-1705 is hereby authorized subject to the 
conditions listed below.  Approval is granted only for development to develop pipeline to 
deliver recycled wastewater and a reservoir in order to irrigate pacific gales golf course, 
to be developed inside public rights of way and also on private property.  Any proposed 
changes to this land use request shall require further review by the Planning 
Commission.   
 
EFFECTIVE DATE:      September 21, 2017 
 
ACCEPTANCE OF CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: The property owner shall 
acknowledge receipt of these Conditions of Approval by signing and returning the 
statement below.   
 
TRUE AND CORRECT AFFIRMATION AND COMPLIANCE AGREEMENT:  I affirm 
that the information my agent or I submitted to the County that was used to review and 
authorize this proposal is true and correct to the best of my knowledge. I acknowledge 
that the County can revoke this land use authorization if it has been obtained under 
false pretenses.  
 
I have read and understood, and I will comply with all applicable requirements of any 
law or agency of the State of Oregon, Curry County, and any other governmental entity 
that may have jurisdiction over this proposal.  The duty of inquiry as to such 
requirements shall be my responsibility. I agree to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless 
Curry County and its agents, officers, and employees, from any claim, action, or 
proceeding against the County as a result of the action or inaction by the County, or 
from any claim to attack, set aside, void, or annul of this approval by the County of the 
project; or my failure to comply with conditions of approval. This agreement shall be 
binding on all successors and assigns of the subject property.  
 
________________________________________________           ________________ 
Jim Haley, Manager, Elk River Property Development LLC              Date 
Applicant 
 
________________________________________________  ________________ 
Jeremy Knapp, President, Knapp Ranches Inc.    Date 
Property owner 

 



 

Application AD-17-05 Page 11 of 11 
 

AD-1705 Conditions of Approval 
 
PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION OF PIPELINE 
1. Receive approval from the Oregon State Department of Environmental Quality.  
 
2. Receive any and all local permits from the County with respect to installing facilites in 
County right-of-way. 
 



ATTACHMENT 2 
PROPOSED PREFERRED AND ALTERNATIVE ROUTES OF PIPELINE  



 



 
 
 



ATTACHMENT 3 
APPLICANTS WRITTEN STATEMENT  

AND  
DETAILED DECRIPTION OF ALTERNATIVE ROUTES AND PLANS 

















































ATTACHMENT 4 
COUNTY COUNSEL MEMO 









ATTACHMENT 5 
PUBLIC NOTICE 



 



  

 



ATTACHMENT 6 
PROJECT APPLICATION 



Land Use Application  
Page 1 of 5 

 
CURRY COUNTY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

94235 MOORE STREET, SUITE 113 
GOLD BEACH, OREGON  97444             

Carolyn Johnson                             Phone (541) 247-3284 
Planning Director                                          FAX (541) 247-4579 

 
 
File #___________    Fee $ ___________   Receipt # ____________   Accepted by _________ 
 

LAND USE DECISION APPLICATION FORM 
Application Type (Check One) 
 

 Comp Plan/Zone Change              Conditional Use              Variance             Partition                 Subdivision    
 

  Other 
 
Application Date:_____________________ Hearing / Decision Date: ___________________ 
 

APPLICANT:  Please complete all parts of this form.  The attached application checklist will be marked by staff to reflect the 
information and supporting items required for this request.  Please return this prepared checklist, the completed application 
form and required fee at the time of submission.  Please note that your application cannot be reviewed or processed until all 
the required items have been provided.   
 
 

1. PROPERTY OWNER OF RECORD 
 

Name _public right-of-way, owned by Curry County and ODOT, as shown on exhibit.  Private 

property owned by Knapp Ranches, Inc._________ 

Mailing Address: __(for Knapp Ranches) 92373 Knapp Rd                   _______________________ 

City, State, ZIP: _Port Orford, OR 97465______________________________________________ 

Telephone #: ________________________________    E-Mail _bknapp@2cj.com____ 

 

2.         AGENT (If Any) 

Name: __Nick Klingensmith, Law Office of Bill Kloos, P.C._______ 

Mailing Address: _375 W. 4th Ave, suite 201,   _ 

City, State, ZIP: ___ Eugene OR, 97401__________________________________________ 

Telephone # _541-912-5280_________  E-Mail __nklingensmith@landuseoregon.com________ 

 

3.        BASIC PROPOSAL (Briefly describe your proposed land use) 

___The applicant proposes to develop a pipeline to deliver recycled wastewater, and a reservoir, in 

order to irrigate the Pacific Gales golf course.  The pipeline will be developed inside public rights of 

way, and also on private property.  There are two alternative routes under consideration.  The reservoir 

will be developed on private property.  Please see attached narrative that addresses relevant approval 

standards.  ___________________________________ 

 

4.        PROPERTY INFORMATION 

Assessor Map #_See attached narrative__    Tax Lot (s) ___________________________ 



Land Use Application  
Page 2 of 5 

Zoning: ______________________________    Total Acreage _____________________________ 

   

   
 
 
 

5. PROPERTY LOCATION  
Address (if property has a situs address) __________________________________________ 

Description of how to locate the property __The two pipeline routes under consideration are 

depicted in attached exhibits.  They can generally be described as (1) running north along 

Arizona St, and thence west and north across land owned by Knapp Ranches Inc.; and (2) 

running north along Madrona Ave., until travelling west (partially through private property, 

with the landowner’s permission) to land owned by Knapp Ranches, Inc._______________ 

 

6. EXISTING LAND USE (briefly describe the present land use of the property) 

   Vacant    Developed;  Describe existing development _The subject property is a 

mixture of vacant and developed.  The public rights of way are developed with roadbed and 

pavement.  Portions of the private property along both routes have varying degrees of existing 

low-density residential development.  The property known as the Knapp Ranch is vacant, and 

is primarily used for cattle grazing. 

 

7. SURROUNDING LAND USES (Briefly describe the land uses on adjacent property)  

___Land uses adjacent to the proposed pipeline include low-density residential uses, and 

vacant lands, as depicted in the attached exhibits.    

 

8. SERVICE AND FACILITIES AVAILABLE TO THE PROPERTY 
Please indicate what services and facilities are available to the property.  If on-site sewage disposal and/or water 
source is proposed, a copy of the approved site evaluation or septic system permit and a copy of any water rights 
or well construction permit must be submitted with this application. 
 
The proposed development is a pipeline that will carry recycled wastewater.  None of the services and facilities in 

this list are needed for the use, and none of them are germane to relevant approval criteria.    

Water Source ____________________________________________________ 

Sewage Disposal _________________________________________________ 

Electrical Power __________________________________________________ 

Telephone Service ________________________________________________ 

Fire Department/District ___________________________________________ 

School District ___________________________________________________ 

 

9. ROAD INFORMATION 

Nearest Public Road ___See attached narrative_____ 

Private Roads Serving the Property __ See attached narrative ______________________ 



Land Use Application  
Page 3 of 5 

 Road Condition______________________________________________________________ 

 Legal Status ________________________________________________________________ 

 Ownership:   I own the road   Easement on others property   Joint Owner   

 Please submit record of ownership (i.e. deeds, easement, plat dedication, etc) 

Proposed New Roads/Driveways (Briefly describe any new road construction related to this application 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

   

10. PHYSICAL DESCRIPTION OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY 

Topography (Briefly describe the general slope and terrain of the property) 

__The land where the proposed pipeline will be developed is relatively flat, for both routes 

under consideration, with a gentle upward slope as the pipeline advances to the north.   _____ 

 

Vegetation (Briefly describe the vegetation on the property) __For the portion of the pipeline 

that will be developed within public rights of way, there is no vegetation.  For the portion of 

the pipeline that will be developed across the Knapp Ranch, the vegetation is a mix of low 

timber and scrub.    
 

 

11. FINDINGS OF FACT 
Oregon Statute and the zoning ordinance requires that land use decisions be supported by factual 
findings.  The burden of proof is on the proponent therefore it is required that the application provide 
findings to support the request in this application.  The standards and criteria that are relevant to this 
application will be provided by the staff and are considered to be a part of this application form.  
Please read the standards and criteria carefully and provide factual responses and evidence to address 
each standard.  These findings must be sufficiently specific to allow the decision maker to determine 
whether your request meets the relevant standard.  Please attach your written findings and supporting 
evidence to this application.   
FAILURE TO PROVIDE THE REQUIRED FINDINGS WILL PREVENT THE APPLICATION 
FROM BEING PROCESSED AND IT WILL BE RETURNED AS BEING INCOMPLETE. 

 
 

12. APPLICANT’S SIGNATURE AND STATEMENT OF UNDERSTANDING 
(Please read the statement below before signing the signature blank) 

I (We)_________________________________________________ ; 

 __________________________________________________ ; 

 __________________________________________________ ; 

 __________________________________________________ ;  have filed this application for 

 _____________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
With the Curry County Department of Community Development-Planning Division to be reviewed and processed 
according to State of Oregon and county ordinance requirements.  My (our) signature (s) below affirms that I (we) 
have discussed the application with the staff, and that I (we) acknowledge the following disclosures: 
 
(a) I (we are stating all information and documentation submitted with this application is true and 

correct to the best of my (our) knowledge.  
 



Land Use Application  
Page 4 of 5 

(b) I (we) understand that if false information and documentation has been submitted and the decision 
is based on that evidence, the decision may be nullified and the county may seek all legal means to 
have the action reversed.  

 
(c) I (We) understand any representations, conclusions or opinions expressed by the staff in pre-

application review of this request do not constitute final authority or approval, and I (we) am (are) 
not entitled to rely on such expressions in lieu of formal approval of my (our) request.  

 
(d) I (We) understand that I (we) may ask questions and receive input from staff, but acknowledge 

that I (we) am (are) ultimately responsible for all information or documentation submitted with 
this application.  I (We) further understand staff cannot legally bind the county to any fact or 
circumstance which conflicts with State of Oregon or local ordinance, and in event a conflict 
occurs, the statement or agreement is null and void.  

 
(e) I (We) understand that I (we) have the burden of proving that this request meets statutory and 

Ordinance requirements, and I (we) must address all of the criteria that may apply to the decision 
being made.  The criteria for approving or denying this request have been provided to me (us) as a 
part of the application form. 

 
(f) I (We) understand the staff is entitled to request additional information or documentation any time 

after the submission of this application if it is determined as such information is needed for review 
and approval.   

 
(g) I (We) understand this application will be reviewed by the Oregon Department of Land 

Conservation & Development (DLCD) and possibly other state agencies as part of the statewide 
land use coordination process.  I (We) understand that agencies that participate in the review 
process have the legal right to appeal the approval of the request.   

 
(h) I (We) understand that it is my (our) responsibility, and not the county’s, to respond to any appeal 

and to prepare the legal defense of the county’s approval of my (our) request.  I (We) further 
realize it is not the county’s function to argue the case at any appeal hearing.   

 
(i) I (We) understand that I (we) am (are) entitled to have a lawyer or land use consultant represent 

me (us) regarding my application and to appear with me (or for me) at any appointment, 
conference or hearing relating to it.  In light of the complexity and technical nature of most land 
use decisions, I (we) understand that it may be in my best interests to seek professional assistance 
in preparation of this application. 

 
(j) The undersigned are the owner (s) of record for the property described as: 

 
Assessor Map(s) _______________________________________________________ 

and Tax Lot(s) _________________________________________________________ 

in the records of Curry County.  
 

This application MUST BE SIGNED BY ALL PROPERTY OWNERS OF RECORD, or you must submit a 

notarized document signed by each owner of record who has not signed the application form, stating that the owner 

has authorized this application. 

 

(1) Signature _________________________________________________________________ 

Print Name __Nick Klingensmith, attorney for Elk River Property Development, LLC____ 

  

 (2) Signature _________________________________________________________________ 

 

 



Land Use Application  
Page 5 of 5 

(3)        Signature _________________________________________________________________ 

Print Name ________________________________________________________________ 

   

 (4) Signature _________________________________________________________________ 

Print Name ________________________________________________________________ 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

ADDITIONAL NOTES: 

All fees must be paid at the time your application is filed.  Staff will examine the application when filed to check for 

completeness and will not accept it if required items are missing.  A final completeness check will be made prior to 

doing public notice regarding the pending decision.  If it is determined to be incomplete or the findings are 

insufficient you will be notified and you must provide the required information in a timely manner to avoid denial of 

the request.   

 

ORS 215.427 required the county to take final action on a land use application (except for plan/zone changes) 

including all local appeals within 120 days if inside an Urban Growth Boundary (UGB) or 150 days if outside a 

UGB once the application is deemed complete. 

 

PLOT PLANS:  

All applications require that a plot plan of the subject property be included with the application form.  The plot plan 

is an understandable may of your property and its relationship to adjacent properties.  The plot plan must show 

certain essential information that is needed for the staff and the decision makers in the evaluation of your request.  

The plot plan is also incorporated into the public notice sent to adjacent property owners and affected agencies.  The 

plot plan should be prepared on a single sheet of paper (preferable 8 ½ x 11”) so copies can easily be reproduced for 

review.   

 

An example plot plan is attached to this form to give you an idea of what information should be included on your 

plan and how it should be drawn.  The plot plan does not have to be prepared by a surveyor or engineer, and can 

generally be prepared by the applicant from the Assessor map of the property.  The dimensional information 

included on the plot plan must be accurate and drawn to scale so that the plot plan reasonably represents the subject 

property and any development therein.  If your application is for a land partition or subdivision Oregon Statute 

required that plat maps must be prepared by a surveyor licensed by the state. 



Application to conduct analysis pursuant to ORS 215.246 
 

 
July 6, 2017 

 
 
Property Location: Sections 19, 29 & 30 of Township 32 S., Range 15 W., W.M. 
 Tax lot 4400, and 
 Section 29c of Township 32 S., Range 15 W., W.M 
 Tax lot 500, and 
 Additional property and public right of way, as depicted on  
 Exhibit A 
 
Owners:  Knapp Ranches, Inc.  

92373 Knapp Rd 
Port Orford, OR 97465 

 
Applicants: Elk River Property Development 
 P.O. Box 790 

Port Orford, OR 97465 
  
Applicant's  Law Office of Bill Kloos, PC 
Representative:  375 W. 4th Ave., Suite 204  
   Eugene, OR 97401 
    
   Contact:  Nick Klingensmith  
   Phone:  (541) 912-5280 
   Email:  nklingensmith@landuseoregon.com  
 



WRITTEN STATEMENT 
 
REQUEST SUMMARY:   
 
Elk River Property Development, LLC (referred to hereafter as “ERPD”) is proposing to use 
recycled wastewater for irrigating a golf course on the property commonly known as the Knapp 
Ranch, which is zoned Exclusive Farm Use.  The use of recycled wastewater includes the 
development of a pipeline that originates at the City of Port Orford municipal wastewater 
treatment plant, the creation of a reservoir adjacent to the ultimate place of use, and development 
of ancillary facilities, such as pumps.  This application requests the county to conduct a public 
process required by statute when uses of this nature are proposed. 
 
Although the application of recycled water for irrigation is allowed-outright in EFU zones, 
pursuant to ORS 215.283(1)(v), the statutory framework for this use includes a requirement for 
public comment and an analysis of alternatives.   
 
The alternatives analysis that the applicant is now proposing comes directly from ORS 215.246, 
discussed in detail below.  There are no local regulations in the Curry County code that 
implement this statute.  Therefore, the statute will need to be applied directly.  This application 
will be reviewed by the Curry County Planning Commission pursuant to CCZO 2.060(2)(d), 
which provides that the Planning Commission has authority over “other land use actions” not 
specifically listed in adjacent code provisions.     
 
The entire text of ORS 215.246 is included below, but in summary, the statute requires the 
applicant to explain what it proposes, to consider public comment in response to the proposal, 
and to conduct a rigorous analysis of alternatives.  The statute’s requirement for a robust 
alternatives analysis will ensure that the ultimate development has been rigorously evaluated.   
 
The current proposal includes the placement of a pipe under public rights-of-way (with 
alternative routes to be considered), the development of a pond at the golf course that would 
contain the treated water at the golf course, the use of this water for irrigation during the 
appropriate seasons, and the development of ancillary components of the system, such as a pump 
station and valves.  A detailed description of the proposed irrigation system and the alternative 
pipeline routes have been prepared, and are attached as components of Exhibit A. 
 
Although a portion of the proposed system will be located inside the city limits of Port Orford 
(primarily consisting of a pump and pipeline that originates at the city’s sewage treatment plant) 
this application is primarily focused on the portions of the irrigation system that will be 
developed in the county.  As noted above, the applicant has obtained separate development 
approval for portions of the project that will be located in areas inside the city of Port Orford’s 
jurisdiction.   
 
 
  



Discussion of approval standards:  
Approval standards are shows in Italic font.  The applicant’s response and proposed findings are 
labeled as such and shown in regular font.   

 
ORS 215.283(1) The following uses may be established in any area zoned for exclusive 
farm use: 
 
[…] 
 
(v)   Subject to the issuance of a license, permit or other approval by the Department 
of Environmental Quality under ORS 454.695 (License required to perform sewage 
disposal services), 459.205 (Permit required), 468B.050 (Water quality permit), 
468B.053 (Alternatives to obtaining water quality permit) or 468B.055 (Plans and 
specifications for disposal, treatment and sewerage systems), or in compliance with rules 
adopted under ORS 468B.095 (Use of sludge on agricultural, horticultural or 
silvicultural land), and as provided in ORS 215.246 (Approval of land application of 
certain substances) to 215.251 (Relationship to other farm uses), the land application of 
reclaimed water, agricultural or industrial process water or biosolids for agricultural, 
horticultural or silvicultural production, or for irrigation in connection with a use 
allowed in an exclusive farm use zone under this chapter. 

 
Applicant’s response: the types of uses listed in ORS 215.283(1) are those uses allowed outright.  
Sub-section (v) includes “the land application of reclaimed water […]”.  The use proposed in this 
instance can be described as the land application of reclaimed water “as provided in ORS 
215.246.”  The statute requires the land application of reclaimed water to have a license, permit, 
or other approval from DEQ.  The applicant is in the process of obtaining the necessary 
“recycled wastewater use permit,” or “RWUP” from DEQ.  This statute also makes reference to 
ORS 215.246, which imposes a requirement to conduct an alternatives analysis.  DEQ cannot 
issue its RWUP until the alternatives analysis has been completed.  The remainder of this 
narrative addresses the provisions of ORS 215.246, including the alternatives analysis. 

 
ORS 215.246 Approval of land application of certain substances; subsequent use of 
tract of land; consideration of alternatives. (1) The uses allowed under ORS 215.213 
(1)(y) and 215.283 (1)(v): 
      (a) Require a determination by the Department of Environmental Quality, in 
conjunction with the department’s review of a license, permit or approval, that the 
application rates and site management practices for the land application of reclaimed 
water, agricultural or industrial process water or biosolids ensure continued 
agricultural, horticultural or silvicultural production and do not reduce the productivity 
of the tract. 

  
Applicant’s response:  DEQ is currently reviewing the ERPD’s application for a Wastewater 
Pollution Control Facility Permit (WPCF) and a Recycled Water Use Permit (RWUP).  The state 
agency review looks at the proposed application rate, site practices, water quality, and other 
criteria, and it will ensure the continued productivity of the land will not be harmed by this 
proposal.  DEQ’s review is being conducted concurrently with this county review.  At the 



completion of the county’s review, development of the project requires the applicant to obtain all 
necessary permits, including those issued by DEQ.  County completion of its review can be 
made explicitly contingent on the requirement for DEQ to grant its approvals before the 
applicant begins to develop or use its proposal for a recycled wastewater irrigation system.   

  
     (b) Are not subject to other provisions of ORS 215.213 or 215.283 or to the provisions 
of ORS 215.274, 215.275 or 215.296. 
 

Applicant’s response:  this provision requires the applicant to demonstrate that there are not 
additional statutes that apply to the proposal, or, if there are, that the proposal complies with 
them.  As explained below, the proposed use of recycled wastewater is not “subject to other 
provisions” of any of the listed statutes. 
 
ORS 215.213 does not apply in the current context, because it applies only in marginal lands 
counties, which Curry County is not.   
 
ORS 215.283 applies to non-marginal lands counties, such as Curry County, and that statute 
includes a list of uses allowed outright in EFU-zoned lands, including “the land application of 
reclaimed water”.  The only “other provision” imposed on this type of use by ORS 215.283 is the 
review required under ORS 215.246.  In this situation, ORS 215.283(1)(v) and ORS 
215.246(1)(b) make circular references to each other.  This land use application initiates the 
review required by ORS 215.246.       
 
ORS 215.274 does not apply to the current application, as it deals solely with electrical 
transmission lines.   
 
ORS 215.275 applies only to “utility facilities necessary for public service.”  Those types of 
utility facilities are specifically defined and regulated by ORS 215.283(1)(c)(A).  These “utility 
facilities necessary for public service” do not include the private wastewater utility facility that is 
proposed in this instance, which is separately regulated by ORS 215.283(1)(v).   
 
ORS 215.296 applies only to the uses that can be conditionally approved within the scope of 
ORS 215.283(2).  The proposal is one of the uses allowed outright under ORS 215.283(1), and is 
not subject to ORS 215.283(2).    
 
In summary, the statutes listed in section (1)(b) of the statute do not impose “other provisions” 
on the proposed use, aside from the provisions of ORS 215.246, which this application has been 
submitted to address.  
 

      (2) The use of a tract of land on which the land application of reclaimed water, 
agricultural or industrial process water or biosolids has occurred under this section may 
not be changed to allow a different use unless: 
 
[subsections (a) through (d) omitted for brevity.]   

 



Applicant’s response:  ORS 215.246(2) applies only to lands where application of “reclaimed 
water, agricultural or industrial process water or biosolids” has already occurred, and where a 
change of use has subsequently been proposed for those lands.  This standard is not applicable to 
the current situation.  Instead, the applicant is proposing to begin irrigating the lands with 
reclaimed water. 
 

      (3) When a state agency or a local government makes a land use decision relating to 
the land application of reclaimed water, agricultural or industrial process water or 
biosolids under a license, permit or approval by the Department of Environmental 
Quality, the applicant shall explain in writing how alternatives identified in public 
comments on the land use decision were considered and, if the alternatives are not used, 
explain in writing the reasons for not using the alternatives. The applicant must consider 
only those alternatives that are identified with sufficient specificity to afford the applicant 
an adequate opportunity to consider the alternatives. A land use decision relating to the 
land application of reclaimed water, agricultural or industrial process water or biosolids 
may not be reversed or remanded under this subsection unless the applicant failed to 
consider identified alternatives or to explain in writing the reasons for not using the 
alternatives. 

 
Applicant’s response:  This provision of the statute is the core substantive standard that must be 
addressed in this application.  ORS 215.246(3) requires an applicant for this type of development 
to consider “alternatives identified in public comments.”  Implicit in that requirement is the 
assumption that the proposal will be noticed to the public, with an opportunity for the public to 
provide comment.  Following that public comment period, the applicant is required to consider 
the alternatives proposed in the public comments.  Following the applicant’s analysis of 
alternatives, the county can issue a final decision on the proposal.     
 
At the end of this three-step process, the statute clarifies that an application that has been 
subjected to this type of alternatives analysis cannot be reversed or remanded unless the 
applicant failed to consider any of the proposed alternatives or if it did an inadequate job in 
explaining why it did not use any of the proposed alternatives.  This last provision imposes a 
procedural obligation for a specific type of analysis, and it is satisfied so long as that analysis is 
conducted correctly.   
 
The applicant recognizes there will likely be benefit to performing this analysis.  It is possible 
that the public comments will provide perspectives that the applicant had not considered, and it 
provides the applicant with the opportunity to incorporate those alternatives if they would make 
for a better proposal.  This decision-making process involves a rigorous exploration of the 
alternatives proposed in the public comments, and gives the applicant the opportunity to 
incorporate any alternatives that will make for a better project.   
 
At the end of this written narrative discussing the approval standards found in the statute, the 
applicant has provided Exhibit A, which includes a more detailed explanation of what it is 
proposing, and also relevant graphics.   
 



The main proposal, described generally, involves the movement of recycled wastewater to the 
golf course, where it can be used for irrigation.  However, the applicant realizes there are 
multiple variations on how that proposal can be achieved.  In order to start out the conversation 
on alternatives, the applicant’s materials include a proposed “preferred route” and an “alternative 
route.”   
 
The applicant expects that these diagrams and detailed explanation will set the stage for the 
alternatives analysis.  Once the county has invited public comment on the proposal, the applicant 
will diligently review and respond to that public comment, and will incorporate public testimony 
in fine-tuning the proposal, as needed and appropriate.  At the end of that process, the applicant 
understand the Planning Commission will render a decision that attests to the completion of the 
analysis required by statute. 
 
      (4) The uses allowed under this section include: 

(a) The treatment of reclaimed water, agricultural or industrial process water or 
biosolids that occurs as a result of the land application; 

 
Applicant’s response:  ORS 215.246(4) lists the types of uses and developments fall within the 
scope of this process.   
 
Pursuant to subsection (a), and in addition to the water quality treatments conducted at the Port 
Orford sewage treatment plant, natural processes will lead to continued improvements in water 
quality, such as exposure to UV light while the water is impounded in the pond at the golf 
course, and exposure to natural soil microbes that will digest nutrients and other substances 
found in trace amounts in the treated water.  This will amount to passive “treatment” of the 
reclaimed water that occurs as a result of the land application.   
 

(b) The establishment and use of facilities, including buildings, equipment, aerated 
and nonaerated water impoundments, pumps and other irrigation equipment, that are 
accessory to and reasonably necessary for the land application to occur on the subject 
tract; 
 

Applicant’s response:  Pursuant to subsection (b), the applicant is proposing improvements that 
will be necessary for the use of recycled wastewater on the tract where the irrigation will occur.  
These improvements will include a portion of the pipe that delivers the treated water, a pond that 
will store water, pumps and irrigation equipment, and a small pumphouse that will shelter the 
irrigation equipment.  

 
      (c) The establishment and use of facilities, including buildings and equipment, that 
are not on the tract on which the land application occurs for the transport of reclaimed 
water, agricultural or industrial process water or biosolids to the tract on which the land 
application occurs if the facilities are located within: 
      (A) A public right of way; or 
      (B) Other land if the landowner provides written consent and the owner of the facility 
complies with ORS 215.275 (4); and 



      (d) The transport by vehicle of reclaimed water or agricultural or industrial process 
water to a tract on which the water will be applied to land. 

 
Applicant’s response:  Pursuant to subsection (c), the applicant is proposing ancillary facilities 
necessary for the use of recycled wastewater that will be developed on lands outside of the tract 
where the irrigation will occur, consisting primarily of the placement of a pipeline along public 
rights of way.  In the limited instances where the pipeline is proposed to cross land that is not 
within a public right of way, the applicant understands that this statutory standard requires 
“written consent” from the land owner.   
 
The proposed pipeline will also cross privately-owned land at the location between the 
wastewater treatment plant and the public right of way.  Initially, the applicant obtained an 
easement to place its facilities on private lot between the treatment plant and the public right of 
way, but the applicant has subsequently purchased this lot, obviating the need for an easement.    
 
The “alternative route” for the pipeline, depicted at Exhibit A, will also require the pipeline route 
to leave the public right of way and to cross private property.  The applicant has the written 
authorization from the necessary private property owners, shown as Exhibit B. 
 

      (5) Uses not allowed under this section include: 
      (a) The establishment and use of facilities, including buildings or equipment, for the 
treatment of reclaimed water, agricultural or industrial process water or biosolids other 
than those treatment facilities related to the treatment that occurs as a result of the land 
application; or 
      (b) The establishment and use of utility facility service lines allowed under ORS 
215.213 (1)(x) or 215.283 (1)(u). 
 

Applicant’s response:  as explained in response to ORS 215.246(4), above, all water quality 
treatments will occur at the existing site of the Port Orford sewage treatment plant.  Some degree 
of water quality improvement that is expected to occur incidentally to storing the recycled water 
in the pond and then applying it to the golf course, where it will be exposed to soil microbes and 
other natural processes.  In reality, the water that is currently being discharged from the City of 
Port Orford’s treatment plant is already treated to such a high level that it is permitted to be 
discharged directly into the ocean.  Even though the reclaimed water coming from the treatment 
plant is treated to a high level, the applicant strongly believes that it is more environmentally 
sustainable to use the city’s treated effluent for irrigation, where any trace contaminants will be 
broken down by the exposure to air and UV light during the pond storage period, and by soil 
microbes after it is applied as irrigation, as opposed to discharging it directly into the fragile 
marine environment. 
   
In response to subsection (b), above, the applicant is not proposing any utility facility service 
lines.  The current proposal involves the delivery, storage and use of recycled wastewater, as 
specifically allowed by ORS 215.283(1)(v) and ORS 283.246(3).  The pipeline delivering the 
recycled wastewater is not a “utility service line” within the meaning of this statute because it is 
one of the necessary “facilities […] for the transport of reclaimed water,” specifically allowed 
under ORS 283.246(4)(c).   



 
Conclusion 
 
The statutory standards contained in ORS 215.246 have been addressed above.  Attached as 
Exhibit A is a detailed description of the system that the applicant is proposing.  It includes 
diagrams showing the proposed route and the alternative route, as well as a narrative section that 
explains the methods and materials of construction.  If the county provides notice and an 
opportunity for public comment, the applicant will consider and respond to any alternatives that 
may be suggested, pursuant to ORS 215.246(3).   
 
  



Exhibit A –   
 
detailed description of proposal to develop and use a system for irrigating Pacific Gales 
Golf Course with recycled wastewater. 

 
The applicant proposes to pipe recycled wastewater from the City of Port Orford wastewater 
treatment plant to the Pacific Gales Golf Course, and to use that water for irrigation.  The 
proposed pipeline routes (including a preferred route and an alternative route) are shown on the 
diagrams attached to this exhibit.  Only one of these two pipelines will be built.   
 
The pipeline will primarily be placed using horizontal boring when it is located under city right 
of ways, in order to minimize surface disruption and impacts to tree roots.  For portions of the 
pipe that are proposed to be located in the county, it will primarily be placed on the shoulder of 
the public right of way, using a standard trenching technique that will restore soil surface and 
paving surfaces to their original condition.  The pipe will be placed using horizontal boring 
anywhere along the length of the pipeline when it is necessary to pass below certain existing 
utility facilities, such as cables or pipes.   
 
The pipe material is 6” HDPE that will employ fused joints.  A fusion-joined pipeline may be 
thought of as a continuous pipeline without joints.  HDPE “DR11” pipe has an expected service 
life of 50-100years. HDPE pipe has a fatigue life of 10,000,000 pump cycles, or in excess of 100 
years.  The combination of pipe and pump will be capable of moving 200 gpm.  However, the 
pump that charges the pipeline will operate intermittently, as the wastewater treatment plant 
produces an average of 69.4 gpm.  The recycled wastewater will be held in a 10,000 gallon 
accumulating tank located at tax lot 1011, adjacent to the treatment plant, until the quantity is 
sufficient to operate the pipeline.   
 
The recycled water that will be obtained from the Port Orford treatment plant will be treated to 
DEQ Class C or higher.  Despite the very high level of treatment already being conducted at the 
treatment plant, the water will undergo additional passive water quality improvements as it 
resides in the reservoir on the golf course, and again, as it percolates through the turf and soil.   
 
At the northern terminus of the pipeline, it will discharge into an irrigation reservoir, as shown 
on page 2 of the attached irrigation plan.  The reservoir is anticipated to cover an area of 
approximately seven acres, and will hold approximately 100 acre-feet.  The reservoir will be 
designed and constructed according to the specifications established by the Water Resources 
Department’s dam safety division.   
 
The place of use for the recycled wastewater is shown on pages 1 and 2 of the attached irrigation 
plan.  This plan shows the proposed irrigation system plumbing.  In addition, the applicant 
proposes to use the water to grow and maintain turf and landscaping anywhere on the leased 
premises.  The golf course management plan involves an adaptive system of monitoring soil 
moisture and applying irrigation as needed, given climatic conditions and growing season, in 
order to prevent erosion and maximize soil and landscaping health.   
 
The total volume of recycled wastewater that is proposed to be pumped through the pipeline and 



applied as golf course irrigation will likely not exceed 110 acre-feet per year. 
 
 
 
 



ATTACHMENT 7 
EASEMENT AGREEMENTS 





















 
Chair John Brazil       Commissioner Kevin McHugh   
Vice Chair Bob Morrow       Commissioner Ted Freeman 
Commissioner Karen Kennedy     Commissioner Diana St. Marie 
                                                                                                 Commissioner Shannon Pagano 
 
         

Planning Commission Meeting Agenda  
Thursday, October 19, 2017 at 5:00 PM 

County Annex, 94235 Moore Street/Blue Room, Gold Beach, Oregon 
 

1. Call to Order / Roll Call  
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
3. Acceptance of the Agenda 
 
4. Public Comment for items not on the Agenda 

 
5. Agenda:  
 
A. Application AD-1705: Continued public hearing from September 21, 2017 for a request 
to develop a pipeline over multiple properties to deliver recycled wastewater, and a reservoir, 
in order to irrigate the Pacific Gales golf course. The pipeline could be located on land owned 
by multiple owners on property located on Assessor map 32-15-29C, lot numbers 103, 104, 
105, 106, 107, 108, 118, 120 and 21;  Applicant: Elk River Property Development LLC.  
       
6. Commissioner Comments 
 
7. Director Comments 
 
8. Adjournment: no later than 8:30 PM    

 



Application AD-17-05: October 19, 2017 Planning Commission continued public hearing Page 1 of 12 
 

Planning Commission Staff Report 
Prepared by Carolyn Johnson, Community Development Director  
 
Planning Commission Hearing Date:  October 19, 2017  
(continued from September 21, 2017) 
 
Audio of September 21, 2017 Planning Commission meeting:  
https://files.acrobat.com/a/preview/4a2a7d9a-19a9-4078-99c0-c70aa5e1317a 
 
Agenda Item:  Continued public hearing from September 21, 2017 -  Application AD-
1705: A request to develop a pipeline over multiple properties to deliver recycled wastewater, 
and a reservoir, in order to irrigate the Pacific Gales golf course. The pipeline could be located 
on land owned by multiple owners on property located on Assessor map 32-15-29C, lot 
numbers 103, 104, 105, 106, 107, 108, 118, 120 and 21;  Applicant: Elk River Property 
Development LLC.  
 
Background:  The Planning Commission reviewed the subject proposal on September 21, 
2017, continued the public hearing and kept the public record open to October 19, 2017.  
 
The Planning Commission asked whether a time extension had been filed for the Conditional 
Use Permit AD-1411 related to the Pacific Gales Golf course.  The answer to that question is 
no. The applicant’s representative will be present at the Planning Commission meeting to 
address the question of the CUP validity.  
 
Commissioner McHugh asked to see e-mails between staff and DLCD staff.  See attachment 8 
for these e-mails.  
 
The Commission discussed whether action could be taken on Application AD-1705 absent 
Commission clarity on the life of Conditional Use Permit AD-1411. The answer to this question 
is yes; application AD-1705, pursuant to  ORS 215.283(1)(v) is one of “Types of uses allowed 
outright as listed in ORS 215.283(1)  include “the land application of reclaimed water.”  
 
A Planning Commission decision on AD-1705 is not predicated on the status of AD-1411, nor  
do the findings for authorization of AD-1705 need to include a reference to the location or 
purpose of the reclaimed water recycled wastewater, and reservoir referenced in AD-1705.  As 
noted in the chart in the September 21, 2017 staff report and repeated later in this report, “The 
use proposed in this instance can be described as the land application of reclaimed water and 
can be used for irrigation in connection with an allowed use in an EFU. The statute requires 
the land application of reclaimed water to have a license, permit, or other approval from DEQ.   
 
The application was deemed complete August 4, 2017. Action on the application by the 
County, including appeals, is required within 150 days, or March 4, 2018. If County action is 
not completed by that time, the project will be considered approved. The applicant and the 
County can agree to extend the time for County review, not to exceed 215 days from the day 
the application was deemed completed. (May 21, 2018.)    
 
County Counsel has provided additional information that can be found on Attachment 10.  
 

https://files.acrobat.com/a/preview/4a2a7d9a-19a9-4078-99c0-c70aa5e1317a


Application AD-17-05: October 19, 2017 Planning Commission continued public hearing Page 2 of 12 
 

 
The Commission is also advised that: 
 

- Two hundred twenty eight (228) notices were mailed to property owners surrounding the 
proposed pipeline locations.  

- At the time of the October 19, 2017 Planning Commission packet preparation, one letter 
was received from the public. (Attachment 9)    

 
Planning Commission Requested Action: 
 
1) Review application, staff report, proposed findings, resolution, and associated materials.  
 

2) Review written, and hear oral testimony regarding the proposal.  
 

3) Consider if applicant has shown, with substantial evidence, that its project fits within the 
statutory category of the project, and that it has followed the process and considered 
alternatives.  
 

4) Evaluate alternatives and determine how to proceed. The Commission may:   
a. Continue the hearing to another date certain.     
b. Close the hearing but leave the record open to a date certain. Deliberate at a 
future meeting (date certain).  
c. Close the hearing and record, deliberate and APPROVE the development by 
passing Resolution 2017-AD-1705 addressing findings and conditions for the 
development.   
d. Close the hearing and record, deliberate and APPROVE the development based 
on additional findings and conditions to be added to Resolution 2017-AD-1705.  
 

Staff Recommendation:      
 
1) Based on the evidence in the record when this staff report was developed, a 
determination that the applicant has shown, with substantial evidence, that the project fits 
within the statutory category of the project, and that it has followed the process and is prepared 
to adequately consider public comment on the proposal(s). 
 
2) Any approval of the proposal include conditions as specified in Exhibit 1 of the proposed 
Planning Commission Resolution 2017-AD-1705 
 
Balance of the staff report 
 
The rest of the information in this report is reflective of the September 21, 2017 staff report 
prepared by Jake Callister of LCOG.  
 
Summary: The proposed pipeline would be developed inside public rights of way, and also 
on private property. There are two alternative routes under consideration. The reservoir will be 
developed on private property. The subject parcel is identified assessor map Sections 19, 29 & 
30 of Township 32 S., Range 15 W., M. Tax lot 4400, and Section 29c of Township 32 S., 



Application AD-17-05: October 19, 2017 Planning Commission continued public hearing Page 3 of 12 
 

Range 15., W., W. M. Tax lot 500, and additional property and public right of way, noted on 
figure maps1 below and larger maps found in Attachment 2. 
 
   
                                 Preferred Route                                            Alternative Route 

                                                 
1
 prepared by Stuntzner Engineering 



 

Application AD-17-05: October 19, 2017 Planning Commission continued public hearing Page 4 of 12 
 

 
Summary: As noted in the written statement provided by the applicant and further 
expanded in Attachment 3: 
 
“Elk River Property Development Property LLC is proposing to use recycled wastewater 
for irrigating a golf course on the property commonly known as Knapp Ranch, which is 
zoned Exclusive Farm Use (EFU). The use of recycled wastewater includes the 
development of a pipeline that originates at the City of Port Orford municipal wastewater 
treatment plant, the creation of a reservoir adjacent to the ultimate place of use (on 
Knapp Ranch), and development of ancillary facilities. As required by state statute the 
applicant requests the County to conduct a public process when uses of this nature are 
proposed.  
 
Although the application of recycled water for irrigation is allowed outright in EFU zones, 
pursuant to ORS 215.283(1) (v), the statutory framework for this use includes a 
requirement for public comment and an analysis of alternatives.  

The alternative analysis that the applicant is now proposing comes directly from ORS 
215.246. There are no local regulations in Curry County code that implements this 
statute, therefore the statute is applied directly. This application will be reviewed by the 
Curry County Planning Commission pursuant to CCZO 2.060(2) (d), which provides that 
the Planning Commission has authority over “other land use actions” not specifically 
listed in adjacent code provisions.  

In summary, ORS 215.246 requires the applicant to explain what it proposes, to 
consider public comment in response to the proposal, and to conduct an analysis of 
alternatives. . . . . 

Although a portion of the proposed system development will be located inside the city 
limits of Port Orford (consisting of a pump and pipeline that originates at the city’s 
sewage treatment plant), this application is primarily focused on the portions of the 
irrigation system that will be developed in the county. The applicant has obtained 
separate development approval for portions of the project that will be located in areas 
inside the city of Port Orford’s jurisdiction.” 

Citation of Applicable Criteria:  
 

Curry County Zoning Ordinance:  Section 2.060(2) (d). Article II. Procedures for Making 
Land Use Decisions. Application.  

 
ORS 215.283(1): Uses allowed in any area zoned for exclusive farm use.  
  
ORS 215.246: Approval of land application of certain substances; subsequent use of 
tract of land; consideration of alternatives. 
 
Evaluation of Criteria:  The evaluation of the applicable criteria is provided in the 
chart below and in the applicant’s written statement (Attachment 3).  



 

Application AD-17-05: October 19, 2017 Planning Commission continued public hearing Page 5 of 12 
 

 
Code Section Discussion and Recomended Findings 

CCZO  
Section 2.060(2)(d) 

FINDING: Application will be reviewed by Curry County 
Planning Commission which has authority under this 
application per subheading (d) “other land use actions”.  

ORS 215.283(1)(v): Types of uses 
allowed outright as listed in ORS 
215.283(1)  include “the land 
application of reclaimed water.” 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The use proposed in this instance can be described as the 
land application of reclaimed water and can be used for 
irrigation in connection with an allowed use in an EFU.  
 
Statute requires the land application of reclaimed water to 
have a license, permit, or other approval from DEQ.  
 
FINDING: DEQ review is being conducted concurrently 
with this County review. DEQ cannot issue its recycled 
wastewater use permit until the alternatives analysis has 
been completed. At the completion of the County’s review, 
development of the project requires the applicant to obtain 
all necessary permits, including those issued by DEQ. The 
following conditions of approval apply prior to pipeline 
construction: 
     Condition of Approval 1: Receive approval from the 
Oregon State Department of Environmental Quality. 
     Condition of Approval 2: Receive any and all local 
permits from the County with respect to installing facilites 
in County right-of-way. 

ORS 215.246(1) & (3): When a 
state agency or a local 
government makes a land use 
decision relating to the land 
application of reclaimed water, 
agricutural or industiral process 
water or biosoils under a license, 
permit or approval by the DEQ, the 
applicant shall explain in writing 
how alternatives identified in public 
comments on the land use 
decision were considered, and if 
the alternatives are not used, 
explain in writing the reasons for 
not using the alternatives. The 
applicant must consider only those 
alternatives that are identified with 
sufficient specifity to afford the 
applicant an adequate opportunity 
to consider the alternatives.  
A land use decision relating to the 
land application of reclaimed 
water, agricutural or industrial 
process water or biosoils may not 
be reversed or remanded under 

This statute requires applicant explanation to the DEQ how 
public comments were addressed in the development of 
alternatives to the land application of reclaimed water were 
i at the local land use hearing, and explain reasons for not 
using any identified (and adequately detailed) alternatives.  
 
A land use decision for a land application of reclaimed 
water (etc.), may not be reversed or remanded unless the 
applicant failed to consider identified alternatives or to 
explain in writing the reasons for not using the alternatives.   
 
FINDING: After the public hearing and a Planning 
Commission finding the applicant has adequately  
considered public comment related to identifed 
alterantives, then the applicant has satisfied this statutory 
requirement. Two public comments have been received at 
the writing of this report. Public comments received as a 
result of the notice and hearing introducing new evidence 
related to identified alternatives must be adeqeuatly 
considered and evaluated by the applicant. 
 
FINDING: ORS 215.246 (1)(b) requires that the applicant 
indicate that there are no additional statutes that apply. 
The applicant has indicated this. Recycled wastewater is 
not subject to other provisions of any listed statutes.  



 

Application AD-17-05: October 19, 2017 Planning Commission continued public hearing Page 6 of 12 
 

Code Section Discussion and Recomended Findings 
this subsection unless the 
applicant failed to consider 
identified alternatives or to explain 
in writing the reasons for not using 
the alternatives.  

 
 
 

ORS 215.246(4)(a): The uses 
allowed under this section include: 
The treatment of reclaimed water, 
agricultural or industrial process 
water or biosolids that occurs as a 
result of the land application; 

In addition to Port Orford water treatment sewage 
treatment plant processing, natural processes will lead to 
continued improvements in water quality, like exposure to 
UV light while the water is impounded in the pond at the 
golf course, exposure to natural soil microbes digesting 
nutrients and other substances found in trace amounts in 
the treated water.  
 
FINDING: This will amount to passive “treatment” of the 
reclaimed water that occurs as a result of land application.  

ORS 215.246(4)(b): The 
establishment and use of facilities, 
including buildings, equipment, 
aerated and nonaerated water 
impoundments, pumps and other 
irrigation equipment, that are 
accessory to and reasonably 
necessary for the land application 
to occur on the subject tract;  

Applicant  is proposing equipment that includes a portion 
of the pipe that delivers treated water, a pond that will 
store water, pumps and irrigation equpiment, and  a small 
pumphouse that will shelter the irrigation equipment.  
 
FINDING: Improvements will be reasonably necesarry for 
the use of recycled wastewater on the tract where the 
irrigation will occur. 
  



 

Application AD-17-05: October 19, 2017 Planning Commission continued public hearing Page 7 of 12 
 

Code Section Discussion and Recomended Findings 
ORS 215.246(4)(c) 
The Establishment and use of 
facilities, including buildings and 
equipment, that are not on the 
tract on which the land application 
occurs for the transport of 
reclaimed water, agricutural or 
indsutrial process water or biosoils 
to the tract on which the land 
application occurs if the facilities 
are located within: (A) a public 
right of way; or (B) Other land if 
the landowner provides written 
consent and the owner of the 
facility complies with ORS 
215.275(4); and (d) the transport 
by vehicle of reclaimed water on 
which the water will be applied. 

Applicant is proposing ancillary facilites necesarry for the 
use of recycled wasterwater that will be developed on 
lands outside of the tract where irrigation will occur, 
primarly in right of way. In limited instances where pipeline 
is to cross land that is not within right of way, applicant 
understands “written consent” must be obtained from land 
owner.  
 
FINDING: For both preferred and alternate route, applicant 
has obtained easements with land owners where pipeline 
passes through private property (see Attachment 6). 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ORS 215.246(5) 
Uses not allowed under this 
section include: (a) The 
establishment and use of facilities, 
including buildings or equipment, 
for the treatment of reclaimed 
water, agricultural or industrial 
process water or biosoils other 
than those treatment facilites 
related to the treatment that 
occurs as a result of the land 
application; or (b) the 
establishment and use of utility 
facility service lines allowed under 
ORS 215.213(1)(x) or 
215.283(1)(u).  
 
 

All water quality treatments will occur at existing Port 
Orford sewage treament plant. Some degree of water 
quality improvement that is expected to occur incidentally 
to storing recycled water in the pond, and then applied to 
the golf course, where it will be exposed to soil microbes 
and other natural processes. Water currently being 
discharged from sewage treatment plant is already treated 
to such a high level that it is permitted to be discharged 
directly into the ocean. The applicant strongly believes that 
it is more enviornmentally sustainable to use City’s effluent 
for irrgation, where any trace containments will be broken 
down by exposure to air and UV light during the pond 
storage period, and by soil microbes after it is applied as 
irrgation, as opposed to discharging it directly into the 
marine environment.  
 
The pipeline delivering the recycled wastewater is not a 
“utility service line” within the meaning of this statute 
because it is one of the necesarry “facilites for the 
transport of reclaimed water” as specifcally allowed under 
ORS 283.246(4)(c).  
 
FINDING: Applicant is not proposing any utility facility 
service line. Current proposal involves delivery, storage 
and use of recycled wastewater, as specifically allowed 
under ORS 215.283(1)(v) and ORS 215.246(4)(c). 

 
 
 
 



 

Application AD-17-05: October 19, 2017 Planning Commission continued public hearing Page 8 of 12 
 

ATTACHMENTS 
Attachment 1 – Planning Commission resolution 2017-AD-1705, including project 

conditions.  
Attachment 2 -  Proposed preferred and alternative pipeline routes.  
Attachment 3 – Applicant’s written statement and detailed decription of alternative 

routes and plans.  
Attachment 4 -  County Counsel Memo 
Attachment 5 – Public notice 
Attachment 6 – Project application 
Attachment 7 – Easement agreements 
Attachment 8 -  E-mails to/from DLCD requested by Commissioner McHugh 
Attachment 9 - Public CommentsOublic comment from Betty Walters 
Attachment 10 -  October 11, 2017  memo from County Counsel  
  



 

Application AD-17-05: October 19, 2017 Planning Commission continued public hearing Page 9 of 12 
 

ATTACHMENT 1  
Planning Commission Resolution AD-1705 Conditionally Approving the Proposal  
  



 

Application AD-17-05: October 19, 2017 Planning Commission continued public hearing Page 10 of 12 
 

 
 

Resolution 2017-AD-1705 
A Resolution of the Curry County Planning Commission approving the Elk River 
Property Development LLC Application AD-1705 to develop a pipeline to deliver 
recycled wastewater in order to irrigate the Pacific Gales golf course. File #: AD-
1705, Map/TL: Sections 19, 29 & 30 of Township 32 S., Range 15 W., M. Tax lot 
4400, and Section 29c of Township 32 S., Range 15. W., W. M. Tax lot 500, and 
additional property and public right of way.  
 
WHEREAS, the Curry County Planning Commission held a duly noticed public hearing 
on application AD-1705 filed by Elk River Property Development LLC for approval to 
develop a pipeline to deliver recycled wastewater in order to irrigate the Pacific Gales 
golf course.  
 
WHEREAS, the Commission held the public hearing on September 21 and October 19,, 
2017 at which time staff presented their report and the applicant’s findings.  The 
Commission also received additional testimony at the hearing from interested parties.   
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Curry County Planning Commission 
hereby approves the land use request of the proposed development of pipeline in 
order to irrigate Pacific Gales golf course based on the findings specified in the 
September 21, 2017 staff report, subject to the conditions attached to this resolution as 
Exhibit 1.  
  
UPON THE MOTION of Planning Commissioner                    , seconded by Planning 
Commissioner                              , the foregoing Resolution is hereby approved and 
adopted the 19th day of October, 2017 by the following roll call, to wit:  
 
 

AYES NAYS ABSTAIN ABSENT 
    

 
 

_______________________________________ 
John Brazil 

Planning Commission Chairperson 
ATTEST 
 
_______________________________________ 
Carolyn Johnson 
Community Development Director 



 

Application AD-17-05: October 19, 2017 Planning Commission continued public hearing Page 11 of 12 
 

 
EXHIBIT 1 

APPROVAL OF ELK RIVER PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT LLC TO DEVELOP 
PIPELINE TO DELIVER RECYCLED WASTEWATER AND A RESERVOIR IN ORDER 

TO IRRIGATE THE PACIFIC GALES GOLF COURSE. FILE #: AD-1705, MAP/TL: 
SECTIONS 19, 29, &30 OF TOWNSHIP 32 S., RANGE 15 W., W. M. TAX LOT 4400 

AND SECTION 29C OF TOWNSHIP 32 S., RANGE 15 W., W. M. TAX LOT 500, AND 
ADDITIONAL PROPERTY AND PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY.  

 
AUTHORIZATION: This land use request AD-1705 is hereby authorized subject to the 
conditions listed below.  Approval is granted only for development to develop pipeline to 
deliver recycled wastewater and a reservoir in order to irrigate pacific gales golf course, 
to be developed inside public rights of way and also on private property.  Any proposed 
changes to this land use request shall require further review by the Planning 
Commission.   
 
EFFECTIVE DATE:      October 19, 2017 
 
ACCEPTANCE OF CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: The property owner shall 
acknowledge receipt of these Conditions of Approval by signing and returning the 
statement below.   
 
TRUE AND CORRECT AFFIRMATION AND COMPLIANCE AGREEMENT:  I affirm 
that the information my agent or I submitted to the County that was used to review and 
authorize this proposal is true and correct to the best of my knowledge. I acknowledge 
that the County can revoke this land use authorization if it has been obtained under 
false pretenses.  
 
I have read and understood, and I will comply with all applicable requirements of any 
law or agency of the State of Oregon, Curry County, and any other governmental entity 
that may have jurisdiction over this proposal.  The duty of inquiry as to such 
requirements shall be my responsibility. I agree to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless 
Curry County and its agents, officers, and employees, from any claim, action, or 
proceeding against the County as a result of the action or inaction by the County, or 
from any claim to attack, set aside, void, or annul of this approval by the County of the 
project; or my failure to comply with conditions of approval. This agreement shall be 
binding on all successors and assigns of the subject property.  
 
 
________________________________________________           ________________ 
Jim Haley, Manager, Elk River Property Development LLC              Date 
Applicant 
 
________________________________________________  ________________ 
Jeremy Knapp, President, Knapp Ranches Inc.    Date 
Property owner 



 

Application AD-17-05: October 19, 2017 Planning Commission continued public hearing Page 12 of 12 
 

 

AD-1705 Conditions of Approval 
 
PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION OF PIPELINE 
1. Receive approval from the Oregon State Department of Environmental Quality.  
 
2. Receive any and all local permits from the County with respect to installing facilites in 
County right-of-way. 
 



ATTACHMENT 2 
PROPOSED PREFERRED AND ALTERNATIVE ROUTES OF PIPELINE  



 



 
 
 



ATTACHMENT 3 
APPLICANTS WRITTEN STATEMENT  

AND  
DETAILED DECRIPTION OF ALTERNATIVE ROUTES AND PLANS 

















































ATTACHMENT 4 
COUNTY COUNSEL MEMO 









ATTACHMENT 5 
PUBLIC NOTICE 



 



  

 



ATTACHMENT 6 
PROJECT APPLICATION 



Land Use Application  
Page 1 of 5 

 
CURRY COUNTY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

94235 MOORE STREET, SUITE 113 
GOLD BEACH, OREGON  97444             

Carolyn Johnson                             Phone (541) 247-3284 
Planning Director                                          FAX (541) 247-4579 

 
 
File #___________    Fee $ ___________   Receipt # ____________   Accepted by _________ 
 

LAND USE DECISION APPLICATION FORM 
Application Type (Check One) 
 

 Comp Plan/Zone Change              Conditional Use              Variance             Partition                 Subdivision    
 

  Other 
 
Application Date:_____________________ Hearing / Decision Date: ___________________ 
 

APPLICANT:  Please complete all parts of this form.  The attached application checklist will be marked by staff to reflect the 
information and supporting items required for this request.  Please return this prepared checklist, the completed application 
form and required fee at the time of submission.  Please note that your application cannot be reviewed or processed until all 
the required items have been provided.   
 
 

1. PROPERTY OWNER OF RECORD 
 

Name _public right-of-way, owned by Curry County and ODOT, as shown on exhibit.  Private 

property owned by Knapp Ranches, Inc._________ 

Mailing Address: __(for Knapp Ranches) 92373 Knapp Rd                   _______________________ 

City, State, ZIP: _Port Orford, OR 97465______________________________________________ 

Telephone #: ________________________________    E-Mail _bknapp@2cj.com____ 

 

2.         AGENT (If Any) 

Name: __Nick Klingensmith, Law Office of Bill Kloos, P.C._______ 

Mailing Address: _375 W. 4th Ave, suite 201,   _ 

City, State, ZIP: ___ Eugene OR, 97401__________________________________________ 

Telephone # _541-912-5280_________  E-Mail __nklingensmith@landuseoregon.com________ 

 

3.        BASIC PROPOSAL (Briefly describe your proposed land use) 

___The applicant proposes to develop a pipeline to deliver recycled wastewater, and a reservoir, in 

order to irrigate the Pacific Gales golf course.  The pipeline will be developed inside public rights of 

way, and also on private property.  There are two alternative routes under consideration.  The reservoir 

will be developed on private property.  Please see attached narrative that addresses relevant approval 

standards.  ___________________________________ 

 

4.        PROPERTY INFORMATION 

Assessor Map #_See attached narrative__    Tax Lot (s) ___________________________ 



Land Use Application  
Page 2 of 5 

Zoning: ______________________________    Total Acreage _____________________________ 

   

   
 
 
 

5. PROPERTY LOCATION  
Address (if property has a situs address) __________________________________________ 

Description of how to locate the property __The two pipeline routes under consideration are 

depicted in attached exhibits.  They can generally be described as (1) running north along 

Arizona St, and thence west and north across land owned by Knapp Ranches Inc.; and (2) 

running north along Madrona Ave., until travelling west (partially through private property, 

with the landowner’s permission) to land owned by Knapp Ranches, Inc._______________ 

 

6. EXISTING LAND USE (briefly describe the present land use of the property) 

   Vacant    Developed;  Describe existing development _The subject property is a 

mixture of vacant and developed.  The public rights of way are developed with roadbed and 

pavement.  Portions of the private property along both routes have varying degrees of existing 

low-density residential development.  The property known as the Knapp Ranch is vacant, and 

is primarily used for cattle grazing. 

 

7. SURROUNDING LAND USES (Briefly describe the land uses on adjacent property)  

___Land uses adjacent to the proposed pipeline include low-density residential uses, and 

vacant lands, as depicted in the attached exhibits.    

 

8. SERVICE AND FACILITIES AVAILABLE TO THE PROPERTY 
Please indicate what services and facilities are available to the property.  If on-site sewage disposal and/or water 
source is proposed, a copy of the approved site evaluation or septic system permit and a copy of any water rights 
or well construction permit must be submitted with this application. 
 
The proposed development is a pipeline that will carry recycled wastewater.  None of the services and facilities in 

this list are needed for the use, and none of them are germane to relevant approval criteria.    

Water Source ____________________________________________________ 

Sewage Disposal _________________________________________________ 

Electrical Power __________________________________________________ 

Telephone Service ________________________________________________ 

Fire Department/District ___________________________________________ 

School District ___________________________________________________ 

 

9. ROAD INFORMATION 

Nearest Public Road ___See attached narrative_____ 

Private Roads Serving the Property __ See attached narrative ______________________ 



Land Use Application  
Page 3 of 5 

 Road Condition______________________________________________________________ 

 Legal Status ________________________________________________________________ 

 Ownership:   I own the road   Easement on others property   Joint Owner   

 Please submit record of ownership (i.e. deeds, easement, plat dedication, etc) 

Proposed New Roads/Driveways (Briefly describe any new road construction related to this application 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

   

10. PHYSICAL DESCRIPTION OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY 

Topography (Briefly describe the general slope and terrain of the property) 

__The land where the proposed pipeline will be developed is relatively flat, for both routes 

under consideration, with a gentle upward slope as the pipeline advances to the north.   _____ 

 

Vegetation (Briefly describe the vegetation on the property) __For the portion of the pipeline 

that will be developed within public rights of way, there is no vegetation.  For the portion of 

the pipeline that will be developed across the Knapp Ranch, the vegetation is a mix of low 

timber and scrub.    
 

 

11. FINDINGS OF FACT 
Oregon Statute and the zoning ordinance requires that land use decisions be supported by factual 
findings.  The burden of proof is on the proponent therefore it is required that the application provide 
findings to support the request in this application.  The standards and criteria that are relevant to this 
application will be provided by the staff and are considered to be a part of this application form.  
Please read the standards and criteria carefully and provide factual responses and evidence to address 
each standard.  These findings must be sufficiently specific to allow the decision maker to determine 
whether your request meets the relevant standard.  Please attach your written findings and supporting 
evidence to this application.   
FAILURE TO PROVIDE THE REQUIRED FINDINGS WILL PREVENT THE APPLICATION 
FROM BEING PROCESSED AND IT WILL BE RETURNED AS BEING INCOMPLETE. 

 
 

12. APPLICANT’S SIGNATURE AND STATEMENT OF UNDERSTANDING 
(Please read the statement below before signing the signature blank) 

I (We)_________________________________________________ ; 

 __________________________________________________ ; 

 __________________________________________________ ; 

 __________________________________________________ ;  have filed this application for 

 _____________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
With the Curry County Department of Community Development-Planning Division to be reviewed and processed 
according to State of Oregon and county ordinance requirements.  My (our) signature (s) below affirms that I (we) 
have discussed the application with the staff, and that I (we) acknowledge the following disclosures: 
 
(a) I (we are stating all information and documentation submitted with this application is true and 

correct to the best of my (our) knowledge.  
 



Land Use Application  
Page 4 of 5 

(b) I (we) understand that if false information and documentation has been submitted and the decision 
is based on that evidence, the decision may be nullified and the county may seek all legal means to 
have the action reversed.  

 
(c) I (We) understand any representations, conclusions or opinions expressed by the staff in pre-

application review of this request do not constitute final authority or approval, and I (we) am (are) 
not entitled to rely on such expressions in lieu of formal approval of my (our) request.  

 
(d) I (We) understand that I (we) may ask questions and receive input from staff, but acknowledge 

that I (we) am (are) ultimately responsible for all information or documentation submitted with 
this application.  I (We) further understand staff cannot legally bind the county to any fact or 
circumstance which conflicts with State of Oregon or local ordinance, and in event a conflict 
occurs, the statement or agreement is null and void.  

 
(e) I (We) understand that I (we) have the burden of proving that this request meets statutory and 

Ordinance requirements, and I (we) must address all of the criteria that may apply to the decision 
being made.  The criteria for approving or denying this request have been provided to me (us) as a 
part of the application form. 

 
(f) I (We) understand the staff is entitled to request additional information or documentation any time 

after the submission of this application if it is determined as such information is needed for review 
and approval.   

 
(g) I (We) understand this application will be reviewed by the Oregon Department of Land 

Conservation & Development (DLCD) and possibly other state agencies as part of the statewide 
land use coordination process.  I (We) understand that agencies that participate in the review 
process have the legal right to appeal the approval of the request.   

 
(h) I (We) understand that it is my (our) responsibility, and not the county’s, to respond to any appeal 

and to prepare the legal defense of the county’s approval of my (our) request.  I (We) further 
realize it is not the county’s function to argue the case at any appeal hearing.   

 
(i) I (We) understand that I (we) am (are) entitled to have a lawyer or land use consultant represent 

me (us) regarding my application and to appear with me (or for me) at any appointment, 
conference or hearing relating to it.  In light of the complexity and technical nature of most land 
use decisions, I (we) understand that it may be in my best interests to seek professional assistance 
in preparation of this application. 

 
(j) The undersigned are the owner (s) of record for the property described as: 

 
Assessor Map(s) _______________________________________________________ 

and Tax Lot(s) _________________________________________________________ 

in the records of Curry County.  
 

This application MUST BE SIGNED BY ALL PROPERTY OWNERS OF RECORD, or you must submit a 

notarized document signed by each owner of record who has not signed the application form, stating that the owner 

has authorized this application. 

 

(1) Signature _________________________________________________________________ 

Print Name __Nick Klingensmith, attorney for Elk River Property Development, LLC____ 

  

 (2) Signature _________________________________________________________________ 

 

 



Land Use Application  
Page 5 of 5 

(3)        Signature _________________________________________________________________ 

Print Name ________________________________________________________________ 

   

 (4) Signature _________________________________________________________________ 

Print Name ________________________________________________________________ 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

ADDITIONAL NOTES: 

All fees must be paid at the time your application is filed.  Staff will examine the application when filed to check for 

completeness and will not accept it if required items are missing.  A final completeness check will be made prior to 

doing public notice regarding the pending decision.  If it is determined to be incomplete or the findings are 

insufficient you will be notified and you must provide the required information in a timely manner to avoid denial of 

the request.   

 

ORS 215.427 required the county to take final action on a land use application (except for plan/zone changes) 

including all local appeals within 120 days if inside an Urban Growth Boundary (UGB) or 150 days if outside a 

UGB once the application is deemed complete. 

 

PLOT PLANS:  

All applications require that a plot plan of the subject property be included with the application form.  The plot plan 

is an understandable may of your property and its relationship to adjacent properties.  The plot plan must show 

certain essential information that is needed for the staff and the decision makers in the evaluation of your request.  

The plot plan is also incorporated into the public notice sent to adjacent property owners and affected agencies.  The 

plot plan should be prepared on a single sheet of paper (preferable 8 ½ x 11”) so copies can easily be reproduced for 

review.   

 

An example plot plan is attached to this form to give you an idea of what information should be included on your 

plan and how it should be drawn.  The plot plan does not have to be prepared by a surveyor or engineer, and can 

generally be prepared by the applicant from the Assessor map of the property.  The dimensional information 

included on the plot plan must be accurate and drawn to scale so that the plot plan reasonably represents the subject 

property and any development therein.  If your application is for a land partition or subdivision Oregon Statute 

required that plat maps must be prepared by a surveyor licensed by the state. 



Application to conduct analysis pursuant to ORS 215.246 

 

 

July 6, 2017 

 

 

Property Location: Sections 19, 29 & 30 of Township 32 S., Range 15 W., W.M. 

 Tax lot 4400, and 
 Section 29c of Township 32 S., Range 15 W., W.M 

 Tax lot 500, and 
 Additional property and public right of way, as depicted on  

 Exhibit A 

 

Owners:  Knapp Ranches, Inc.  

92373 Knapp Rd 

Port Orford, OR 97465 

 

Applicants: Elk River Property Development 

 P.O. Box 790 

Port Orford, OR 97465 

  

Applicant's  Law Office of Bill Kloos, PC 

Representative:  375 W. 4
th

 Ave., Suite 204  

   Eugene, OR 97401 

    

   Contact:  Nick Klingensmith  

   Phone:  (541) 912-5280 

   Email:  nklingensmith@landuseoregon.com  

 



WRITTEN STATEMENT 

 

REQUEST SUMMARY:   

 

Elk River Property Development, LLC (referred to hereafter as “ERPD”) is proposing to use 

recycled wastewater for irrigating a golf course on the property commonly known as the Knapp 

Ranch, which is zoned Exclusive Farm Use.  The use of recycled wastewater includes the 

development of a pipeline that originates at the City of Port Orford municipal wastewater 

treatment plant, the creation of a reservoir adjacent to the ultimate place of use, and development 

of ancillary facilities, such as pumps.  This application requests the county to conduct a public 

process required by statute when uses of this nature are proposed. 

 

Although the application of recycled water for irrigation is allowed-outright in EFU zones, 

pursuant to ORS 215.283(1)(v), the statutory framework for this use includes a requirement for 

public comment and an analysis of alternatives.   

 

The alternatives analysis that the applicant is now proposing comes directly from ORS 215.246, 

discussed in detail below.  There are no local regulations in the Curry County code that 

implement this statute.  Therefore, the statute will need to be applied directly.  This application 

will be reviewed by the Curry County Planning Commission pursuant to CCZO 2.060(2)(d), 

which provides that the Planning Commission has authority over “other land use actions” not 

specifically listed in adjacent code provisions.     

 

The entire text of ORS 215.246 is included below, but in summary, the statute requires the 

applicant to explain what it proposes, to consider public comment in response to the proposal, 

and to conduct a rigorous analysis of alternatives.  The statute’s requirement for a robust 

alternatives analysis will ensure that the ultimate development has been rigorously evaluated.   

 

The current proposal includes the placement of a pipe under public rights-of-way (with 

alternative routes to be considered), the development of a pond at the golf course that would 

contain the treated water at the golf course, the use of this water for irrigation during the 

appropriate seasons, and the development of ancillary components of the system, such as a pump 

station and valves.  A detailed description of the proposed irrigation system and the alternative 

pipeline routes have been prepared, and are attached as components of Exhibit A. 

 

Although a portion of the proposed system will be located inside the city limits of Port Orford 

(primarily consisting of a pump and pipeline that originates at the city’s sewage treatment plant) 

this application is primarily focused on the portions of the irrigation system that will be 

developed in the county.  As noted above, the applicant has obtained separate development 

approval for portions of the project that will be located in areas inside the city of Port Orford’s 

jurisdiction.   

 

 

  



Discussion of approval standards:  

Approval standards are shows in Italic font.  The applicant’s response and proposed findings are 

labeled as such and shown in regular font.   

 
ORS 215.283(1) The following uses may be established in any area zoned for exclusive 
farm use: 
 
[…] 
 
(v)   Subject to the issuance of a license, permit or other approval by the Department 
of Environmental Quality under ORS 454.695 (License required to perform sewage 
disposal services), 459.205 (Permit required), 468B.050 (Water quality permit), 
468B.053 (Alternatives to obtaining water quality permit) or 468B.055 (Plans and 
specifications for disposal, treatment and sewerage systems), or in compliance with rules 
adopted under ORS 468B.095 (Use of sludge on agricultural, horticultural or 
silvicultural land), and as provided in ORS 215.246 (Approval of land application of 
certain substances) to 215.251 (Relationship to other farm uses), the land application of 
reclaimed water, agricultural or industrial process water or biosolids for agricultural, 
horticultural or silvicultural production, or for irrigation in connection with a use 
allowed in an exclusive farm use zone under this chapter. 

 

Applicant’s response: the types of uses listed in ORS 215.283(1) are those uses allowed outright.  

Sub-section (v) includes “the land application of reclaimed water […]”.  The use proposed in this 

instance can be described as the land application of reclaimed water “as provided in ORS 

215.246.”  The statute requires the land application of reclaimed water to have a license, permit, 

or other approval from DEQ.  The applicant is in the process of obtaining the necessary 

“recycled wastewater use permit,” or “RWUP” from DEQ.  This statute also makes reference to 

ORS 215.246, which imposes a requirement to conduct an alternatives analysis.  DEQ cannot 

issue its RWUP until the alternatives analysis has been completed.  The remainder of this 

narrative addresses the provisions of ORS 215.246, including the alternatives analysis. 
 
ORS 215.246 Approval of land application of certain substances; subsequent use of 
tract of land; consideration of alternatives. (1) The uses allowed under ORS 215.213 
(1)(y) and 215.283 (1)(v): 
      (a) Require a determination by the Department of Environmental Quality, in 
conjunction with the department’s review of a license, permit or approval, that the 
application rates and site management practices for the land application of reclaimed 
water, agricultural or industrial process water or biosolids ensure continued 
agricultural, horticultural or silvicultural production and do not reduce the productivity 
of the tract. 

  
Applicant’s response:  DEQ is currently reviewing the ERPD’s application for a Wastewater 

Pollution Control Facility Permit (WPCF) and a Recycled Water Use Permit (RWUP).  The state 

agency review looks at the proposed application rate, site practices, water quality, and other 

criteria, and it will ensure the continued productivity of the land will not be harmed by this 

proposal.  DEQ’s review is being conducted concurrently with this county review.  At the 



completion of the county’s review, development of the project requires the applicant to obtain all 

necessary permits, including those issued by DEQ.  County completion of its review can be 

made explicitly contingent on the requirement for DEQ to grant its approvals before the 

applicant begins to develop or use its proposal for a recycled wastewater irrigation system.   

  
     (b) Are not subject to other provisions of ORS 215.213 or 215.283 or to the provisions 
of ORS 215.274, 215.275 or 215.296. 
 

Applicant’s response:  this provision requires the applicant to demonstrate that there are not 

additional statutes that apply to the proposal, or, if there are, that the proposal complies with 

them.  As explained below, the proposed use of recycled wastewater is not “subject to other 

provisions” of any of the listed statutes. 

 

ORS 215.213 does not apply in the current context, because it applies only in marginal lands 

counties, which Curry County is not.   

 

ORS 215.283 applies to non-marginal lands counties, such as Curry County, and that statute 

includes a list of uses allowed outright in EFU-zoned lands, including “the land application of 

reclaimed water”.  The only “other provision” imposed on this type of use by ORS 215.283 is the 

review required under ORS 215.246.  In this situation, ORS 215.283(1)(v) and ORS 

215.246(1)(b) make circular references to each other.  This land use application initiates the 

review required by ORS 215.246.       

 

ORS 215.274 does not apply to the current application, as it deals solely with electrical 

transmission lines.   

 

ORS 215.275 applies only to “utility facilities necessary for public service.”  Those types of 

utility facilities are specifically defined and regulated by ORS 215.283(1)(c)(A).  These “utility 

facilities necessary for public service” do not include the private wastewater utility facility that is 

proposed in this instance, which is separately regulated by ORS 215.283(1)(v).   

 

ORS 215.296 applies only to the uses that can be conditionally approved within the scope of 

ORS 215.283(2).  The proposal is one of the uses allowed outright under ORS 215.283(1), and is 

not subject to ORS 215.283(2).    

 

In summary, the statutes listed in section (1)(b) of the statute do not impose “other provisions” 

on the proposed use, aside from the provisions of ORS 215.246, which this application has been 

submitted to address.  

 
      (2) The use of a tract of land on which the land application of reclaimed water, 
agricultural or industrial process water or biosolids has occurred under this section may 
not be changed to allow a different use unless: 
 
[subsections (a) through (d) omitted for brevity.]   

 



Applicant’s response:  ORS 215.246(2) applies only to lands where application of “reclaimed 

water, agricultural or industrial process water or biosolids” has already occurred, and where a 

change of use has subsequently been proposed for those lands.  This standard is not applicable to 

the current situation.  Instead, the applicant is proposing to begin irrigating the lands with 

reclaimed water. 

 

      (3) When a state agency or a local government makes a land use decision relating to 
the land application of reclaimed water, agricultural or industrial process water or 
biosolids under a license, permit or approval by the Department of Environmental 
Quality, the applicant shall explain in writing how alternatives identified in public 
comments on the land use decision were considered and, if the alternatives are not used, 
explain in writing the reasons for not using the alternatives. The applicant must consider 
only those alternatives that are identified with sufficient specificity to afford the applicant 
an adequate opportunity to consider the alternatives. A land use decision relating to the 
land application of reclaimed water, agricultural or industrial process water or biosolids 
may not be reversed or remanded under this subsection unless the applicant failed to 
consider identified alternatives or to explain in writing the reasons for not using the 
alternatives. 

 

Applicant’s response:  This provision of the statute is the core substantive standard that must be 

addressed in this application.  ORS 215.246(3) requires an applicant for this type of development 

to consider “alternatives identified in public comments.”  Implicit in that requirement is the 

assumption that the proposal will be noticed to the public, with an opportunity for the public to 

provide comment.  Following that public comment period, the applicant is required to consider 

the alternatives proposed in the public comments.  Following the applicant’s analysis of 

alternatives, the county can issue a final decision on the proposal.     

 

At the end of this three-step process, the statute clarifies that an application that has been 

subjected to this type of alternatives analysis cannot be reversed or remanded unless the 

applicant failed to consider any of the proposed alternatives or if it did an inadequate job in 

explaining why it did not use any of the proposed alternatives.  This last provision imposes a 

procedural obligation for a specific type of analysis, and it is satisfied so long as that analysis is 

conducted correctly.   

 

The applicant recognizes there will likely be benefit to performing this analysis.  It is possible 

that the public comments will provide perspectives that the applicant had not considered, and it 

provides the applicant with the opportunity to incorporate those alternatives if they would make 

for a better proposal.  This decision-making process involves a rigorous exploration of the 

alternatives proposed in the public comments, and gives the applicant the opportunity to 

incorporate any alternatives that will make for a better project.   

 

At the end of this written narrative discussing the approval standards found in the statute, the 

applicant has provided Exhibit A, which includes a more detailed explanation of what it is 

proposing, and also relevant graphics.   

 



The main proposal, described generally, involves the movement of recycled wastewater to the 

golf course, where it can be used for irrigation.  However, the applicant realizes there are 

multiple variations on how that proposal can be achieved.  In order to start out the conversation 

on alternatives, the applicant’s materials include a proposed “preferred route” and an “alternative 

route.”   

 

The applicant expects that these diagrams and detailed explanation will set the stage for the 

alternatives analysis.  Once the county has invited public comment on the proposal, the applicant 

will diligently review and respond to that public comment, and will incorporate public testimony 

in fine-tuning the proposal, as needed and appropriate.  At the end of that process, the applicant 

understand the Planning Commission will render a decision that attests to the completion of the 

analysis required by statute. 

 
      (4) The uses allowed under this section include: 

(a) The treatment of reclaimed water, agricultural or industrial process water or 
biosolids that occurs as a result of the land application; 

 

Applicant’s response:  ORS 215.246(4) lists the types of uses and developments fall within the 

scope of this process.   

 

Pursuant to subsection (a), and in addition to the water quality treatments conducted at the Port 

Orford sewage treatment plant, natural processes will lead to continued improvements in water 

quality, such as exposure to UV light while the water is impounded in the pond at the golf 

course, and exposure to natural soil microbes that will digest nutrients and other substances 

found in trace amounts in the treated water.  This will amount to passive “treatment” of the 

reclaimed water that occurs as a result of the land application.   

 

(b) The establishment and use of facilities, including buildings, equipment, aerated 
and nonaerated water impoundments, pumps and other irrigation equipment, that are 
accessory to and reasonably necessary for the land application to occur on the subject 
tract; 
 

Applicant’s response:  Pursuant to subsection (b), the applicant is proposing improvements that 

will be necessary for the use of recycled wastewater on the tract where the irrigation will occur.  

These improvements will include a portion of the pipe that delivers the treated water, a pond that 

will store water, pumps and irrigation equipment, and a small pumphouse that will shelter the 

irrigation equipment.  

 
      (c) The establishment and use of facilities, including buildings and equipment, that 
are not on the tract on which the land application occurs for the transport of reclaimed 
water, agricultural or industrial process water or biosolids to the tract on which the land 
application occurs if the facilities are located within: 
      (A) A public right of way; or 
      (B) Other land if the landowner provides written consent and the owner of the facility 
complies with ORS 215.275 (4); and 



      (d) The transport by vehicle of reclaimed water or agricultural or industrial process 
water to a tract on which the water will be applied to land. 

 

Applicant’s response:  Pursuant to subsection (c), the applicant is proposing ancillary facilities 

necessary for the use of recycled wastewater that will be developed on lands outside of the tract 

where the irrigation will occur, consisting primarily of the placement of a pipeline along public 

rights of way.  In the limited instances where the pipeline is proposed to cross land that is not 

within a public right of way, the applicant understands that this statutory standard requires 

“written consent” from the land owner.   

 

The proposed pipeline will also cross privately-owned land at the location between the 

wastewater treatment plant and the public right of way.  Initially, the applicant obtained an 

easement to place its facilities on private lot between the treatment plant and the public right of 

way, but the applicant has subsequently purchased this lot, obviating the need for an easement.    

 

The “alternative route” for the pipeline, depicted at Exhibit A, will also require the pipeline route 

to leave the public right of way and to cross private property.  The applicant has the written 

authorization from the necessary private property owners, shown as Exhibit B. 

 

      (5) Uses not allowed under this section include: 
      (a) The establishment and use of facilities, including buildings or equipment, for the 
treatment of reclaimed water, agricultural or industrial process water or biosolids other 
than those treatment facilities related to the treatment that occurs as a result of the land 
application; or 
      (b) The establishment and use of utility facility service lines allowed under ORS 
215.213 (1)(x) or 215.283 (1)(u). 
 

Applicant’s response:  as explained in response to ORS 215.246(4), above, all water quality 

treatments will occur at the existing site of the Port Orford sewage treatment plant.  Some degree 

of water quality improvement that is expected to occur incidentally to storing the recycled water 

in the pond and then applying it to the golf course, where it will be exposed to soil microbes and 

other natural processes.  In reality, the water that is currently being discharged from the City of 

Port Orford’s treatment plant is already treated to such a high level that it is permitted to be 

discharged directly into the ocean.  Even though the reclaimed water coming from the treatment 

plant is treated to a high level, the applicant strongly believes that it is more environmentally 

sustainable to use the city’s treated effluent for irrigation, where any trace contaminants will be 

broken down by the exposure to air and UV light during the pond storage period, and by soil 

microbes after it is applied as irrigation, as opposed to discharging it directly into the fragile 

marine environment. 

   

In response to subsection (b), above, the applicant is not proposing any utility facility service 

lines.  The current proposal involves the delivery, storage and use of recycled wastewater, as 

specifically allowed by ORS 215.283(1)(v) and ORS 283.246(3).  The pipeline delivering the 

recycled wastewater is not a “utility service line” within the meaning of this statute because it is 

one of the necessary “facilities […] for the transport of reclaimed water,” specifically allowed 

under ORS 283.246(4)(c).   



 

Conclusion 

 

The statutory standards contained in ORS 215.246 have been addressed above.  Attached as 

Exhibit A is a detailed description of the system that the applicant is proposing.  It includes 

diagrams showing the proposed route and the alternative route, as well as a narrative section that 

explains the methods and materials of construction.  If the county provides notice and an 

opportunity for public comment, the applicant will consider and respond to any alternatives that 

may be suggested, pursuant to ORS 215.246(3).   

 

  



Exhibit A –   

 

detailed description of proposal to develop and use a system for irrigating Pacific Gales 

Golf Course with recycled wastewater. 

 

The applicant proposes to pipe recycled wastewater from the City of Port Orford wastewater 

treatment plant to the Pacific Gales Golf Course, and to use that water for irrigation.  The 

proposed pipeline routes (including a preferred route and an alternative route) are shown on the 

diagrams attached to this exhibit.  Only one of these two pipelines will be built.   

 

The pipeline will primarily be placed using horizontal boring when it is located under city right 

of ways, in order to minimize surface disruption and impacts to tree roots.  For portions of the 

pipe that are proposed to be located in the county, it will primarily be placed on the shoulder of 

the public right of way, using a standard trenching technique that will restore soil surface and 

paving surfaces to their original condition.  The pipe will be placed using horizontal boring 

anywhere along the length of the pipeline when it is necessary to pass below certain existing 

utility facilities, such as cables or pipes.   

 

The pipe material is 6” HDPE that will employ fused joints.  A fusion-joined pipeline may be 

thought of as a continuous pipeline without joints.  HDPE “DR11” pipe has an expected service 

life of 50-100years. HDPE pipe has a fatigue life of 10,000,000 pump cycles, or in excess of 100 

years.  The combination of pipe and pump will be capable of moving 200 gpm.  However, the 

pump that charges the pipeline will operate intermittently, as the wastewater treatment plant 

produces an average of 69.4 gpm.  The recycled wastewater will be held in a 10,000 gallon 

accumulating tank located at tax lot 1011, adjacent to the treatment plant, until the quantity is 

sufficient to operate the pipeline.   

 

The recycled water that will be obtained from the Port Orford treatment plant will be treated to 

DEQ Class C or higher.  Despite the very high level of treatment already being conducted at the 

treatment plant, the water will undergo additional passive water quality improvements as it 

resides in the reservoir on the golf course, and again, as it percolates through the turf and soil.   

 

At the northern terminus of the pipeline, it will discharge into an irrigation reservoir, as shown 

on page 2 of the attached irrigation plan.  The reservoir is anticipated to cover an area of 

approximately seven acres, and will hold approximately 100 acre-feet.  The reservoir will be 

designed and constructed according to the specifications established by the Water Resources 

Department’s dam safety division.   

 

The place of use for the recycled wastewater is shown on pages 1 and 2 of the attached irrigation 

plan.  This plan shows the proposed irrigation system plumbing.  In addition, the applicant 

proposes to use the water to grow and maintain turf and landscaping anywhere on the leased 

premises.  The golf course management plan involves an adaptive system of monitoring soil 

moisture and applying irrigation as needed, given climatic conditions and growing season, in 

order to prevent erosion and maximize soil and landscaping health.   

 

The total volume of recycled wastewater that is proposed to be pumped through the pipeline and 



applied as golf course irrigation will likely not exceed 110 acre-feet per year. 

 

 

 

 



ATTACHMENT 7 
EASEMENT AGREEMENTS 





















 

 

ATTACHMENT 8 
E-mail communication with DLCD requested by Commissioner McHugh 



 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 



ATTACHMENT 9 
LETTER FROM PUBLIC 

 



ATTACHMENT 10 
10.11.2017 COUNTY COUNSEL MEMO 



 



 



 



November 7, 2017  Planning Commission staff report – AD-1705 Page 1 of 10 
 

 
Planning Commission Staff Report 

 
Meeting Date: November 7, 2017    
 
Prepared by: Carolyn Johnson, Community Development Director 
 
Planning Commission Meeting  Date:  November 7,  2017  
(continued from October 19, 2017) 
 
A. Agenda Item:  Application AD-1705: The Public hearing is closed but 
Planning Commission deliberations were continued from September 21 and October 19, 
2017 for a request to develop a pipeline over multiple properties to deliver recycled 
wastewater, and a reservoir, in order to irrigate the Pacific Gales golf course. The 
pipeline could be located on land owned by multiple owners on property located on 
Assessor map 32-15-29C, lot numbers 103, 104, 105, 106, 107, 108, 118, 120 and 21;  
Applicant: Elk River Property Development LLC. 
 
Recommendation: Deliberate and approve application AD-1705 by adopting 
Resolution 2017-AD-1705 with findings and conditions.    
 
Background:  The Planning Commission reviewed and  accepted public comments on 
the subject proposal on September 21 and October 19, 2017. On October 19, 2017 the 
Planning Commission closed the public hearing and continued their deliberations to 
November 7, 2017.   
 
Additional information from County Counsel is provided on Attachment 2 dated October 
24, 2017.     
 
As noted on October 19, 2017, action can be taken on  Application AD-1705 absent 
Commission clarity on the life of AD-1411 (Pacific Gales golf course) because the land 
application of reclaimed water is a type is an outright permitted use as listed in ORS 
215.283(1). Further, a  Planning Commission decision on AD-1705 is not predicated on 
the status of AD-1411 and the findings for authorization of AD-1705 do not need to 
include a reference to the location or purpose of the reclaimed water.  Additionally, The 
use proposed in this instance can be described as the land application of reclaimed 
water and can be used for irrigation in connection with an allowed use in an EFU. The 
statute requires the land application of reclaimed water to have a license, permit, or 
other approval from DEQ.  The Planning Commission can take action on application 
AD-1705.  
 



November 7, 2017  Planning Commission staff report – AD-1705 Page 2 of 10 
 

Finally, Application AD-1705 was deemed complete August 4, 2017. Action on the 
application by the County, including appeals, is required within 150 days, or March 4, 
2018. If County action is not completed by that time, the project will be considered 
approved. The applicant and the County can agree to extend the time for County 
review, not to exceed 215 days from the day the application was deemed completed. 
(May 21, 2018)    
 
Planning Commission Requested Action: 
 
1) Review application, staff report, proposed findings, resolution, and associated 
materials.  
 
 

2) Consider if the applicant has shown, with substantial evidence, that Project AD-
1705  fits within the statutory category referenced in ORS 215.283 (1) (v), has followed 
the public review process and has considered alternatives.  
 

3) Evaluate alternatives and determine how to proceed.  
 

Planning Commission Options:  
 
The Commission may:   

a. Deliberate and continue action to another date certain.   The following 
dates are available for continued deliberation: November 20 – 22; 27-30; 
December 4-7, 11-14, and January 18.    
b. Deliberate and Approve application AD-1705 by adopting Resolution 
2017-AD-1705 as found on exhibit 1.     
 

Staff Recommendation:       
1) Deliberate and Approve application AD-1705 by adopting Resolution 2017-AD-
1705 (Attachment 1). 
2) If direction is provided to continue the meeting to a date certain to bring back a  
resolution for denial,  the Planning Commission must identify findings for denial for 
inclusion in the resolution.   
  
ATTACHMENTS 
Attachment 1 – Planning Commission resolution 2017-AD-1705, including project 

conditions.  
Attachment 2 -  County Counsel October 24, 2017 memo.  
 
 
  



November 7, 2017  Planning Commission staff report – AD-1705 Page 3 of 10 
 

ATTACHMENT 1  
Planning Commission Resolution AD-1705 Conditionally Approving the Proposal  

 
  



November 7, 2017  Planning Commission staff report – AD-1705 Page 4 of 10 
 

Resolution 2017-AD-1705 
A Resolution of the Curry County Planning Commission approving the Elk River 
Property Development LLC Application AD-1705 to develop a pipeline to deliver 
recycled wastewater in order to irrigate the Pacific Gales golf course. File #: AD-
1705, Map/TL: Sections 19, 29 & 30 of Township 32 S., Range 15 W., M. Tax lot 
4400, and Section 29c of Township 32 S., Range 15. W., W. M. Tax lot 500, and 
additional property and public right of way.  
 
WHEREAS, the Curry County Planning Commission held a duly noticed public hearing 
on application AD-1705 filed by Elk River Property Development LLC for approval to 
develop a pipeline to deliver recycled wastewater in order to irrigate the Pacific Gales 
golf course; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Commission held the public hearing on September 21 and October 19, 
2017 at which time staff presented their report and the applicant’s findings.  The 
Commission also received additional testimony at the hearing from interested parties; 
and   
 
WHEREAS, the Commission closed the public hearing on October 19, 2017; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Commission deliberated on the subject application on November 7, 
2017.   
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Curry County Planning Commission 
hereby approves Elk River Property Development LLC Application AD-1705 to develop 
a pipeline to deliver recycled wastewater in order to irrigate the Pacific Gales golf 
course over Map/TL: Sections 19, 29 & 30 of Township 32 S., Range 15 W., M. Tax lot 
4400, and Section 29c of Township 32 S., Range 15. W., W. M. Tax lot 500, and 
additional property and public right of way based on the findings specified in the 
September 21, 2017 staff report, subject to the conditions attached to this resolution as 
Exhibit 1.  
  
UPON THE MOTION of Planning Commissioner                    , seconded by Planning 
Commissioner                              , the foregoing Resolution is hereby approved and 
adopted the 7th day of November,  2017 by the following roll call, to wit:  
 

AYES NAYS ABSTAIN ABSENT 
    

 
_______________________________________ 

John Brazil 
Planning Commission Chairperson 

ATTEST 
 
_______________________________________ 
Carolyn Johnson 
Community Development Director 



November 7, 2017  Planning Commission staff report – AD-1705 Page 5 of 10 
 

 
EXHIBIT 1 

APPROVAL OF ELK RIVER PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT LLC TO DEVELOP 
PIPELINE TO DELIVER RECYCLED WASTEWATER AND A RESERVOIR IN ORDER 

TO IRRIGATE THE PACIFIC GALES GOLF COURSE. FILE #: AD-1705, MAP/TL: 
SECTIONS 19, 29, &30 OF TOWNSHIP 32 S., RANGE 15 W., W. M. TAX LOT 4400 

AND SECTION 29C OF TOWNSHIP 32 S., RANGE 15 W., W. M. TAX LOT 500, AND 
ADDITIONAL PROPERTY AND PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY.  

 
AUTHORIZATION: This land use request AD-1705 is hereby authorized subject to the 
conditions listed below.  Approval is granted only for development to develop pipeline to 
deliver recycled wastewater and a reservoir in order to irrigate the Pacific Gales golf 
course, to be developed inside public rights of way and also on private property.  Any 
proposed changes to this land use request shall require further review by the Planning 
Commission.   
 
EFFECTIVE DATE:      November 7,  2017 
 
ACCEPTANCE OF CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: The property owner shall 
acknowledge receipt of these Conditions of Approval by signing and returning the 
statement below.   
 
TRUE AND CORRECT AFFIRMATION AND COMPLIANCE AGREEMENT:  I affirm 
that the information my agent or I submitted to the County that was used to review and 
authorize this proposal is true and correct to the best of my knowledge. I acknowledge 
that the County can revoke this land use authorization if it has been obtained under 
false pretenses.  
 
I have read and understood, and I will comply with all applicable requirements of any 
law or agency of the State of Oregon, Curry County, and any other governmental entity 
that may have jurisdiction over this proposal.  The duty of inquiry as to such 
requirements shall be my responsibility. I agree to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless 
Curry County and its agents, officers, and employees, from any claim, action, or 
proceeding against the County as a result of the action or inaction by the County, or 
from any claim to attack, set aside, void, or annul of this approval by the County of the 
project; or my failure to comply with conditions of approval. This agreement shall be 
binding on all successors and assigns of the subject property.  
 
 
________________________________________________           ________________ 
Jim Haley, Manager, Elk River Property Development LLC              Date 
Applicant 
 
________________________________________________  ________________ 
Jeremy Knapp, President, Knapp Ranches Inc.    Date 
Property owner 



November 7, 2017  Planning Commission staff report – AD-1705 Page 6 of 10 
 

 
AD-1705 Conditions of Approval 

 
PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION OF PIPELINE 
1. Receive approval from the Oregon State Department of Environmental Quality.  
 
2. Receive any and all local permits from the County with respect to installing facilites in 
County right-of-way. 
 
3. Applicant shall secure all necessary permits for all pipeline locations within state right-
of-way, from ODOT. 
 
4. Applicant shall submit to and secure from ODOT regarding all locations, and 
construction means and methods (i.e.plans reviews), prior to construction.  
 
 
  



November 7, 2017  Planning Commission staff report – AD-1705 Page 7 of 10 
 

ATTACHMENT 2 
October 24, 2017 memo from County Counsel 



November 7, 2017  Planning Commission staff report – AD-1705 Page 8 of 10 
 

 
  



November 7, 2017  Planning Commission staff report – AD-1705 Page 9 of 10 
 

 



November 7, 2017  Planning Commission staff report – AD-1705 Page 10 of 10 
 

 
 



 

Board of Commissioners January 17, 2018 AD-1701 staff report                                                                    2 of 5 
 

ATTACHMENT 2 
Supplemental information, including: 

An October 13, 2017 e-mail and letter from ODOT requiring ODOT authorization of ODOT 
permitting for reclaimed water lines; October 18, 2017 letter from Bill Kloos; 

October 19, 2017 letter and attachments from Sean Malone. 
  

















































































































 

Board of Commissioners January 17, 2018 AD-1701 staff report                                                                    3 of 5 
 

 
 

ATTACHMENT 3 
January 15, 2018 Wildland properties 

  





 

Board of Commissioners January 17, 2018 AD-1701 staff report                                                                    4 of 5 
 

 
 

ATTACHMENT 4 
January 18, 2018 letter from ORCA to the Board 

  



Sean T. Malone 
Attorney at Law  

259 E. Fifth Ave.,         Tel. (303) 859-0403 
Suite 200-G         Fax (650) 471-7366 
Eugene, OR 97401       seanmalone8@hotmail.com 
 
 
January 31, 2018 
 
Via Email 
 
Curry County Board of Commissioners 
94235 Moore St., Ste 122 
Gold Beach OR 97444 
 
Tom Huxley: huxleyt@co.curry.or.us   
Sue Gold: golds@co.curry.or.us 
Court Boice: boicec@co.curry.or.us 
John Huttl: huttlj@co.curry.or.us  
Administration: boc_office@co.curry.or.us  
Carolyn Johnson: johnsonc@co.curry.or.us 

	

Re:  ORCA Post-Hearing Testimony for Application AD-1705, a request to develop a 
pipeline over multiple properties to deliver effluent and a reservoir to irrigate a proposed 
golf course. 

Dear Commissioners,   

Please accept this testimony on behalf of Oregon Coast Alliance (ORCA) on the 
above-referenced application.  As demonstrated below and in prior testimony, the 
application must be denied.   

In addition to other testimony submitted in the course of this appeal, including all 
testimony and exhibits submitted before the Planning Commission, which ORCA 
incorporates by reference here, ORCA sets forth other independent bases for denying the 
appeal and affirming the Planning Commission’s decision.    

State law requires that “[w]hen a state agency or a local government makes a land 
use decision relating to the land application of reclaimed water, agricultural or industrial 



process water or biosolids under a license permit or approval by the Department of 
Environmental Quality, the applicant shall explain in writing how alternatives identified 
in public comments on the land use decision were considered and, if the alternatives are 
not used, explain in writing the reasons for not using the alternatives.”  ORS 215.426.  
The applicant has not demonstrated why a variety of routes were not considered. For 
example, the applicant has not explained why the route did not fully utilize highway 101.  
Such a route would be most efficient and cluster development for the pipeline in an area 
that is already largely developed.  Instead of heading directly to highway 101 from 12th 
street, the pipeline works its way along Idaho St. Working within the state right-of-way is 
reasonable, as it would avoid more sensitive districts or zones.   

In addition, the applicant has not explained why a route along Arizona St. was not 
considered.  Indeed, such a route would appear to require the shortest distance.  
Moreover, the applicant has not demonstrated that the particular routes chosen is the least 
impactful route.    

The final order approving the golf course alleged that a portion of the subject 
property is encumbered by the groundwater area potentially affected by the Port Orford 
Landfill Site and that no development is proposed for that area.  The current application 
calls into question whether that area will be developed with facilities for reclaimed water, 
including the proposed reservoir.  

The above cited provision (ORS 215.246) also contemplates alternatives to the use 
of the reclaimed water.  The applicant has not explained why it will no longer use water 
provided by wells onsite, as was maintained in the now-expired application for the golf 
course.  The applicant has not demonstrated why alternative means, including a transfer 
of water from Knapp Ranch and use of groundwater are no longer feasible alternatives to 
irrigating the now-expired golf course. 

The final order approving the golf course also alleges that it would irrigate 
consistent with a transfer of some of the Knapp Ranch’s water rights.  See Ex. A1 at 20 
(“The Applicants … have indicated that, in reaching a tentative agreement with the 
Knapp Ranch to transfer a portion of the ranch’s water rights, ….”); id. at 21 (“A letter 
from the Water Resources Department, included along with the application submittal 
indicated that a portion of the Knapp Ranch’s irrigation rights could be transferred to the 
golf course development area.”); id. at 21 (“The Applicants have explained that, if the 
water rights transfer becomes unworkable, the Applicants will rely instead on new 

																																																													
1 Exhibit A was submitted during prior testimony and is incorporated herein.  



permits for groundwater or for storage of winter surface flows, to create a source of 
stored water for summer use.  The applicants submitted well logs from recently drilled 
wells in the immediate vicinity, demonstrating that there is adequate supply and 
availability of groundwater, should the Applicant resort to that source.”).  Obviously, 
none of the theories for water upon which the applicant was approved are relevant 
anymore.  The prior application – now expired – must be reviewed again in order to 
account for the ever-changing proposal.  

Finally, by its plain language, the above provision also requires that a DEQ 
approval be in place before the local government approval occurs.  For example, ORS 
215.246 requires the local government decision “relating to the land application of 
reclaimed water … under a license, permit, or approval by the Department of 
Environmental Quality.”  ORS 215.246.  The applicant does not have a license, permit or 
approval by the DEQ at this time. Nor can they receive one, as the golf course permit 
from Curry County is expired. The application must first obtain approval by the DEQ, 
because that is the process contemplated by statute. 

For the foregoing reasons, ORCA respectfully requests that the City affirm the 
Planning Commission’s decision and deny the appeal.	

Sincerely, 

 

Sean T. Malone 
Attorney for ORCA 

Cc: 
Client	



 

Board of Commissioners January 17, 2018 AD-1701 staff report                                                                    5 of 5 
 

 
 

ATTACHMENT 5 
Received by e-mail February 7, 2018, January 19, 2018 letter from Bill Kloos (applicant) 

  



 

Board of Commissioners January 17, 2018 AD-1701 staff report                                                                    6 of 5 
 

 
 

ATTACHMENT 6 
February 7, 2018 letter from Jim Haley (applicant) 

 





1

John Huttl

From: Carolyn Johnson

Sent: Wednesday, February 07, 2018 5:09 PM

To: John Huttl

Subject: FW: Additional Testimony from ORCA re AD-1705 Appeal

Attachments: Application for CUP Extension 1.19.2018.pdf

For us to discuss tomorrow. 

 

From: Bill Kloos [mailto:billkloos@landuseoregon.com]  

Sent: Wednesday, February 07, 2018 4:51 PM 
To: Carolyn Johnson; Jim Haley (jmhaley@aol.com) 

Cc: Nick Klingensmith; Bill Kloos; Chris Hood (hoodc@stuntzner.com) 
Subject: RE: Additional Testimony from ORCA re AD-1705 Appeal 

 

Carolyn – 

 

The Malone testimony you forwarded makes, several times, a generalized assertion that the Pacific Gales land use 

approval has expired.  It is not clear to me whether this allegation is a summary restatement of what ORCA has argued 

previously, or whether this is a new theory.  We already have in the record evidence that the land use approval has 

vested with the start of construction, and that the applicant intends, of course, to continue and complete construction. 

 

However, as a precautionary response to ORCA’s expired permit theory, I am including a copy of our application for an 

extension of the existing land use approval, which was filed with the county on January 19.. 

 

Thank you. 

 

Bill Kloos 

Law Office of Bill Kloos PC 

375 W. 4
th

 Ave., Suite 204 

Eugene, OR 97401 

Phone: 541-343-8596 

Email:  BillKloos@LandUseOregon.com 

Web: www.LandUseOregon.com 

  

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: The information contained in this email communication may contain confidential information 

that is legally privileged. If you are not the intended recipient, or if you have reason to believe that this message has been 

addressed to you in error, you are hereby notified that your receipt of this email was not intended by the sender and any 

disclosure, copying, distribution or the taking of any action in reliance on the contents of this information except its direct 

delivery to the intended recipient is strictly prohibited. If you have received this email in error,  please notify me 

immediately by telephone at the numbers listed above or by email and then delete the e-mail from your computer and do 

not print, copy or disclose it to anyone else. Thank you. 

 

From: Carolyn Johnson [mailto:johnsonc@co.curry.or.us]  

Sent: Thursday, February 01, 2018 9:03 AM 

To: Jim Haley (jmhaley@aol.com) 
Cc: Bill Kloos; Nick Klingensmith 

Subject: FW: Additional Testimony from ORCA re AD-1705 Appeal 

 



2

 

 

-----Original Message----- 

From: Cameron La Follette [mailto:cameron@oregoncoastalliance.org]  

Sent: Wednesday, January 31, 2018 10:21 AM 

To: Thomas Huxley; Sue Gold; Court Boice; John Huttl; Carolyn Johnson; BOC Office 

Cc: Sean Malone 

Subject: Additional Testimony from ORCA re AD-1705 Appeal 

 

 

Dear Members of the Board of Commissioners, Ms. Johnson and Mr. Huttl, 

 

Attached please find additional testimony from Oregon Coast Alliance in the matter of the appeal of AD-1705, 

a request to develop a pipeline to deliver effluent and create a reservoir to irrigate a proposed golf course. Please 

let me know that this was received, the attachment opened and entered into the record. 

 

Thank you, 

 

Cameron 

- 

 

Cameron La Follette 

Executive Director 

Oregon Coast Alliance 

P.O. Box 857 

Astoria, OR 97103 

(503) 391-0210 

cameron@oregoncoastalliance.org 

www.oregoncoastalliance.org 

 



LAW OFFICE OF BILL KLOOS, PC 
 
OREGON LAND USE LAW  

 
 

375 W. 4TH AVE, SUITE 204 
EUGENE, OR 97401 
TEL: (541) 912-5280 
FAX: (541) 343-8702 

E-MAIL: BILLKLOOS@LANDUSEOREGON.COM 
 

January 19, 2018 

 

Carolyn Johnson 
Curry County Community Development Director 
94235 Moore Street, Suite 113 
Gold Beach, OR 97444 
 
Re: Conditional Use Approval; AD-1411 
 Application for Administrative one-year extension 
 
Dear Carolyn: 
 
Please accept this letter as an application for a one-year extension of the county approval above.  
This filing is made on behalf of Elk River Property Development, LLC and Jim Haley. 
 
If there is a city application form and fee that apply to this request, please provide that 
information, and I will get that to you promptly. 
 
This application requests “administrative” approval of a one-year extension, as authorized by 
OAR 660-033-0140(2) and CCZO 7050.5.  Copies of each of these regulations are attached to 
this letter.  Each of these sections applies to discretionary permits that are issued for uses on 
agricultural land, which describes the approval at issue here. 
 
This is a precautionary filing only.  The construction of the golf course approved under AD-1411 
has been initiated in the meaning of the code and the rule.  However, the full development of this 
land use has been a contentious matter, with litigation having been initiated by opponents at the 
city, county, and state levels.  Therefore, the applicant is requesting the one-year extension 
provided for in county and state law as a safety net.  The intention is to secure an extension to 
deflect future challenges that an extension should have been but was not secured. 
 
This application is timely.  The original approval by the County Board was dated January 15, 
2015. That approval was appealed to LUBA and remanded.  The County Board approved the use 
a second time on October 6, 2015.  That approval was appealed to LUBA, which affirmed the 
approval in its opinion dated January 27, 2016.  This application is filed within two years of the 
conclusion of the litigation over the final County Board approval. 
 
Under both the state rule and the county code, this extension request is to be treated as an 
“administrative” action and not as a “land use decision” that is subject to appeal. OAR 660-033-
0140(3) provides: “Approval of an extension granted under this rule is an administrative 
decision, is not a land use decision as described in ORS 197.015 and is not subject to appeal as a 
land use decision.”  Similarly, the zoning code explains similarly at CCZC 7050.7.: “Approval of 
an extension granted under this section is not a land use decision and is not subject to appeal as a 
land use decision.” 



Carolyn Johnson 
January 19, 2018 
Page 2 
 
 
It is important to note that the applicant is entitled to an administrative decision that is not made 
as a land use decision, is not noticed as a land use decision, and is not appealable as a land use 
decision.  The state rule provides for an “administrative” decision, and it does not require any 
notice of the application or the decision.  The zoning code provision also treats the decision as 
administrative.  I do not believe that the code requires notice of the application or the decision, 
based on my review of the code language. 
 
The applicant asserts the following facts as relevant to the decision under the state rule and the 
county code.  

 
Fully developing the approved use requires about 27 million dollars of private 
investment.  Securing that funding, and ensuring that it can be released for expenditure, 
requires that regulatory entitlements are in hand and are secure -- that is, beyond legal 
challenge. 
 
Development of the approved use has been initiated on site.  The details have been 
documented in the context of the pending litigation over the developer’s application to 
apply reclaimed water to the golf course site. 
 
Opponents of the golf course appealed the county’s conditional use permit twice to the 
Land Use Board of Appeals, with the second appeal being resolved in favor of the 
approval on January 27, 2016. 
 
Opponents of the golf course have challenged issuance of water right related to 
development of the use; that appeal is pending at the state level. 
 
Opponents of the golf course have challenged city, county and state approval of the 
developer’s request to apply reclaimed wastewater to the golf course site. Those appeals 
also are in process. 
 
Opponents of this development also have used direct communications and social media in 
a focused attempt to interfere with the permit holder’s business relationships with 
prospective investors, by spreading false information about the status of regulatory 
permitting. 
 
Despite all of the above, the holder of the conditional use permit has aggressively sought 
and secured required regulatory approvals needed to fully develop the use, and it is 
defending issued permits in appeals that have been filed at the city, county and state 
levels.  Resolution of appeals is a basic requirement of securing the funding needed to 
complete this development.   

 
The substantive standards in the state rule and the zoning code for issuing an extension are 
similar but not identical.   
 



Carolyn Johnson 
January 19, 2018 
Page 3 
 
With respect to the standards in the zoning code, the Director should determine:  The 
approved development has been initiated in the meaning of CCZC 7050.4. Therefore, an 
extension is not needed.  If, for any reason, the development were not considered to be initiated 
in the meaning of the code, the applicant is entitled to an extension, which has been timely 
requested.  The litigation initiated by opponents challenging city, county and state entitlements, 
which impairs the ability to secure development funding, is a reasonable explanation for why the 
applicant is not responsible for the failure to initiate development. 
 
With respect to the standards in the state rule, the Director should determine that: The 
approved development has been initiated in the meaning of CCZC 7050.4. Therefore, an 
extension is not needed to initiate development.  If, for any reason, the development were not 
considered to be initiated in the meaning of the code, the applicant is entitled to an extension, 
which has been timely requested, to initiate and continue development.  The litigation initiated 
by opponents challenging city, county and state entitlements, which impairs the ability to secure 
development funding, is a reasonable explanation for why the applicant is not responsible for the 
delay in initiating and continuing development. 
 
Thank you for your consideration. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Bill Kloos 
 
Bill Kloos 
 
cc:  Jim Haley, Elk River Property Development LLC 
 



 

CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
SPECIAL MEETING 

Wednesday, January 17, 2018 at 2:30PM Commissioners’ 
Hearing Room, Courthouse Annex 

94235 Moore Street, Gold Beach, Oregon 
www.co.curry.or.us 

 

AGENDA 
Items may be taken out of sequence to accommodate staff availability and the public. 

For public comment, a completed speaker’s slip must be submitted. 
 

**** Please note – The Special Meeting begins at 2:30PM **** 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
  

2. de novo PUBLIC HEARING 
A de novo public hearing for Board review, public comment and Board action on an 
appeal of a Planning Commission decision to deny an Elk River Property 
Development, (land use application AD-1705) for the analysis of alternative routes 
for a pipeline and ancillary facilities to deliver recycled wastewater located for 
irrigation of a golf course. 

A. Identify and follow the hearing  procedure specified in Zoning Ordinance 
2.140(2a-d) 

B. Receive the staff report 
C. Accept testimony from parties in favor of the application 
D. Accept testimony from other parties 
E. Allow the parties to offer rebuttal evidence and testimony 
F. If requested by the Board, continue the hearing to a date certain no later than 

January 31, 2018. 
G. Conclude the hearing; the Board should determine whether to leave the record 

open.  
H. Deliberate among the Board of Commissioners and, if desired, direct questions 

to County staff. 
I. Discuss findings and direct staff to bring back a final order no later than 

January 31, 2018. 
 

3. ADJOURN 
 
 
 
 

Curry County does not discriminate against individuals with disabilities and all public meetings are held in 
accessible locations. Auxiliary aids will be provided upon request with 48 hours advance notification. Please call 
541-247-3296 if you have questions regarding this notice. 

 
 

http://www.co.curry.or.us/


CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM ROUTING SLIP 

FORM 10-001.1 Rev. 1-5-2018  
PART I – SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: RETURN TO BOC_OFFICE@CO.CURRY.OR.US 
PROPOSED AGENDA ITEM TITLE: A de novo public hearing for Board review, 
public comment and Board  action on an appeal of a Planning Commission 
decision to deny an Elk River Property Development, (land use application AD-
1705) for the analysis of alternative routes for a pipeline and ancillary facilities to 
deliver recycled wastewater located for irrigation of a golf course on or over 
Assessor map 32-15-29C, lot numbers: 103, 104, 105, 106, 107, 108, 118, 120 
and 121 and extending to the property commonly known as the Knapp Ranch. 
(Sections 19, 29 & 30 of Township 32 S., Range 15 W., W.M. Tax lot 4400, and 
Section 29c of Township 32 S., Range 15 W., W.M. Tax lot 500) 
 
 

TIMELY FILED    Yes ☒ No  ☐              
If  No, justification to include with next BOC Meeting  
 
AGENDA DATEa:   January 17, 2018        DEPARTMENT:       Community Development 
TIME NEEDED:       1.5 hours 
(aSubmit by seven days prior to the next General Meeting ( eight days if a holiday falls within that seven day period)) 
 
MEMO ATTACHED       Yes  ☒  No ☐    If no memo, explain:  
 
 

CONTACT PERSON:  Carolyn Johnson            PHONE/EXT:  3228         
TODAY’S DATE: January 5, 2018 
 

BRIEF BACKGROUND OR NOTE: See attached memo  
   
FILES ATTACHED:     
(1) Staff report     
(2) Eleven Exhibits 
(3)       
 
    
QUESTIONS: 
1.  Would this item be a departure from the Annual Budget if approved?    Yes ☐No ☒ 
     (If Yes, brief detail)        
2.  Does this agenda item impact any other County department?   Yes ☐ No ☒ 
     (If Yes, brief detail)       
3.  Does Agenda Item impact County personnel resources?    Yes  ☐ No  ☒ 
      (If Yes, brief detail)       
INSTRUCTIONS ONCE SIGNED:   
 ☐No Additional Activity Required 

 OR        
 ☒File with County Clerk     Name:          
 ☐Send Printed Copy to:           Address:          
 ☐Email a Digital Copy to:     City/State/Zip:        

☐Other                   
         Phone:                 
cNote: Most signed documents are filed/recorded with the Clerk per standard process.  
PART III - FINANCE DEPARTMENT REVIEW  
EVALUATION CRITERIA 1-4: 
1. Confirmed Submitting Department’s finance-related responses Yes  ☐No☐     N/A ☒    
Comment:       
2. Confirmed Submitting Department’s personnel-related materials  Yes  ☐ No  ☐    N/A☒ 
    Comment:      
3. If job description, Salary Committee reviewed:         Yes ☐ No  ☐  N/A☒ 
4. If hire order requires a Personnel Action Form (PAF)?             Pending  ☐ N/A ☒ No  ☐ HR ☐    
PART IV – COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REVIEW 

mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us


☒ APPROVED FOR ____01/17/18____  BOC MEETING   ☐ Not Approved for BOC Agenda 
because        
LEGAL ASSESSMENT: Does this agenda item have a legal impact?                   Yes  ☒ No  ☐ 
  (If Yes, brief detail)  
ASSIGNED TO:  ORDER   
PART V – BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS AGENDA APPROVAL  
COMMISSIONERS’ REQUEST TO ADD TO AGENDA:     
Commissioner Sue Gold     Yes ☐No  ☐ 
Commissioner Thomas Huxley   Yes  ☐ No  ☐ 
Commissioner Court Boice    Yes  ☐ No ☐      



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS  PUBLIC HEARING PUBLIC NOTICE   
 
Notice is hereby given that the Curry County Board of Commissioners (Board) 
will hold a special de novo public hearing on Wednesday, January 17, 2018 at 
2:30 PM in the Commissioners’ Hearing Room at the Curry County Courthouse 
Annex Building located at 94235 Moore Street, Gold Beach, Oregon pursuant 
to ORS 197.763(2)(a) and Curry County Zoning Ordinance 2.070(1).  The 
hearing purpose is for Board review, public comment and Board action on an 
appeal of a Planning Commission decision to deny an Elk River Property 
Development application (submitted  pursuant to ORS 215.246) for the 
analysis of alternatives routes for a pipeline and ancillary facilities to deliver 
recycled wastewater located for irrigation of a golf course on or over Assessor 
map 32-15-29C, lot numbers: 103, 104, 105, 106, 107, 108, 118, 120 and 121. 
The proposed alternatives are primarily within Curry County and Oregon 
Department of Transportation public rights of way leaving the northerly Port 
Orford urban growth boundary and extending to the a golf course development 
site located on the property commonly known as the Knapp Ranch. (Sections 
19, 29 & 30 of Township 32 S., Range 15 W., W.M. Tax lot 4400, and Section 
29c of Township 32 S., Range 15 W., W.M. Tax lot 500)   
 
State your comments to the Board at the public hearing and/or submit your 
comments for the record by e-mail to johnsonc@co.curry.or.us (with A-1701 in 
the subject line) or United States Postal Service to the Curry County 
Community Development Department, Curry County Annex, 94235 Moore St, 
Suite 113 Gold Beach, OR 97444, Attention: Carolyn Johnson. For  written 
comments to be included in the Board packet, they must be received by 3 PM 
on Wednesday, January 3, 2018.  Written comments received after that time 
will be presented for the record at the Board’s January 17, 2018 public 
hearing.  A copy of the application, all documents and evidence relied upon by 
the applicant and applicable criteria are available now for viewing and 
download at no cost at: www.co.curry.or.us/departments/Community-
Development/Planning-Commission  and are located at 94235 Moore St, Suite 
113 Gold Beach Oregon for purchase at reasonable cost. The Board of 
Commissioners staff report will be available after 5 p.m. on Friday, January 5, 
2018 at http://www.co.curry.or.us/Board-of-Commissioners. 
 
Should the action of the Board  be appealed, the appeal shall be limited to the 
application materials, evidence and other documentation, and specific issues 
raised in the comments by interested parties leading up to the Board's 
action.  Failure to provide sufficient specificity to afford the Board an 
opportunity to respond to an issue that is raised precludes appeal to Oregon 
Land Use Board of Appeals based on that issue.     
 

mailto:johnsonc@co.curry.or.us
http://www.co.curry.or.us/departments/Community-Development/Planning-Commission
http://www.co.curry.or.us/departments/Community-Development/Planning-Commission
http://www.co.curry.or.us/Board-of-Commissioners


Board of Commissioners January 17, 2018 AD-1701 staff report                                                                     1 of 9 
 

 

 
 

Board of Commissioners Staff Report 
 
Meeting Date:   January 17, 2018     
 
Prepared by:  Carolyn Johnson, Community Development Director 
 
Agenda Item.  A de novo public hearing for Board review, public comment and Board  
action on an appeal of a Planning Commission decision to deny an Elk River Property 
Development, (land use application AD-1705) for the analysis of alternative routes for a 
pipeline and ancillary facilities to deliver recycled wastewater located for irrigation of a golf 
course on or over Assessor map 32-15-29C, lot numbers: 103, 104, 105, 106, 107, 108, 118, 
120 and 121 and extending to the property commonly known as the Knapp Ranch. (Sections 
19, 29 & 30 of Township 32 S., Range 15 W., W.M. Tax lot 4400, and Section 29c of 
Township 32 S., Range 15 W., W.M. Tax lot 500)  
 
Hearing Procedure:  
1. Identify and follow the hearing  procedure specified in Zoning Ordinance 2.140(2a-d) 
2. Receive the staff report 
3. Accept testimony from parties in favor of the application 
4. Accept testimony from other parties 
5. Allow the parties to offer rebuttal evidence and testimony 
6. If requested by the Board, continue the hearing to a date certain no later than January 
31, 2018. 
7. Conclude the hearing, the Board should determine whether to leave the record open.  
8. Deliberate among the Board of Commissioners and, if desired, direct questions to 
County staff. 
9. Discuss findings and direct staff to bring back a final order no later than January 31, 
2018. 
 
Proposed Board Options:  
 
1) Reach a decision to uphold the Appeal.  Direct staff to prepare a Board Final Order for 
action on January 31, 2018.  
 
2) Reach a decision to deny the appeal and direct staff to prepare a Board Final Order 
for action on January 31, 2018.  

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Board of Commissioners January 17, 2018 AD-1701 staff report                                                                    2 of 9 
 

Staff recommendations:  
 
1. Accept Oral report from staff, hear testimony from parties with standing and the 
public, close the public hearing and deliberate.  
  
2. Reach a decision to uphold the Appeal.  Direct staff to prepare a Board Final Order 
for action on January 31, 2018.  
   
3. If the January 17, 2017 de novo public hearing includes additional public suggested 
alternatives, with sufficient specificity to merit written response from the applicant (as per 
ORS 215.246), then the public hearing should be closed but the record remain open for 
written responses by the applicant and review by the Board at a future date but no later 
than January 31, 2018.    
 
I. Application Information: 
 
Applicant/Agent: Elk River Development Corporation LLC (ERCD)/Bill Kloos Esq. 

 
Zoning: Exclusive Farm Use (EFU)  
 
Project Description/Location: ERCD seeks to extend a recycled wastewater pipeline and 
ancillary facilities 1 outside the Port Orford city limits to the future Pacific Gales golf 
course. 2 The two pipeline routes under consideration can generally be described as: 
 
1) Running north along Arizona Street and thence west and north across land owned by 
Knapp Ranches Inc,; and  
 
2) Running north along Madrona Ave, until travelling west (partially through private 
property, with the landowners permission) to land owned by Knapp Ranches.  
 
The proposed alternative routes are noted on Attachment 2 and the following page of this 
report.  
  

                                                 
1 A pond that will store water, pumps and a small pumphouse that will shelter the irrigation equipment.  
2 Board Order 20255 (In the Matter of Remand Proceedings for Application AD-1411) and affirmed by LUBA opinion Or LUBA 2015-080, 
January 27, 2016. 



 

Board of Commissioners January 17, 2018 AD-1701 staff report                                                                    3 of 9 
 

 
II.      Background:  In January of 2015, the Board of Commissioners approved a 
Conditional Use Permit (CUP-1411) for the Pacific Gales Golf Course located in an 
Exclusive Farm Use (EFU) zoning district. The applicant seeks to extend a recycled 
wastewater pipeline to the golf course site for irrigation. The Zoning Ordinance is silent on a 
definition of recycled and/or reclaimed water3 permitting requirements. However Oregon 
State Statute (ORS) 215.283(1)(v) notes that subject to a license or permit4 by the 
Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ), recycled water for irrigation is a permitted use 
in an EFU zone.  Prior to issuance of the subject permits, ORS 215.2465 notes that DEQ 
requires an applicant to identify alternatives through a local government process for the 
recycled wastewater pipeline location. After the local government process of reviewing 
alternatives is complete, DEQ will complete processing of  the necessary DEQ permits for 
the applicant to proceed with the project.  The County’s Zoning Ordinance6 identifies the 
Planning Commission as the County’s decision maker to analyze these alternatives.  
 
ERCD made an application (AD-1705) for Planning Commission review of the alternative 
routes for the pipeline. The Planning Commission reviewed the application on September 
21 and October 19, and denied the application on November 7, 2017.  Attachment 11 
provides additional information on the Planning Commission process.  Planning 
Commission decisions can be appealed to the Board of Commissioners. ERCD appealed 
                                                 
3 The proposed pipeline would transport reclaimed water meeting the ORS 537.131 criteria as described in the July 27, 2017 memo from 
County Counsel. (Attachment  9)   Reclaimed water is referred to as recycled water by DEQ.    
4 The applicant has submitted applications to DEQ for a Wastewater Pollution Control Facility Permit and a Recycled Water Use Permit 
5 ORS 215.246 -Approval of land application of certain substances; subsequent use of tract of land; consideration of alternatives 
6 2.060(2)(d) Article II. Procedures for Making Land Use Decisions 



 

Board of Commissioners January 17, 2018 AD-1701 staff report                                                                    4 of 9 
 

the Planning Commission’s application denial to the Board pursuant to Zoning Ordinance 
Section 2.170 (Appeal of a land use decision) which states:  
 
“Appeals of the decision making body shall take up the appeal as a de novo  issue  and the  
final  written  order  or  conclusions  of  the  lower  decision  making  body being appealed 
shall not be considered in the appellate review.”  
 
In this case, the “decision making body” is the Board of Commissioners. “De Novo”  means 
the Board is to review the ERCD application without giving deference to the Planning 
Commission’s denial. “Lower decision making body” means the Planning Commission. 
“Appellate review” means review by the Board of Commissioners.  
 
 III. Applicable Criteria and Discussion  
 
Curry County procedure to review the proposal 
 
A. CCZO  Section 2.060(2)(d) identifies the Planning Commission as the decision making 
body for subdivisions, interpretations of Planning Director decisions and “other land use 
actions”.  
 
Consistent with CCZO Section 2.060(2)(d), the Planning Commission acted as the decision 
making body for Application AD-1705.  
 
B. CCZO Section 2.170 (1) and (7) – Appeal of a Land Use Decision  
 
1. In the matter of all appeals, the decision making body shall take up the appeal as a 
de  novo  issue  and  the  final  written  order  or  conclusions  of  the  lower  decision  
making  body being appealed shall not be considered in the appellate review 
 
7.  Requires the notice of appeal to include a statement demonstrating that the appeal 
issues were raised during the public comment period. 
 
Discussion:  The Planning Commission’s November 7, 2017 decision was appealed. The 
Final Order was released on November 8, 2017. An appeal of the Planning Commission’s 
decision, (Attachment 5a) from the applicant’s representative Bill Kloos was received on 
November 10, 2017. The Planning Commission revisited and approved an expanded Final 
Order on December 14, 2017.  An appeal to the second Final Order Planning Commission 
decision, (Attachment 5a) was received on December 20, 2017.  
Consistent with CCZO Section 2.170 (1), the Board of Commissioners January 17, 2018 
hearing is procedurally being held as a de novo hearing for the Planning Commission’s two 
Final Orders. The Board of Commissioners is to review Application AD-1705 without giving 
deference to the Planning Commission’s actions as further described in a November 27, 
2017 memo from County Counsel (Attachment 9):  
 
“The Board considers this review “de novo”. That means this is a new hearing and the 
Board is not bound by, and cannot give any deference or weight to, the Planning 
Commission’s work or decision.  Nevertheless, that material is part of the record for the 



 

Board of Commissioners January 17, 2018 AD-1701 staff report                                                                    5 of 9 
 

Board’s review.  CCZO Section 2.170 (1) states: In the matter of all appeals, the decision 
making body shall take up the appeal as a de  novo  issue  and  the  final  written  order  or  
conclusions  of  the  lower  decision  making  body being appealed shall not be considered 
in the appellate review.” 
 
Consistent with CCZO Section 2.170 (7), The Notice of the Appeal (Attachment 4) included 
arguments and evidence raised during the public comment period.  
 
C. CCZO Section 2.172(6) – Land Use Appeal Procedures 
 
6. The  decision  making  body  shall render a  decision,  may  affirm,  reverse  or  
modify  the action of a lesser authority and may reasonably attach conditions necessary to 
carry out the Comprehensive Plan…  
 
Consistent with CCZO Section 2.172(6), the Curry County Board of Commissioners is to 
render a decision regarding application AD-1705.   
 
Oregon statutes regarding the proposal 
 
D. ORS 215.246(1a) and (3)  
 
(1) The uses allowed under ORS 215.213 … (a) Require a determination by the 
Department of Environmental Quality, in conjunction with the department’s review of a 
license, permit or approval, that the application rates and site management practices for the 
land application of reclaimed water, agricultural or industrial process water or biosolids 
ensure continued agricultural, horticultural or silvicultural production and do not reduce the 
productivity of the tract. 
 
(3) When a state agency or a local government makes a land use decision relating to the 
land application of reclaimed water, agricultural or industrial process water or biosoils under 
a license, permit or approval by the DEQ, the applicant shall explain in writing how 
alternatives identified in public comments on the land use decision were considered, and if 
the alternatives are not used, explain in writing the reasons for not using the alternatives. 
The applicant must consider only those alternatives that are identified with sufficient 
specificity to afford the applicant an adequate opportunity to consider the alternatives. A 
land use decision relating to the land application of reclaimed water, agricultural or 
industrial process water or biosoils may not be reversed or remanded under this subsection 
unless the applicant failed to consider identified alternatives or to explain in writing the 
reasons for not using the alternatives. 
 
ORS 215.246(1) requires the DEQ permit process to include “application rates and site 
management practices for the land application of reclaimed water, agricultural or industrial 
process water or biosolids ensure continued agricultural, horticultural or silvicultural 
production and do not reduce the productivity of the tract.”  Accordingly, the applicant is 
required to meet ORS 215.246(1) requirements as a part of the DEQ processing of their 

https://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/215.213


 

Board of Commissioners January 17, 2018 AD-1701 staff report                                                                    6 of 9 
 

Recycled Water Use Permit.  The applicant has submitted an application for the DEQ 
permit; however the permit will not be issued until the County review process is completed.  
 
If the Board authorizes the subject proposal, AD-1705 Condition of Approval #1 is a 
requirement to meet the standards of ORS 215.246(1a). Condition of Approval 1 states:  
“Receive approval from the Oregon State Department of Environmental Quality for a  
Recycled Water Use Permit for the proposed use prior to pipeline construction.”   
 
ORS 215.246(3) requires an applicant to explain how public comments on the alternatives 
have been addressed and explain reasons for not using any identified (and adequately 
detailed) alternatives.   
 
After the public hearing, if the Board of Commissioners finds that the applicant has 
adequately  considered public comment related to identified alternatives, then the applicant 
has statisfied this statutory requirement. Public comments, and the applicants responses to 
those comments, have been received at the writing of this report (see Attachments 5 and 
10)  If public comments are received as a result of this hearing, which introduce new 
evidence related to identified alternatives, then the applicant must be granted an 
opportunity to evaluate them.  
 
E.  ORS 215.246(4)(a):  The uses allowed under this section include: The treatment of 
reclaimed water, agricultural or industrial process water or biosolids that occurs as a result 
of the land application; 
 
The project includes the treatment of reclaimed water consistent with ORS section 
215.246(4)(a) by use of a pond to expose the reclaimed water to natural soil microbes that 
will digest a trace amount of nutrients and other substances.   
  
It is the applicant’s position that natural processes will lead to continued improvements in 
water quality such as exposure to UV light while the water is impounded in a pond at the 
golf course.   
 
As stated in the proposal application, all water quality treatments will occur at existing Port 
Orford sewage treatment plant. Some degree of water quality improvement is expected to 
occur incidentally to storing the recycled water in the pond, and its application  to the golf 
course, where it will be exposed to soil microbes and other natural processes. Water 
currently being discharged from sewage treatment plant is already treated to such a high 
level that it is permitted to be discharged directly into the ocean. The applicant has stated 
that it is more environmentally sustainable to use the City’s effluent for irrigation, (where 
any trace containments will be broken down by exposure to air and UV light during the 
pond storage period, and by soil microbes after it is applied as irrigation), as opposed to 
discharging it directly into the marine environment.  
 
 
 
 



 

Board of Commissioners January 17, 2018 AD-1701 staff report                                                                    7 of 9 
 

F. ORS 215.246(4)(b)  The establishment and use of facilities, including buildings, 
equipment, aerated and nonaerated water impoundments, pumps and other irrigation 
equipment, that are accessory to and reasonably necessary for the land application to 
occur on the subject tract; 
 
ERCD has proposed improvements that will include a portion of the pipe that delivers 
treated water, a pond that will store water, pumps and irrigation equpiment, and  a small 
pumphouse that will shelter the irrigation equipment.  Consistent with ORS 215.246(4)(b), 
the project includes improvements that will be reasonably necessary for the use of recycled 
wastewater for irrigation on the Pacific Gales golf course. 
 
G. ORS 215.246(4)(c)  The Establishment and use of facilities, including buildings and 
equipment, that are not on the tract on which the land application occurs for the transport of 
reclaimed water, agricultural or industrial process water or biosoils to the tract on which the 
land application occurs if the facilities are located within: (A) a public right of way; or (B) 
Other land if the landowner provides written consent and the owner of the facility complies 
with ORS 215.275(4); and (d) the transport by vehicle of reclaimed water on which the 
water will be applied. 
 
ERDC proposes ancillary facilities necessary for the use of recycled wastewater on lands 
outside of the tract where irrigation will occur, primarily in the right of way. In limited 
instances where pipeline is to cross land that is not within right of way, written consent from 
land owners is required to cross property for the project. ERCD has secured the referenced 
written consent.  (Attachment 6)   
 
H. ORS 215.283(1)(v): (1) The following uses may be established in any area zoned for 
exclusive farm use: (v) Subject to the issuance of a license, permit or other approval by the 
Department of Environmental Quality under ORS 454.695… 459.205…468B.050… 
468B.053…468B.055…468B.095… the land application of reclaimed water, agricultural or 
industrial process water or biosolids for agricultural, horticultural or silvicultural production, 
or for irrigation in connection with a use allowed in an exclusive farm use zone under this 
chapter.” 
 
Oregon Statute requires the land application of reclaimed water to have a license, permit, 
or other approval from DEQ.  DEQ has indicated the processing of the Recycled Water Use 
Permit for the project cannot be completed without the County’s review and authorization of 
the Alternatives analysis, the subject of this staff report.   
 
IV. Conclusion 
 
Related to ORS 215.283 
The proposed recycled water pipeline and it’s ancillary features for irrigation in an EFU 
zone appears consistent with ORS 215.283. Reclaimed water can used for irrigation related 
to an allowed use in the EFU zone. County Counsel notes in his October 11, 2017 memo 
(Attachment 9) that it is his opinion that a valid existing CUP for a golf course is not 
required for the County to authorize AD-1705.   



 

Board of Commissioners January 17, 2018 AD-1701 staff report                                                                    8 of 9 
 

 
The irrigation use in this case is proposed for use on the  Pacific Gales golf course. The 
Board of Commissioners approved a Conditional Use Permit for the golf course project and 
the Land Use Board of Appeals affirmed the approval in 2016.7 The applicant’s 
representative has provided evidence that the Conditional Use Permit has been initiated 
and is therefore valid. (Page 10 of Attachment 5) 
 
ORS 215.283(v) specifies  DEQ’s approval of a Wastewater Control Facility Permit and a 
Recycled Water Use Permit to satisfy ORS 215.246. DEQ8 has identified the steps (Page 2 
of Attachment 1) required for the applicant to secure the required DEQ permits:  
 
1)  The applicant obtains the required DEQ application and Land Use Compatibility 
Statement (LUCS) form to the County Planning Office for review and approval.  
 
2) The County conducts its land use review process. Pertinent to this step, Board 
approval of the proposal would include the following Condition #1:  Receive approval from 
the Oregon State Department of Environmental Quality for a Wastewater Pollution Control 
Facility Permit and a Recycled Water Use Permit for the proposed use prior to pipeline 
construction 
 
3) The County completes the LUCS form and returns it to the applicant with appropriate 
findings. 
 
4) The applicant submits the DEQ application and approved LUCS for processing. 
 
The balance of the requirements to secure the required are required by Oregon State DEQ.   
The applicant has submitted the LUCS Statement to the Community Development 
Department/Planning division. Following a Board action to authorize the subject application, 
the LUCS will be completed and returned to the applicant for their submittal of the required 
permits to DEQ for the proposal.   
 
Further information can be found in the October 24, 2017 County Counsel memo 
(Attachment 9).  
 
Related to ORS 215.246 (1), (3), and (4c)  
The applicant is required to meet ORS 215.246(1) requirements as a part of the DEQ 
processing of a Recycled Water Use Permit. AD-1705 Condition of Approval #1 specifies 
said compliance as follows: Receive approval from the Oregon State Department of 
Environmental Quality for a Wastewater Pollution Control Facility Permit and a Recycled 
Water Use Permit for the proposed use prior to pipeline construction.   
 
 

                                                 
7 Board Order 20255 and LUBA Opinion Or LUBA 2015-080 
8 November 21, 2017 e-mail from by Ranei Nomura, Manager, Water Quality Permitting and Compliance DEQ Western Region to Jacob 
Callister, LCOG contract planner 



 

Board of Commissioners January 17, 2018 AD-1701 staff report                                                                    9 of 9 
 

ORS 215.246(3) requires an applicant to explain how public comments on the alternatives 
have been addressed and explain reasons for not using any identified (and adequately 
detailed) alternatives.  The applicant has met the requirements specified in ORS 215.246 
and (3)  by  specifying how alternatives identified in public comments on the land use 
decision were considered, and the reasons for not using the alternatives. 
 
Related to ORS 215.246(4)(a)  
The project includes the treatment of reclaimed water consistent with ORS 215.246(4)(a) 
by use of a pond to expose the reclaimed water to natural soil microbes that will digest a 
trace amount of nutrients and other substances. 
 
Related to ORS 215.246(4)(b) 
The project includes improvements that will be reasonably necessary for the use of 
recycled wastewater for irrigation on the Pacific Gales golf course. 
 
Related to ORS 215.246(4c)  
For both the preferred and alternate routes, the applicant has obtained easements with 
land owners where the pipeline can pass through private property. 
 
V.  Public Comments9  - Public comments can be found on Attachment 10 and include:    
• October 18, 2017 Transmittal from the Oregon Coastal Alliance (ORCA)   
• September 5 and December 14, 2017 letter from Beverly Walters 
• December 20, 2017 letter from Jim Auborn  
• December 14, 2017 letter from the Karen Jennings representing the Port Orford 
Main Street Revitalization Program  
• December 14, 2017 letter from Karen Auborn  
 
Attachments 
1 – Electronic transmittal regarding DEQ permitting process.  
2 -  Proposed preferred and alternative routes of pipeline.  
3 – Detailed decription of alternatives (including routes and plans)  
4 – Public notice for BOC January 17, 2018 public hearing   
5 – Applicant’s written statements 
5a – Applicant’s November 10 and December 14 appeals 
6 – Easement agreements and written consent of property owners for use of property for 
pipeline 
7 – Application to County  
8 - November 8, 2017 and December 14, 2017 Planning Commission Final Orders 
9 -  July, October 11, October 24 and November 27 County Counsel memos 
9a – November 7, 2107 Planning Commission meeting transcript 
10 - Public comments   
11- Planning Commission denial process 
 
 

                                                 
9 Received by 5 PM, January 3 for inclusion in the Board 01.17.2018 de novo hearing packet.  


	2018_02_14 DRAFT Agenda  Special Meeting D4 FORMATTED
	SPECIAL MEETING
	AGENDA
	1. Call To Order Pledge of Allegiance

	2018_02_14 Main 1a AGRS Elevator Modernization 021418
	2018_02_14 Main 1a1 Jail Elevator Memo 021418
	2018_02_14 Main 1b Thyssenkrupp County Contract language
	2018_02_14 Main 1c EF Hanson re fwd TK modernization 013018
	2018_02_14 Main 1d TK Curry County - Jail - Mod
	2018_02_14 Main 1e TK H-Power Brochure
	2018_02_14 Main 1f Straight Up Elevator Modernization Proposal - Curry County
	2018_02_14 Main 1g Quote from Otis 020518
	2018_02_14 Parks 1a AGRS Kessler ADA restroom bid
	2018_02_14 Parks 1b Cover leter ADA restrooms
	2018_02_14 Parks 1c Architect Drwng_A RR Bldg_Humbug Mt._A2-15120648
	2018_02_14 Parks 1d Est_1193_from_Lance_Kessler_Construction_Inc._13404
	2018_02_14 Counsel 1a AGRS Nesika Beach Ophir Water District Lease
	2018_02_14 Counsel 1b DRAFT Nesika Beach Ophir LEASE
	AGRS Exec Session
	7 2018_02_14 Comm Dev FINAL STAFF REPORT WITH ATTACHMENTS de novo appeal
	A FINAL STAFF REPORT
	attachment 1
	1
	09.21.2017 Curry County Planning Commission Packet
	Planning Commission Meeting Agenda.09.21.2017
	STAFF REPORT
	Prepared by Jacob Callister, Contract Senior Planner
	Lane Council of Governments
	Planning Commission Hearing Date:  September 21, 2017
	ATTACHMENT 1
	Planning Commission Resolution AD-1705 Conditionally Approving the Proposal
	Resolution 2017-AD-1705

	ATTACHMENT 2. Proposed preferred and alternative routs of pipeline
	ATTACHMENT.3.APPLICANTS WRITTEN STATEMENT AND DETAILED DESCRIPTION OF ALTERNATIVES
	ATTACHMENT 3 COVER SHEET
	ATTACHMENT.3.APPLICANTS WRITTEN STATEMENT AND DETAILED DESCRIPTION OF ALTERNATIVES

	ATTACHMENT.4.COUNTY.COUNSEL.MEMO
	ATTACHMENT 4 COVER SHEET
	ATTACHMENT.4.COUNTY.COUNSEL.MEMO

	ATTACHMENT.5.PUBLIC.NOTICE
	ATTACHMENT 5 COVER PAGE
	ATTACHMENT.5.PUBLIC.NOTICE

	ATTACHMENT.6.PROJECT.APPLICATION
	ATTACHMENT 6 COVER PAGE
	ATTACHMENT.8.APPLICATION
	ATTACHMENT.8.1.Conditional Use Application (NAK 7-3-17)
	Curry County Community Development
	Carolyn Johnson                             Phone (541) 247-3284
	Planning Director                                          FAX (541) 247-4579


	ATTACHMENT.8.application to county


	ATTACHMENT.7.EASEMENT AGREEMENTS
	ATTACHMENT 7 COVER PAGE
	ATTACHMENT.7.EASEMENT AGREEMENTS
	agreement for Kreiger lane
	agreement for private lots



	10.19.2017  Planning Commission packet
	10.19.2017 Planning Commission Meeting Agenda.
	STAFF REPORT 10 19 2017
	ATTACHMENT.2. Proposed preferred and alternative routs of pipeline
	ATTACHMENT.3.APPLICANTS WRITTEN STATEMENT AND DETAILED DESCRIPTION OF ALTERNATIVES
	ATTACHMENT 3 COVER SHEET
	ATTACHMENT.3.APPLICANTS WRITTEN STATEMENT AND DETAILED DESCRIPTION OF ALTERNATIVES

	ATTACHMENT.4.COUNTY.COUNSEL.MEMO
	ATTACHMENT 4 COVER SHEET
	ATTACHMENT.4.COUNTY.COUNSEL.MEMO

	ATTACHMENT.5.PUBLIC.NOTICE
	ATTACHMENT 5 COVER PAGE
	ATTACHMENT.5.PUBLIC.NOTICE

	ATTACHMENT.6.PROJECT.APPLICATION
	ATTACHMENT 6 COVER PAGE
	ATTACHMENT.8.APPLICATION
	ATTACHMENT.8.1.Conditional Use Application (NAK 7-3-17)
	Curry County Community Development
	Carolyn Johnson                             Phone (541) 247-3284
	Planning Director                                          FAX (541) 247-4579


	ATTACHMENT.8.application to county


	ATTACHMENT.7.EASEMENT AGREEMENTS
	ATTACHMENT 7 COVER PAGE
	ATTACHMENT.7.EASEMENT AGREEMENTS
	agreement for Kreiger lane
	agreement for private lots


	ATTACHMENT.8.DLCDEMAILSREQUESTEDBYCOMMISSIONERMCHUGH
	ATTACHMENT.9.WALTERS.LETTER
	ATTACHMENT.10.10.11.2017.COUNTY COUNSEL MEMO

	11.07.2017 PC AD 1705 staffreport

	attachment 2
	2
	AD-175 Sup Pac

	attachment 3
	3
	2018_01_22 Wildland Properties

	attachment 4
	4
	ORCA to Curry BOC re ERPD Knapp Pipeline Appeal Jan 18

	attachment 5
	5
	Application for CUP Extension 1 19 2018

	attachment 6
	6
	Jim Haley letter.02.07.2018


	2018_02_14 Feb 7 2018 cover email re extension request letter
	2018_01_17 Special Meeting Packet Part 1
	2018_01_17 Agenda  Special Meeting
	SPECIAL MEETING
	AGENDA
	1. CALL TO ORDER

	2018_01_17 AGRS - Land use Appeal John Hitt
	2018_01_17 Public Newspaper Notice
	2018_01_17 FINAL.FINAL.report.01.04.2017.staffreportdraft.huttl.hitt.cj




